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Chairman Message

DearMembers,

It 1= my priviiege fo wite o you and presant the Annual Repaort of your Company for
tha inancial yeas 202324,

thope this |etier finds you safe and i good health,

My letter of stroduction o your Annual Regort 1850 year that demonstrate the
difficulties faced by the bustness and performance delivered i difficuit
crzumstances, The Rice industry has atways been considensd by its fuoluaing
riature, but the comeination of various factors in recent imes such as dimate change
and geopoitical fears have kaen the level of valatSty in the indusiry

This year. despile of confinuing chalfenges ahead, the Company has deliversd
optirrarm oparationas results while continuing b mvest Tor the fuurs,

‘W gre committsd to domg ol this in away that drives lang-ferm sharehalder valise by
crealing shared value for all of our stakeholders. including customers, assocates,
suppliers; business pariners, and communitios.

In |gte 2017-18, we sat 3 goat to overcoms from tne financial crises and work fowards
regamning the glory of your company, which requires time, cowrage and brusl and
BNCOUraes ofmers o work towards the same goal. The Board rainforced this
commitment in #023-24, which sels forh owr key gosls and stategies fowards
avercaming the situatan.

Your Bogrd & commitied to maintaining highest stendards of comporate govemance
and wil conbinue to review and strengthen hese praclices and your Board endiess
afiorie lowsnds sirategic transformation during this time of ragid change. Whera, il
gives confidence that the Boars exgenence-to serve our comgany and fo- cantmue fo.
guide us in the years {o come o mest the Company purpose - Buildéng & brighter
future for all —our fundamental and the role in supporting economic. growth,
contributing to prosperity, and helping cusiomers achigve their goats.

The Indian Basmali Rice is prasently 8 the oross foads wilh domests: demand
remaining lot to consstant abmost &t par with the fast year & with ore of the all-time
high crop size last harvest, there is now large volemes of insold casry lorward siocks
available, Due o Ihese rezsony. the market @& in bit of reugh weather for the last
couple of menths, the pices in most of the vasants of basmall have fallen by
whapping 15 to 25% . On the export front toot has its adverse effects, for the 1sttime
inseveral years, the expor of basmati rice hes falken by 10% +, from 4 56 million {ons
during 20E2-23 104,10 million lans [n 2023-24 fiscal anding 315t March, 24,

The Globs! Ready-lo-Eal Meals: Markel is segmented by Product Type (Instar

BreskfasiiCenzals, Instant Soups and Snacks, Resdy Meals, Baked Gonds, Meat
Products, and Odher Product Types), Distribution Channe! (Hyparmarkats!
Suparmarkets. Convenance Stores, Onfina Ralall Stores, and Cdber Distribution
Channeis); and Geography {North America, Europe, Asiz-Paciic. South America,
arwt Middle-East and Africa).

The Ready-to-Eat Food Market sze ks estimated at USD 402,90 bion i 2024, and &
expected fo reach USD 512 74 billion by 2025, growing &t & CAGR of 4 843 during
he forecast pariod (2024-2028),

The global ready-to-eat food market is highly competitve, with the presance of key
players operafing m fhe markel. High indusirial profitability has led mamfactrans o
divalop powerful competitive stralegies, intensifying compeliton among the exsting
markat phayers. Major market playars are undarisking product innovation, product
lzunches, mamers and scquisifons, pecgraphic expansion, eir,, &5 parl of key
strategies to ramain compediive in the markat,

Companies are also peaifioning their products on different factors, including producs
offerings, qualily, tasle, Bavars, price, fanclionaiy, size, packeging, and markeling
actwvilieg, iogain a competitve advanlage i the mankal

Your Company achieved & fotal iem-over of INR 350,37 Mifion (Mn | 85 against INR
25,42 Millian (Mn.) of 21 year, the roe busitess lemover stood al INR 106,52 M.
a5 against INR 185.55 Ma, of sl yess the food busmess tumover slood at INR
BX6.72 Mn. &5 against INR 575,18 Mn. of last year. The food business grew to an
increase of 145.47% in food busness n sales in vaue larms in compansan o [ast
YEAr Saies,

Recenfly your company hed added scaling up its operations. Expling more
pofential in the food business to make best use of s merkeling neteork and
strengthen it furthar o regain the masket share. Now your company has stared direct
exporls ln-different countries forboth nea and dood producls.

Meverthelass, Your Comgany have bean started evolving with your trust and sugpart,
as m the fasl few years; your Company could not perorm well because of financial
consiran, ongoing economic pressurs &nd pandemic, On tha hindsight expod
rarket was iow on senfiments & actusl realization dus to economic instability ansund
countries beside our own constraing of business ogeration due Lo ligudity cunch.
However Kohinoor is stll sinving: to grow sleadiy and place its presencs anound
wirld across renowned players,

KFL parficipatas across nalions and around world, under 85 few pregligicus brands
for saleof ice and processed & packed food business.

W further infarm the members thal with an objective to improve the financals of the
comgany, your company i exploring Ihe possibilfies such as:

a, Mone Bsing somsa of the assels of the company.

b. Looking & Inwestor fomfuse funds in the comgpany:

¢. Exmciting with the Bankes for restructuring of borrowings or seltiment of loans.
The company |s working aggressively on the said fines o improve its
financialbusiness fo achisve the sesmiess working.

Wit the objective of banging authentic Indien flavours to the peopla all over the
world, we wanf your company Kohnoor Foods Lid. lo become a leading name in the
food tusiness globaly a5 well. In pursult of cur vision 1o make Kohinoar the most
frusted & preferad food brand in export markets, we would continue fo develop
products, increase nperabonal sfficiency and ioflow oursucresshul slrategis,

| &n gratefid b the Board of Directors for thiir unwavenng support and quidasce, |
a0 take this opporunity to exprass my gratiude to all our consumens, business
parners, amployaes and stakehofdars who have shown thair rust in us and have
extanded thelr constant suppart.

| womld like to take this cpportunily o thank you for your conlinued frust, confidence,
and suppart as we enter § brava new decata—ane that s already rewriling the rdss
of thi pagt.

With bestwishos,
Sincersly

Sl

Jugal Kishore Arora
Chairman



Directors’ Report and Management Discussion & Analysis

The following report should be read in conjunction with the audited
financial statements and notes for the year ended March 31, 2024 and
the audited financial staterments and notas for the year ended March
31, 2023. This report contains forward looking statements, which may
be identified by their use of words like ‘plans', 'expects’ ‘will',
"anticipates’, believes’, intends’, ‘projects’, 'estimates’ or other words
of similar meaning. All statements that address expeciations or
projections about the fulure, including but not fimited 1o statements
about the Company's strategy for growth, market position,
expendituras, and financial results, are forward looking statements.
Forward locking statemenls are based on cerlain assumplions and
expectations of future events. The Company cannot guarantee that
these assumptions and expeciations are accurate or will be realized.
The Company's actual results, performance or achievements could
thus differ materially fram those projected in any such farwand looking
statements, The Compeny assumes no responsibility to publicly
ameand, modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis
ofany subsequent developments, information or events,

Company —In General

Synonymous with the fine taste of India in its absolute authentic form,
the sole objective of Kahinoor Foods Limited, since its Inceplion, has
been lo make the world expenence the frue Indian flavor, The
Company offers an extensive range that caters to consumers’ need in
all parts of the world - a wide variety of Basmati Rice, Ready to Eat
Curries & Meals, Readymade Gravies, Cooking Pastes, Chutnay's,
Spices and Seasonings to Frozen Breads, Snacks & Paneer {Indian
Cottage Cheese}, healthy grains, edible oils. Today, the most powerful
brand of the Company “Kohinoor® is a household name in the
countries like USA, UAE, Canada, Australia, Middle Easl, Singapaore,
Japan, Mauritius & other European countrigs. As of now, the brand
"Fohinoor' is known worldwide.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 35th Annual Report
and the Audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the Financial
Yearended 315t March, 2024

Financial Overview

The financial highlights for the year ending 31st March, 2024 are as
under:

{R&. In Militon)

FY'24
957.33

Particulars

Total Turnover 842.51

{45.28)

{4'1.1?}

The Board's Report has been prepared based on the stand alone
financial statements of the Company.

Operations

During the Year, your company focused on the restructuring of the
company aperations due to various constraint faced due to financial
crisis; various measures have been taken for reduction of the cost of
operation. Despite of the factors faced by the company during the
year your company remain committed to providing world class
quality product fo its consumer, focused in improving operational
efficiencies across its functions and enhancing its reach to the global
CONSUMErS.

Far the financial year under review 2023-24, the contribution made
by Rice to the Company's businass is INR 106.52 million as against
INR 18855 million in previous year while as the Food Business
stood at INR B36.72 million as against INR 575,18 million in the last
financial year,

The year saw an increase of 145.47% in food business in sales in
value terms in comparison lo last year sales. Sales market was
down due to instability in country such as the financial constraini
faced by the Company.

Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic

Details of the impact of Covid-19, have been provided in the notes to
financial statemants forming part of this reporl.

Subsidiaries / Joint Venture
USA Operations

Kohincor Foods USA Inc. was incorporated in year 2000 in the state
of New Jersey, USA, as a wholly owned subsidiary of Kohinoor
Foods Limited (KFL), India, to cater to the markets of US & Canada.
The brand 'Kehinoor is well known in USA for its quality rice and food
items,

However during the current year this company did nat carry any
business as their is no export sales for KFL India to US & Cananda,
alpresent the office is closed due to no business.



Food Business

During the year 2023-24, In processed & packaged food products the
company did the business of around INR 836,72 million as against
INR 575.18 milion in the previous year. The food factory has
continued its operation efectively inspite of the liquidity problem which
impraved our production & revenues from food business,

Australia, USA, Canada are major markets for our range of processed
& packaged food products,

Overview - Ready to Eat Industry
Food Business

The Global Ready-to-Eat Meals Market is sagmented by Product Type
{Instan| Breakfast/Cereals, Instanl Soups and Snacks, Ready Meals,
Baked Goods, Meat Products, and Other Product Types); Distribution
Channel (Hypermarkets/Supermarkets, Convenlence Stores, Online
Retall Stores, and Other Distribution Channels), and Geography
(Morth America, Europe. Asia-Pacific, South America, and Middle-
Easiand Africa).

Ready to Eat Food MarketAnalysis

The Ready-to-Eat Food Market size is estimated at USD 402,80 billion
in 2024, and is expected to reach USD 512.74 billion by 2029, growing
ata CAGR of £.94% during the forecast period (2024-2029).

The Ready-lo-Eat (RTE) food industry has been evolving rapidly,
driven by changing consumer preferences, advancements in
lechnology, and various economic factars, Here's a broad outiook on
the industry:

1. Market Growth

Demand Increase: The global RTE food market has been expanding
due to a growing preference for convenience, busy lifestyles, and a rise
in disposable incomes. Consumers increasingly seek out quick, easy
meal options without sacrificing quality or taste.

Segment Growth: Key segments within RTE foods include frozen
meals, canned goads, snack foods, and fresh preparad meals. Each of
these segments has seen growih, with fresh prepared meals showing
significant expansion due to a focus on healthier and more premium
options.

2. Consumer Trends
Health Consciousness: There is a growing demand for healthier RTE
options. Consumers are looking for meals that are not only conveniant
but also nutritious, with a focus on low-fat, low-sodium, and high-
protein options.
Sustainability: Environmental concerns are influencing consumer
choices, Brands thal emphasize suslainable sourcing, eco-friendly
packaging, and reduced food waste are gaining favor.
Customization and Variety: Consumers are increasingly interested in
diverse cuisines and customizable options. This trend has led to a risa

in offerings thal cater to different dietary needs and preferences, such
as gluten-free, vegan, and organic oplions.

3. Technological Advancements

Food Technology: Innovations in food lechnalogy are enhancing
the quality and safety of RTE foods. Techniques such as high-
pressure processing (HPP) and advances in packaging are
improving shelflife and taste.

Aartomation and Al: Automation in production and Al-driven supply
chain management are making the industry more efficiant. These
technologies help in optimizing production processes and reducing
cosls,

4. Economic Factors

Inflation and Cost Pressures: Rising costs of raw materials and
supply chain disruptions have impacted pricing. Companies are
navigating these challenges through cost management strategies
and adjustments in pricing.

Economic Uncertainty: Economic Muctuations can affecl consumer
spending habits, During economic downtumns, there might be a shift
towards more budget-friendly RTE options.

5, Competitive Landscape

Market Players: The marke! is competitive with & mix of established
players and new entrants, Major food companies are investing in
R&D and acquiring smaller companies to diversify their offerings.
Private Labels: Retailers are increasingly developing their private
label RTE products, which often provide a cost-effective alternative to
branded items.

€. Regional Insights

Morth America and Europe: These ragions have well-established
markets with a high demand for premium and health-oriented BTE
options, Innovation and premiumization are key frends.

Asia-Pacific: Rapid urbanization and a growing middle class are
driving demand for RTE foods in this region. There is a notable
interest in both intermational cuisines and locally adapted products.

7. Regulatory Environment

Food Safety Regulations: Stringent food safety requlations and
standards are crucial in ensuring the safety and guality of RTE
products. Companies must stay updated wilh regulatory changes to
ensure compliance,

8, Future Qutlook

Imnovation Fecus: The future of the RTE food industry will likely see
continued emphasis on innovation, particularly in areas of health,
convenience, and sustainability.



Personalization: There will be an increased focus on personalized
nutrition and tallored meal solutions as technology and data analytics
advance

In summary, the Ready-to-Eat food industry is on a positive grawth
trajectory with significant opportunities driven by consumer demand
for convenience, health, and sustainability. Companies that innovate
and adapt o these trends are well-positoned for success in this
dynamic markat.

Ready to Eat Food Market Trends

This section covers the major market trends shaping the Ready-to-Eat
Food Market according to our research experts;

Surge in Demand for Convenient and Healthy Instant Food

Globally, the demand for convenient and instant food, particulariy
instant pasta, rice, snacks, meal products, and others, is growing ata
faster pace due to changes in secial and economic pattems, as well as
increased expenditure on food and beverage, awareness about
healthy foods, changes In meal patterns and existing food habits,
growing ex-pat setttement population around the world and the desire
lotaste new products,

Thie United States is one of the world's largest markets for ready-to-aat
food, with countries like Germany and the United Kingdom following
suit, and the emerging marksts of Asia-Pacific, the Middie East, and
LatinAmerica are oo projected to see future growth for the sama.

Imstant or easy-1o-prepare snacking and ready meals are becoming
exiremely popular, especially among working-class people, leenage
children, people living in hostels, and bachelors due to their hectic
lifestyles. Moreover, the on-the-go concept is closely associated with
easy consumption and handling of products, which ready-to-eat food
can offar. Thus, the demand for ready-to-eat food is increasing due to
the linked convenience of consumption and aided by disposable

packaging simultaneously.
Asia-Pacific Dominates the Market

Msia-Pacific dominales the ready-lo-sal food markel. The rising
demand for frozen and ready meals, such as frozen meat products, and
frazen snacks like pizza, frozen cereals, soups, efc., drive the market.
The introduction of mare exotic products, the influx of private labels,
and product premiumization are some factors supporting market
demand. The consumers’ parception of ready meals is persistently
improving, where convenience and high-speed cooking time is ideal for
CONsumers.

Oountries such as China and India are likely to lead the demand in the
regicn due to strong growth and high polential in these countries.
Chilled ready meals and frozen ready meals are also one of the most
consumed categories of ready-to-eat food in these countries. Evalving
consumer food preferences such as gluten-free, vegan, and
sustainable packaging add value to the markst.

Ready to Eat Food Industry Overview

The global ready-to-aat food markel is highly compatitive, with the
presence of key players operating in the market, High industrial
profitability has led manufasturers to develop powerful competitive
strategies, intensifying competition among the existing market
players. Major market players are underaking product innovation,
product launches, mergers and acquisitions, geographic expanson,
gic., as part of key strategies o remain competitive in the market,
Oompanies are also posttioning their products on different factors,
including product offerings, quality, taste, flavors, price, functionality,
size, packaging, and marketing activiies, o gain a competitive
advantage in the market,

Global Ready-to-Eat (RTE) Food Market: Reglonal Insights
North America

The Morth American RTE food market is rebust, driven by busy
lifestyles and high demand for convenience. The U.S. and Ganada
see strong consumphion of frozen meals, snacks, and ready-fo-eat
dishes. There is growing interest in healthier options, such as low-
calorie and organic RTE foods. The market is competifive with many
established brands, and innovationis key.

Europe

In Eurgpe, the RTE food market is diverse with varying consumer
prefarences, Western Europe shows high demand for pramium and
health-conscious RTE options, while Eastern Europe is
expariencing growing interest as urbanization increases.
Sustainabilily is a major trend, with consumers favoring eco-friendly
packaging and products.

Asia-Pacific

Asia-Pacific is one of the fastest-growing RTE Tood markels. Rapid
urbanization in couniries like China and India is driving demand for
convenient and varied meal options. Local and international flavors
ara popular, and thera Is increasing interest in health-orientad RTE
foods. Challenges include developing infrastructure and educating
consumers about RTE benefits.

Latin America

The RTE food market in Latin America is expanding, particulary in
urban areas like 530 Paulo and Mexico City. Demand is growing for
both local and international RTE products, influenced by busy
lifestyles. Economic fluctuations and varying infrastructure levels
canimpact market dynamics.

Middle Eastand Africa
The Middle East and Africa are seeing growing RTE food markets,



particularly in urban centers. Increased demand for convenience and
diverse meal options is evident. However, challenges include
infrastructure limitations and economic disparities that affect
distribution and market growth.

Cverall, while the global frazen food market is expariencing robust
growth, each region presents unique characteristics and challenges
thal companies must navigate o succeed. The common drivers
include convenience and evolving consumer preferences, but
regional differences in taste, infrastructure, and economic conditions
shape the market dynamics.

The Indian frozen foods market

The Indian frozen foods market size reached INR 1673 billion in 2023,
Locking forward, expects the markel o reach INR 561.6 billion by
2032, exhibiting a growth rate (CAGR) of 14% during 2024-2032.
Rapid urbanization, rising disposable incomes of individuals, changing
lifestyle and dietary habits, advancements in cold chain infrastructure,
increazed awareness of global food trends, and improved product
accessibility through online retail and supermarkets are among the key
factors driving the market,

The frozen food market in India is vibrant and expanding, driven by
changing consumer habits and Increasing demand for convenience
and variety, While there are challenges to address, particularly in terms
of supply chain and consumer education, the market's growth potential
remains strong with numerous opportunities for innovation and
expansion.

BasmatiRice

The Indian Basmati Rice is presently at the cross roads with domestic
dermand remaining Iot to consistent almost al par with the lasl year &
with ane of the all-ime high crop size last harvest, there is now large
volumes of unsold camy forward stocks available. Due to these
reasans, the market Is in bit of rough weather for the last couple of
manths, the prices in most of the variants of basmati have fallen by
whopping 15 to 25%. On the export front toa It has its adverse effacts,
for the 1st time in several years, the export of basmati rice has fallen by
10% +, from 4.56 million tons during 2022-23 to 4.10 million tons in
2023-24 fiscal ending 315t March, 24.

Risks & Concerns

The Company has received Notices from the Banks under section
13{2) of The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets
and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002, in the manth of July,
2018 to May, 2018 and in the month of February 2020 to September
2020, The Company has replied to the notices recelved from the Bank
within 60 days from the date of notices. The Company has also
received Motices from the Banks under section 13(4) of The
Securitization and Reconslruction of Financial Assels and
Entorcement of Security InterestAct, 2002. The Company has already
approached Banks with suitable resolution plan for their consideration

which the consortium has sanctioned. The Banks has also served
letter for failure of resolution plan submitted by the Company. An
extansion fo tha resolution plan was also grantad by the Lenders

The Lead Bank have filed petition against Company before Hon'ble
NCLT Bench Chandigarh, the company is contesting the matter and
the petition is yet to be admitted.

The Company has filed an appeal before Hon'ble High Court,
Punjab & Haryana for stay. The Hon'ble High Court has granted
Interim stay.

One of the mamber Consortium Bank have filad petition against
Company before Hon'ble NCLT Bench Chandigarh, the company is
contesting the matter and the petition is yet to be admitted,

The Company has received an ex parte interim order from Debt
Recovery Tribunal-lll, Delni dated 25/06/2020 restraining the
company from fransferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing with, or
disposing off or encumbering or creating any third party interest with
respect of the hypothecaled asselsimmovable properties of the
Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter
againsl the ex parte interim order. The Company is contesting the
meatter and filed its reply to |A and also filed reply to OA before DRT-
IIF, Delhi,

The Company has received a Motice through speed post from DRT-
II, New Delhi. The Lead Bark has filed petition before DRT Delhi
against the Company under section 19{4) of the Act. The matter is
listed before the registrar for completing of pleading. The company is
contesting the matter. The company has filed an appeal against the
nonorable DRT-HI, Dethi PO order before honorable DRAT-, Delhi.
The honorable DRAT-I, Delhi accepted the petition of the company.

A summon/notice had been received from the Directorate of
Enforcement, Central Regional Office, Governmeant of India, in the
name of The Director, to appear before them along with various
document, The Directorautherized representative of the company
submitted relevant documents before the authorities/ offices /
departments,

A notice had been received from Central Bureau of Investigation in
the name of The Direclor, Kohinoor Foods Limited lo produce
documenls/information in persen before them, The
Director/authorized represantative of the company submitied
relevant documents before the authorities/ offices | departments.

The Company has submilted its revised resolution proposal with the
Consortium Banks and the same is under consideration by member
Banks and Is requested to prasent the same at their respactive
consortium meeling/Board. The promolers of the Campany
requested to approve the requirements of the resolution proposal,
which is at present under consideration with the Consortium
Lenders.



The Company has received Legal Nolice from the Punjab National
Bank, Hong Kong in regard to outstanding indebtedness due amount
(inclusive of interest up to date). The matter is now being taken up
PNB Dubai and the Company had submitted its OTS proposal and has
depasited the upfront amount and requested to process the Company
OTS Proposal and forward (he same to their Board/Head Office for
approval, whichisat present in consideration.

The Board of Trustee of the port of Mumbai has filed a monsy suit for
recovery iowards alleged cufstanding demurrage charges against
which the Company has filed its counter ciaim towards the financial
lzsses, interest on the investment, refund of the license feas, refund of
the demurrage charges, compensation and damages ete. The matter
is 5ill pending.

The company's vendor has filed an execution petition before
Faridabad Districi & Session Judge. The company is contesting the
matter. The company has also approached Honble High Cour
Chandigarh for stay on above matter. The Respandent has also filed
an Instant Application in the matter The Company has also
approached Hon'ble High Court Delhi for stay on above matter.
Further, the Company filed a petition before the Hon'ble Apex Court
with regard to contesting of proceeding before District and Session
Court, Faridabad. The Hon'ble Apex Court had allowed the company
petition with granting relief to the Company and parties against the
impugned order of Faridabad District Court and asked the Company to
depasit INR 50 Lakhs each in fwo franches in a gap of two weeks
before the Hon'ble High Court for seeking direction for further refief,
The Company has alzo deposited the above amount in compliance
with the order of Apex Court.

The Muricipal Corporation has issued nofice to the Builder of Pinnacle
Tower for vacating of premises Pinnacle Tower, at Surajkund
Faridabad, The Builder had obtained inferim stay on the order of
Municipal Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon'ble High Court Punjab
and Haryana. The Company also filed a pefition against Municipal
Corporation & other before the Civil Judge, Senior Division, Faridabad
with regard to stay of proceeding against order of Municipal
Corporation, Faridabad. The Han'ble Fandabad Cour has stated that
already Intenim stay have been granted by the Hon'le High Court,
hence no ground to grant relied prayed for is made out at this stage.

The Company has raceived a letter from one of the Consortium
member Bank regarding assignment of Debt of Company vide their
assignment agreement dated 10.05.2024 where the Bank has sialed
that it has assigned all its right in relation to the outstanding exposura
ofthe Company.

An email has been received from SEBI regarding examination in the
matier of the Company. The Depariment has sought certain
clarification and documents which had been dully submitted by the
Company.

The observafions of the Auditor with regard to the management
assessment of the Company's ability to continue as going concem in
view of the liquidity problems/decrease in business. The
management of the Company believes that it can continue as a
going concem, based on the Rezolution Plan and after of one time
sefflement submitted to the Banks by Company and the interest
shown by Praspective Investors in the Company.

Macro-economic factors like recession, subdued demand and
political uncertainty may affect the business of the Company and the
industry at lerge as wall. The Company is aware that uncertainties in
business offer cpportunities as well as downside risks and thus has
idantiflad and put in placa mitigation tools for the same. Some key
fisk areasars.

Procurement risk

Inacountry like India, where more than 60 per cent of the area under
cultivation s not irfgated, farm production is highly vulnerable to
fluctuations in rainfall, Beside preduction risk, Indian farmers also
face high market risk. Farm harvest prices in the country show high
inter and infra year valatility. Price variation is quite pronounced in
the regions and commodities where pnce support mechanism is not
operative, Further adequate availability of key raw materials at the
right prices is crucial for the Company. Being a generic natural
praduct with low yield concentrated in a small region of the World,
production of Basmati depends on the vagaries of nature, Therefore,
any disruption in the supply due to a natural or other calamity or
violenl changes in the cost structure could adversely affect the
Company's ability fo reach its consumers with the right value
proposition. However, we are ready with plans that might help us at
such times. However, the Company's long term relationship with
farmers built on trust ensures constant supply and thus over the
years it has not faced any pracurement problems. Also, adequacy of
irmgation facilities in the Basmati producing regions mitigates these
uncertainties.

High working capital requirement: Basmali rice requires to be
aged for 9-12 months before selling, leading to huge working capital
requiraments, This resulls in low ROCE for the indusiry. Combating
this risk. efficient working capital management system has been set
in place by the Company and cash flowis monitored on daily basis.

Intense competition from unorganized sector: Another
charactenstic of this industry is the presence of unorganized sector
offering basmati in loose unbranded form which intensifies
competition. The Company is moving towards branded products
and has Invested significantly in building a strong brand which helps
indifferentiating their product.

Dividend

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year
2023-24.



Re-Appointment / Resignation of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Jugal
Kishare Arora (DIN 00010704), Director of the Company retires by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Mesting and being eligibla
offers himself for reappointment. Your Dirsctors recommend this
resolution for approval of the members.

The Appointment of Mr. Sunil Sharma (DIN 08639033), Mr. Yash Pal
Mahajan (DIN 08529040 and Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari (DIN -
(10387525} Independent Director had been approved by the
Sharenolders in the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company
hetd on 30th December, 2020 for the period of five consecutive years,
Now the Company wanis to re-appaint these Independent Direclars
on the same term and condition as approved by the shareholder in
their Annual General Meeting held on 30th December, 2020 for furlher
periad of five consecutive years commencing from February 13, 2025
in the forthcoming Annual General Maeting, subject to approval of
Sharahalders,

Your Directors recommand this resolution for approval of the
mempers.

Subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

Kohinoor Foods Limited enjoys its global presence and has well
managed 1o build & premium brand name for its quality in Rice
Branding and Ready to Eat Food and with a view of expansion and
diversification; it has created subsidiary companies for facilitating
these operations in various countries.

A statement containing the performance and highlights of Financial
Statements of subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies is
pravided in Form ACC-1 attached to the Financial Statements forms
part of this Report and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity,

In accordance with section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
have prepared Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
and &l its subsidiaries, which form part of the Annual Report. The
Financiai Statements have been prepared on the historical cost
convention on going concern basis and on accruals basis unless
otherwise staled. The name of companies which have bacome or
ceased to be subsidiary or joint venture or associate companies, if
any, have been mantioned in the notes to the accounts. The financial
statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited (“Helding Company of KFL")
together with its subsidiaries (hereinafier collectively referred fo as
“Group") ere consolidated to farm Consolidated Financial Stalements
(CFS). Consolidated Financial Statements consolidate the financial
statemants of KFL and its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries.

The parent company has not recaived audited financial statement
from ils Joinl venture Company, Rich Rice Raisers LLC. The
Management considers that the parent company is not in position to
exercise control over this enlity. Hence the results of Joint Vanture
Company have not been considered in the Consolidated Financial

Statements. Rich Rice Raisers LLC, in which, KFL hold 25%
shareholding, has closed its operation.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Audited Financial Statement, including the Consofidated Financlal
Statements and related information of the Company and audited
accounts of each of its subsidiaries, are avallable on our website
www kohinoorfoods.infinvesior. These documents will also be
available for inspection during business hours at our Registered
Office.

Further these Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordanca with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
referred o as the 'Ind AS') as nofified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant tosection 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3
of the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016. These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
are prepared under Ind AS. For all periods up to and inciuding the
year ended March 31, 2017, the financial statemeants ware prepared
in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the
section 133 of the Companies Acl 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter
referred 1o a5 'Previous GAAP'} used for its slatulory reporting
requirement in India immediately before adopting Ind AS,

Further the Policy for datermining material subsidiaries as approved
by the Board may be accessed on the Company's website at the link:
www.kohincorfoods. infinvestor

The details of business operations | performance of major
subzidiaries are as below:

Internal Control System

The Company has in place adaquale intemal control systems thal
facilitates the accurate and timely compilation of financial
statements and managemant reports, ensures regulatory and
stalulory compliance, and saleguards investor inlerest by ensuring
the highest level of govemance. The control system ensures that all
assets are safequarded and protected and that the transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported comectly,

A CED and CFD Certificate providad by Jt. Managing Director and
CFO, included in the Corporate Governance Report confirms the
axistence of effective intemal contral systems and procedures In the
Company Internal audit function evaluates the adequacy of, and
compliance with policies, plans, regulatory and statutory
raquiraments, The Internal Auditors directly report to the Board's
Audit Committee, thus ensuring the independence of the process. It
also evaluales and suggests improvement in effectiveness of risk
management, controls and governance process. The Audil
committee and Board provides necessary oversight and directions
lo the Intemal audit funclion and periodically reviews the findings



and ensures comective measures are taken. In the opinion of the
management and the internal auditors, there exists adequate
safeguard against fraud and negligence within tha Company.

Qur Offices as well as the manufacturing facililies endarse thie highest
heaith, safety, security and environmental standards.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place well defined and adequate Internal
Financial Controls which are tested from time to time for necessary
Improvement, if any reguired.

Listing at Stock Exchange

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with BSE Limited and
Mational Stock Exchange of India Ltd The annual listing fee for the
Financial Year 2024-25 has been paid by the Company.

Corporate Governance

Your Company has taken adequate staps to ensure compliance with
the provisions of Corporate Governance as stpulated by the Stock
Exchanges. Pursuant to SEBI (LODRY), Regulation, 2015, a report on
the Corporate Governance, Certificate regarding Compliance,
Secretarial Audit Report and Ji. Managing Director (CEQ) and CFO
cerfication along with the Auditors Certificate has been made part of

the Annual Reporl
Auditors

Mis N C Raj & Associates, Chartered Accountant (FRN: D02248N),
Mew Delni, Statutory Auditors of the Company was appointed as
auditors of the Company for the first term, to holds office from the
conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting to the conclusion of Fifth
Annual General Meeting fo be held till the year 2026, The Board of
Directors has received their consent and they have confirmed their
eligibility to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be
within the prescribed limits and they are not disgualified for re-
appainiment, The Board pursuant to the provisions of Section 138,
142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
on the recommendation of the Audit Commitiee has considerad the
appointmantof Mis N C Raj & Associates, Charfered Accountant, New
Delhi (Firm Registration No. 002249N), as Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office from the concluslon of ensuing Annual
General Mesating till the conclusion of Fifth Annual General Meeting to
be held in the year 2026 The Board of Direclors accordingly
recommends their reappointment as Statutory Auditors,

Auditors Report

Thi Company has received the Auditors Report duly signed by Mz N
C Raj & Associates, Charterad Accountants, New Delhi and took note
on the same. Further as mentionad in the Auditors Report, aftention is
drawn (Emphasis of Matters) to notes to the Financial Statements, the
same has not been reproduced for the sake of brevity as the remarks
given by the Auditors are self-explanatory, however the Beard has

discussed the same in details as had been provided in the noles to
the Financial Statements,

CostAuditors

The Cost Auditor Mis Cheena and Associates appointed as Cost
Accountants of the Company for the year 2023-24 and has
completed the audil of the cosl record of the Company. The Cosl
Audit Repord does not contain any gualification, resarvation or
adversa remark,

The Board pursuant to the provisiens of Section 148 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory
maodification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force),
has approved the appointment of M's Cheena & Associates, Cosl
Accountant Firm to conduct the audit of the cost records of the
Company for the financial year ending on March 31, 2025 and
remuneration to be paid subject to rectification by shareholders.

Secretarial Audit

The Board of Directors pursuant to the Provision of Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013, has appointed Mis, MANK and
Associates, Company Secretary Firm, (having FCS Ne, 10248 and
CP No. 19684) to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
Financial Year 2024-2025.

Secretarial Audit Report

The Secretarial Auditor M's MANK and Associates, Company
Secretaries, appointed for the year 2023-24 and has completed the
secretanal audit of the Company. The Secretanal Audit Report as
recelved from the Practicing Company Secretary is annexed to the
Annual Report as Form Mo-MR-3. As per the Secretarial Audit
Report the Company has complied with all the applicabla acts, laws,
rules and regulations and does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

Internal Auditor

The terms of Mis. N N A & Co, Chartered Accountanis, New Delni,
who was appointed as Intemal Auditor of the Company for the
Financial Year 2023-24 expired on 31st March, 2024,

Your Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee have
approved Lhelr appaintment in the Board Meeting dated 29th May,
2024, for the financial year 2024-25,

Daposits

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any
depositunder ChaplerV of the Companies Act, 2013,

Share Capital of the Company

Dunng the year under review, the Company did not issue egquity
shares, The paid up Share Capital of the Company is amounting to
Rs. 370,715,300/~ comprising of 37,071,530 equity shares of Rs.



10{-each,

Board Meetings

The Board is headed by an executive Chairman. As on 31st March
2024, the Board of Directors consisted of Six Directors, including
Chairman, Joint Managing Dirgctors, Woman Director, Independent
Direclor and others.

Four (4) Board Meetings were held during the year 2023-24, i.e. on
29th May, 2023, 14th August, 2023, 14th November 2023 and 14th
February, 2024 and the gap between two meetings did excead 120
days as per relaxation granted under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) vide its General Circular No. 11/2020 dated 24th March, 2020.
Audit Committes Meetings

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met Four (4) imes
i.&. on 29th May, 2023, 144 August 2023, 14th November 2023 and
1dth February, 2024 and the gap between two meetings did exceed
120 days as per relaxation granted under the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) wide its General Circular Mo. 11/2020 dated 24th March,
2020, The minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committes are noted
by thve Board.

Nomination and Remuneration Committes

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committes met Two (2) times i.e. on 14th August, 2023 and 14th
November, 2023. The minutes of ihe meelings of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committes are noted by the Board.

Remuneration Policy

On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Commitiee, the Board has formulated Remuneration Policy for
appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior
Managament and theirremuneration.

The Remuneration Policy of the Company forms part of this Report
and may be accessed on the Company's website on the fink:
www kohinoarfoods. infinvesior,

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil mechanism

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors
and Employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior,
actual or suspected, fraud or viglation of the Company's code of
conduct or ethics policy or any other grievances, the details of
which are given In the Corporate Govarnance Repart. The Whistle
Blower Policy may be accessed on the Company's website on the
link www. kohinoorfoods.infinvastor,

Particulars of Loan Given, Investment made, Guarantees given
and Securities Provided
Particulars of loans given, investments made, guaraniess and

securilies provided under section 186 of the Companies Acl, 2013 are
provided in the notes of standalone Financials statement and well

within the limit approved by the Shareholders of the company.
Present status of litigations

During the Financial Year 2023-24 the Company went through some
Itigations in taxation, banking and rce business. Brief of the
litigations is mentioned below:

Contingent and Other particulars:-
Lontingent Lishiliies nat provided for
{Rs. In Lacs)
Parbiulars M-Ar-2124 | 3 4ke-X023
4 Clams agans the campany . not acdmowedged
i [
| 1incams Tas 032202 1032302
i | Gales Tax - Delri 12200 13200
il ) VAT-Haryana 74007 M0y
i | Excme & Tasation Depamment, Puah 45564 45537
v | Excise Duty 428 4241
il ] Serace Tax o1z g12
il | Vat-Defi - 2063
wiil | Legal Cases against the Company A 36394
B | Bark Cuaranees 1975 1875
Sursty Bonds ismed ta (o, Agerces undar
3 EPCG/ Aty Licerse scheme AEEAU HEEH

Fallowing appeals are lying pending for hearing before the CIT(A),
Mew Delhif Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi/ Hon'ble Delhi
High Couri against the tax demand raised in impugned Income Tax
Assessment Orders as perdatails given below -

[§i Tan Iriterest Tatal
2002401 to 2008 -09 Z9R01 10640 a0
2009:10 - .
201011 FETIFS 1347 56 367511
20112 B3577 78020 161557
A1 127458 101998 229457
FATENE] ] TR CRi]
2014-15 TIES 15385 12518
HNE-1T 75T 1205 40443
Total 1032202

As per the advice received from legal experts and on the basis of
mert of the case, there is a high probability that the aforesaid
impugned orders will be set aside and the demand will be deletad,
Accordingly, management is of the view that no provision in respect
of the above demands is required to be made in the books of
accounis,

Further to above, for assessmant year 2012-13/2014-15/2016-
17, We had contested the matter before CIT{Appeal), based on
our submission, our appeal was considerad, the addition on
cartain matters were partially allowed in the case of Transfer
Pricing lssue. On Corporate lssue complete addition was allowed
to be reversed and thus the addition was nullified. The appeal



effect against the order of CIT (Appeal) is awaited for all threa
assessment years. For pending ssues we are in appeal before the
Honorable ITAT.

For assessment year 2013-14, we had received a Nil Order from
CIT (Appeal), the department have gone into appeal before ITAT
we are in process offilling cross objection in respo nse tothe same.

An appeal has been filed with CIT [A) on 11-08-2021 against an
order passed towards addition of Hs. 2860.54 Lacs againsttransfer
pricing adjustmentin respectofA.Y 2017-2018 althoughthere is na
liability on the company since no demand has been raised by the
departmeant, but, this has impacted in the reduction of losses by the
abowe amount, With regard the Nofice received we had filed appeal
before Honorable I TAT.

An appeal has been filed with CIT {A) on 07-12-2021 against an
order passed towards addition of Rs, 781.57 Lacs agansl transfer
pricing adjustmentin respect of AY 2018-201% although thereis no
liability on the company since no demand has been raised by the
department, but, this has impacted in the reduction of losses by the
abowe amount. With regard the Notice received we had filed appeal
before Honorable ITAT.

An appeal before the Sales Tax Commissioner - Appeals, New
Delhiis lying pending in respect of Sales Tax demand of Rs.122.00
Lacson sale of REP Licenses made inearier years.

Following appeals are also lying pending before the Appellate
Authorities/Tribunal, Haryana as mentioned in coloumn, 4
against the impugned VAT Assessment Orders/Revision
Order passed by the assessing authorities as mentioned in
column. 3 ofthe table given below :-

Deman
: d Aesessing
Particulars Authariy Appellaze Authoniy
Rzl
1Cal.1) (Lol iCald {Cold)
Sules Taw Murttal - AY 2008-09 | 73235 | RevisiunFandabiad EE‘:;m
Siavies Tax - Wurthal - AY 2009 - s Tribuanal-
10 772 | Revisian-Fandabad Chiaadigah
Tofal TAOOT

Mote : The Appellata Autharily has remanded back the above cases to
Revision Authority, Rahtak | Assessing Authority, Sonipat

Appeals are lying pending before the Dy Excise & Taxation
Commissioner-Appeal, Punjab against the Order received from
Excise and Taxation Deptt., Punjab in respect of Year 2008-10 and
2010-11 demanding a sum of Rs. 45041 Lacs towards the cess
imposed by the State Govt. on exporfs. The company has challenged
the validity of impasition of cess on export in its appeal as the same is
not permissible under ariicle 286 of the Constitulion of India. Further
demand has been raised for Rs. 5.41 Lacs after completing the Sales
Tax assessment for AY 2011-12 against which appeal has been filed.

An appeal before the Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appeliate
Tribunal, Mew Delhi is lying pending against the order of
Commissioner of Central Excise (Appeals), Delhi-lll in respact of
additional excise duty of Rs, 4281 Lacs demanded by the Excise
department in connection of dispule aver classification of goods -
food product produced at Bahalgarh Factory- as per the Central
Tariff Act. As the matter is stil pending before the Tribunal, no
pravision in the books of accounts have been made.

During the financial year 2016-17, the company has received an
order from Hon'ble Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal, New Delhi (CETSTAT) against the order passed by
Commissioner of Service Tax (Adjudication}, New Delhi demanding
a service lax of Rs.258.25 Lacs. The Hon'tle CETSTAT vide its
arder dated 16/02/2017 has granted major relief of Rs.250.13 Lacs
against the aforesaid demand,

VAT-Delhi had raised the demand of T26.93 Lacs againstpending 'F'
forms in respect of years 2015-2016 & 2016-2017. Panding F forms
were related to six quarter out of the above, for five quarter all F
forms were submitted and an order dated 16-D8-2022 has been
recelved, nullifying the demands of these quarter. For quarter one
for the year 2016- 2017 F forms ara pending there a demand of Rs.
22 63 Lacs had been raized by VAT-Delhi, Appeal against the said
arder has been filed with VAT-Delhi. The Department has passad an
order nullifying the demand, thus there is no liability to the discharge
with regard to "F" Form.

The Company has received Notices from the Banks under section
13(2) of Tha Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets
and Enforcement of Secunty Interest Act, 2002, inthe month of July,
2018 ta May, 2018 and in the month of February 2020 to Septembar
2020. The Company has replied to the notices received from the
Bank within 60 days from the date of notices. The Company has also
received Notices from the Banks under section 13{4) of The
Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and
Enforcement of Secunity Interest Act, 2002, The Company has
already approached Banks wilth suilable resolution plan for their
consideration which the consortium has sanctioned. The Banks has
also served letter for failure of resolution plan submitied by the
Company. An extension to the resolution plan was also granted by
the Lenders

The Lead Bank have filed petition against Company before Hon'ble
MCLT Bench Chandigarh, the company is contesting the matter and
the petition is yet to be admitted.

The Company has filed an appeal before Hon'ble High Court,
Punjab & Haryana for stay. The Hon'ble High Court has granted
Indarim stay.

One of the member Consortium Bank have filad petition against
Company before Hon'ble NCLT Bench Chandigarh, the company is



contesting the matter and the petition |s yelto be admitted.

The Company has received an ex parte interim order from Debt
Recovery Tribunal-lll, Delhi dated 25/06/2020 restraining the
company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing with, or
disposing off or encumbering or creating any third party interest with
respect of the hypothecaled asselsimmovable properties of the
Company until further orders, The company is contesting the matter
against the ex parte interim order, The Company s contesting the
maltter and filedils reply fo L4 and also fled reply to OA before DRT-II,
Dethi,

The Company has recelved a Notice through speed post from DRT-11,
Mew Dethi. The Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT Delni against
the Company under section 19(4) of the Act. The matteris listed bafore
the registrar for completing of pleading. The company is contesting the
matter. The company has filed an appeal against the honorable DRT-
lll, Delhi PO order before honorable DRAT-|, Delhi. The honorable
DRAT-1, Delhi accepted the pefition of the company.

& summon/notice had been received from the Directorate of
Enforcement, Central Regional Office, Govemment of India, in the
name of The Director, o appear before them along with varous
document. The Directorauthorized representative of the company
submitted relevant documents before the authorities! offices |
depariments.

Anotice had been received from Central Bureau of Investigation in the
name of The Director, Kohinoor Foods Limited te produce
documentsiinformation in persen before them. The Director |
authorized representative of the company submitted relevant
documents before the authenties! offices  departments,

The Company has submitted its revised resolution proposal with the
Consortium Banks and the same is under consideration by member
Banks and is requested to present the same: at their respective
consortium meeting/Board. The promaders of the Company requested
to approve the reguirements of the resolution proposal, which is at
presentunder consideration with the Consortium Lenders.

The Company has received Legal Notice from the Punjab Mational
Bank, Hong Kong in regard o outstanding indebtedness due amount
(inclusive of interest up fo date). The matter is now being taken up
FNB Dubai and tha Company had submittad its OTS proposal and has
depaosited the upfront amount and requested to process the Company
0TS Proposal and forward the same to their Board/Head Office for
approval, whichis at present in consideration.

The Board of Trustee of the port of Mumbal has filed a monay suit for
recovery lowards alleged outstanding demurrage charges against
which the Company has filed its counter claim towards the financial
losses, interest on the investmeant, refund of the license fees, refund of
the demurrage charges, compensation and damages efc. The matter

15 still pending.

The company's vendor has filed an execution petition before
Faridabad District & Session Judge. The company is contesting the
matier. The company has also approached Hon'ble High Court
Chandigarh for stay on above matter. The Respondent has alsofiled
an Instant Application in the matter The Company has also
approached Hon'ble High Court Delhi for stay on above matter.
Further, the Company filed a petition before the Hon'ble Apex Court
with regard lo conlesling of proceeding before District and Session
Court, Faridabad. The Hon'ble Apex Court had allowed the company
petition with granting relief to the Company and parties against the
impugned order of Faridabad District Court and asked the Company
to deposit INR 50 Lakhs each in two tranches in a gap of two weeks
before the Hon'ble High Court for seeking direction for further refief.
The Company has also deposited the above amount in compliance
with the order of Apex Court.

The Municipal Corporation has issued notice to the Builder of
Pinnacle Tower for vacating of premises Pinnacle Tower, at
Surajkund Faridabad. The Builder had obtained interim stay on the
order of Municipal Commissioner, Faridabad from Hen'ble High
Court Punjab and Haryana. The Company also filed a petition
against Municipal Corporation & other before the Civil Judge, Senior
Division, Fandabad with regard to stay of proceeding against order
of Municipal Corporation, Faridabad. The Hon'ble Faridabad Court
has staled that alrsady interim stay have been granted by the
Hon'ble High Courl, hence na ground to grant relief prayed for is
made out at this stage.

The Company has received a letler from one ef the Consortium
member Bank reganding assignment of Debt of Company vide their
assignmeant agresment dated 10.05.2024 where the Bank has
stated that it has assigned all its night in relation to the outstanding
exposure of the Company.

Anemail has been received from SEB! regarding examination in the
matter of the Company. The Deparmenl has soughl certain
clarification and documents which had been dully submitied by the
Company.

The observations of the Auditer with regard to the management
asseszment of the Company's ability to continue as going concem in
view of the liguidity problems/decrease in business. The
management of the Company believes that it can continue as a
going concam, based on the Resolution Plan and after of one time
setilement submitted to the Banks by Company and the interest
shown by Prospective Investors in the Company.

All other litigations are mentioned in the note on Contingent Liability
inthe Balance Sheet for the financial year 2023-24.

Contractand Arrangements with Related Partles



In terms of Section 188 of the Act read with rules framed thereunder

and Regulation £3 of the Listing Regulations. your Company has in
placa Related Parly Transactions Policy for dealing with related parly
fransactions. The policy may be accessed under the Corporale
Governance section on the website of the Company at: hitp:
llkohineorfoods in/pdfiPalicy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf,
All the related party transactions that were entered and executed
turing the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the
ordinary course of business and within permissible framework of
Section 188 of the Act and Rules made thereunder read with
Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations. There were no materially
significant related party transactions made by the Company during the
year that would have required the approval of the shareholders. The
details of the transactions with the related parties are provided in the
accompanying financial statements. There wera no related party
transaction made during the vear that are required to be disclosed in
the FormAQC-2.

Conservation of Energy, Research and Development,
Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earning and
Outgo

The particulars as prescribed in sub-section (3) of Section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014 are enclosed asAnnexure B to this Report.

Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosure

Interms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2011 3read with Rules 5{2) and 5{3) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a
siatement showing the names and other particulars of the
employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in
thesaid rules are given asunder:

i)  There are no Employee, employed throughout the year and In
receiptof remuneration of Rs. 1,02,00,0004- or mare per annum.

ii)  Thereare no Employee, employed part of the year and in receipt
of remuneration of Rs. 8,50,000/- or more per manth during any
partof the year.

Disclosures perlaining to remuneration and other details as

required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are set oulin the annexure-

Dtothis report.

Having regard to the provisions of Section 136(1) read with its
relevant provisa of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board's Report is
being sent to the members without some annexures. The said
annexures are available for inspection at the Registered |
Corporate Office of the Company during working hours and any
member interested in obiaining such annexures may write fo the

Company Secrelary and the same will be furnished free of cost,
ExtractofAnnualReturn

In accordance with Section 134(3){a) of the Companias Act,

2013, the extract of the annual return in Form No, MGT -9 s

enclosed asAnnexure Clothis Report.
Management's Discussion and Analysis Report

Pursuan! to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disciosure Regquiremenis) Regulations, 2015 (Listing
Regulations), a Management Discussion and Analysis Report
and & Reporton Corporate Governance is attached in & separate
section forming partofthe Annual Report.

A Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company
regarding the Compliance by the Company of the conditions
stipulated in Requlations Part C of Schedule YV of the Listing
Requlationsis also attached with this report.

A declaration by the Managing Director pursuant to Regulations
Part C of Schedule V ofthe Listing Regulations stating that all the
Board Members and Senlor Managemeni Personnel of the
Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct,
during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, is also
attached withthis report.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pursuant lo section 134(5) of The Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors confirm that:

@)  Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended
31stMarch, 2024, the applicable accounting standards read
with requirements set out under Schedule 1l to the Act, had
been followed and there are no material depariures fram the
same,

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policles and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimales that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the Company
forthe yearended onthat date,

¢} the Directors had taken proper and sufficlent care for the
maintenance of adeguate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and otherirregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts ona 'going
concern' basls;

e] the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Campany and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and



f) the Directors had devised proper systems o ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Awards & Recognitions

Since |ts inception, the Company has been earning awards and
recognition |ike consumer validated Super Brand Award (thrice in
series), Reader's Digest Most Trusted Brand award (4 limes in a
row), Power Brand Award, Guinness Book of World Record (for
making World's Largest Biryani), National award faor Export
Excelience, Brand Eguity Award & many APEDAawards.
Corporate Social Responsibility

As per provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,
all companies having net worth of Rs. 500 crores or more, or
furnoverof Rs.1,000 crores or more ora net profitof Bs. 5 crores or
maore during any financial year are required to constilute a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committes of Board of
Directors comprising three or more directors, at least one of whom
should be an Independent Director and such Company shall spend
2% ofthe average net profits ofthe Company made during the three
immedialely preceding financial years.

Accardingly a detailed CSR Policy was framed by the Company
with the appravals of the CSR Committes and Board. The Palicy,
inter alia, caversthe following:

Bhilosophy

Scope

st of CSR activities

Modalities of execution of projects/programmes
Implementation through C3R Cell

Maoriloring assessment of projectsiprogrammes

C5SH Policy gives an overview of the projects or programmes which
are proposed Io be undertaken by the Company in the coming years.

The composition of the CSR Committes

A Commitiee of the directors, titled 'Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee’, was constituted by the Board with the following members:

1. Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandar (Chairperson)
2. Mr. Satnam Arora
3. Mr. Gumam Arora

As thi Average net Profit/(Loss) of the Company for last three financial
years prior to 2023-24 comes to average net loss and therefore the
Company is not stalutorily required to spent amount as prescribed for
CSR expenditure,

Kohinoor alsa envisions to improve lives in communitias we live
around, protect workplace rights, respect peaple, support missions

that help people have a beller life, provide good jobs, world class
quality products and a healthy environment to all of us around.

Al Workplace, Kohinoor Foods maintain high standards for fair and
dignified treatment of all the people who work for our Company. For
all of its employees, it is not just a place to work, but like another
home and everybody in it like a big family, closely bonded with each
other.

Kohingor Foods also believes that a Company is as good as the
people who work for it - their combined talenis; kills, knowledge,
expernience and passion make a company whatitis.

Hence, Company's continuous goal is fo inspire and motivate its
people to hane their talents, increase their knowledge & skills and
achieve extraordinary resulis at theirworkplace. In this endeavor we
have offered subsidized meals to our employees at a very nominal
cost,

Adherence 1o global human rights standards, Mo minor labour, Falr
trade practices, complete Medical facilities for ils people, Safe &
sound working environment are the things that Kohinoor Foods take
utmost care aboul,

The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company's website at the
limk; www kehinoorfoods. iniinvestor

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the
workplace. The Company has in place a Sexual Harassment Policy
in compliance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. Tha Company always endeavors to create and provide an
environment that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassmant. The Sexual Harassment Committee
has been sel up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment,

The Directors further state that during the year under review, there
were no cases fled pursuan! ta the Sexual Harassment of Women al
Workplace | Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declarations from all the
Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of
independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the
Companies Acl, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Requiation, 2015.

Board Evaluation

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requiremients) Regulations, 2015, it is mandatory that the Board




shall monitor and review the Board Evaluation Framework, The

Companies Act, 2013 siates that a formal annual evaluation needs io
be made by the Board of its own perdormance and that of its
committees and individual Directors. Schedule IV of the Companies
Act. 2013 and Regulation 17 (10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 states that the
performance evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by the
entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated.

The Board and lhe Nemination and RBemuneration Commiltee

reviewed the performance of the individual Directors on the basis of
the crileria and framework adopled by the Board. In addition, the
performance of Board as a whole and commitiees were evaluated by
the Board after seeking inputs from all the Direciors on the basis of
various criteria.

In a separate meeling of Independent Directors, performance of Mon-
Independent Directors, performance of Board as a whole and
performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the
views of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The
evaluation process has been explained in the Corporate Governance
Report section of the Annual Report,

Training of Independent Directors

The Company Secretary of the Company conducted a detailed
fraining programme o providelupdate the changes in the SEBI
{LODR], Regulation, 2015/Companies Act. 2013 and other relevant
act to the Independant Directors.

Further, the Company Issues a formal letter of appoiniment io
Independent Directars outlining their roles, responsibilities, functions
and dutles as an Independent Direclor. The formal of the lelter of
appointment is avallable on the Company's website at the link:

www kohingorfoods infinvestar
General

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporfing is reguired In
respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these
ilems during the year under review:

1. Delailsrelating to deposits covered under Chapter ¥ of the Act.

2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as lo dividend,
voting or otherwise,

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employee of
the Company under any scheme.

4.  Issue of Employees Stock Option to employee of the Company
under any schame.

5. Meither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Direciors of
the Company receive any remuneration or commission from any
ofits subsidiaries.

8, No significant or material orders were passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the gaing
concem stalus and Company’s operations in fulure sxcepl as
disclosed in the Annual Report.

7. Business Responsibility Report as per Reguiation 34 (2)(f) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015, descnbing the initiatives taken by them
from an environmental, social and govemance perspective is
nol applicable lo the Company, for the financial year 2023-
2024 a5 per the SEBI Circular SEBVLAD-NROIGN/2015-16/27
daled 22nd December, 2015 and Freguently Asked Cluestions
issued by SEBI on SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 dated 29th January, 2016

Acknowledgment

Your Dirsctors would ke to express lheir appreciation for lhe
assistance and co-operation recelved from the Banks, Government
Authorities, Customers, Vendors and Members during the year
under review. Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude, the
commitment and dedlication of the employees al all levels that has
coniribuled lo the growth and success of the Company,

For and on Behalf of the Board

Sdi- 5d-

Satnam Arora Gurnam Arora

Jt. Managing Director Jt. Managing Directoy
DIN ; 00010667 DIN: 00010731

Place ; Fardabad
Date : AUGUST 13, 2024



ANNEXURE "A’ TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT - REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Philosophy

The Campany has always maintained an infegrated way of thinking, which is reflected in the funclioning of the Board and
corporate governance framework. A Company's relationship with its investors is an impertant component of corporate
governance. The Board of Directors believes in uphelding the highest standards of accountability and actively participates
in overseeing risks and strategic management. The board fully supports and endorses corporate governance practices in
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 27 of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The pnmary objective of corporate govemance is to create and adhere to a corporate culture of
conscience and consciousness, transparency and openness, to develop capabilities and identify opportunities that best
serve the goal of value creation. Our corporate governance framework ensures that we make timely disclosures and share
accurate infarmation regarding our financials and performance, as well as the leadership and governance of the Company.
Cver the years, we have strengthened governance practices, These practices define the way business is conducted and
valugis generaled.

Cur corporate governance framework has helped us o be aligned with the new guidelines of the Companies Act, 2013 as
well as the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. We believe that an active, wall
infarmed and independent board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of corporate governance.

Board of Directors

As on 31st March, 2024, the Company is managed and controlled by Board of Directors which has an optimal combination
of Executive, Mon-Executive and Independent Directors. The Board is headed by an Executive Chairman, the Board of
Directors consisted of Six Directars, including Chairman / Whole-time Direstor, Joint Managing Directors, Woman Directar,
Independent Directors,

Ason 3stMarch, 2024, none of the Directors on the Company's Board was a Director inmore than 20 Companies, neither a
Chairman of more than five Committees nor 8 member of more than 10 Committees in accordance with Companies Act,
2013 and SEB| (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Further, all the Directors have made
necessary disclosures regarding their Directorship and Chairmanship/ Committes Membership in other Companies as per
the requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Qbligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015.
The Board membaers possess the requisite skills, expenence and expertise to guide the Company.

Mone of the Directors had relafionship inter-se, except Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, Mr. Satnam Arora and Mr. Gurnam Arora,
being related to eachotheras brothers,

The Board Members are provided with necassary documenis/brochures, reports and internal palicies to enable them lo
familiarize themselves with the Company's procedures and practices. Directors are periodically advised about the changes
effected in Corporate Laws, Listing Regulations with regard to their roles, rights and responsibilities as Director of the
Company.

The familiarisation programme along with details of the same imparted fo the Independent Directors are available on the
website ofthe Company hitps:// www.kohinnarfoods.in

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises highly gualified members who possess reguired skills, expertise and
compelance that allow them to make effective conlribufions to the Board and its Commiittees.

While all the Board members possess the skillsidentified, their area of core expertise is given below:



Mature of Skills/Expertise
: i Risk
Name of the Corporate Industry Financial . Gover | Techn
Directors Leadership | Experience | Acumen Diversity nance | ology Mana?amun

Shri Jugal Kishore f

A y 3 y Y y | y
Shri Satnam Arora b 3 y N Y y 3
Shri Gumam Arora Y 3 v y Y v +
Shri Sunil Sharma y + v v \ v 3
Shri Yash Pal Mahajan y y v v y i 3
Sml. Mani Chandra f

Bhandari v ! v v ! v v

Four (4) Board meetings were held during the Financial Year 2023-2024 and the gap between two meetings did exceed 120 days as per
relaxation granted under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 11/2020 dated 24th March, 2020. The dates,
onwhich the Board meetings were held, are 28th May, 2023, 14th August 2023, 14th November 2023 and 14th February, 2024,

Dates for the Board Meetings are decided well in advance and the Agenda, along with the supporting documents, explanatary noles and
information, &s enumerated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation, 2015, are made available to the
Board along with the notice of respective meetings or soon after the notice. The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws
applicable to the Company. The Company undertakes steps to rectify instances of non-compliance, if any.,

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, along with their atiendance at the Board Meetings held during the year ended 31st
March, 2024, and atthe last Annual General Meeting, and the number of other Directorship and Chairmanship/ Membership of Committees

held by them, are given below:

MNo. of Board | Whether Committee No. of
Mame of the Director Meestings attended | MNo. of other |position n{ﬂther Eq;.tity
attended the last |Directorships®| Companies™ Shares held
Executive (Promoter) during tenure AGHM Chairman | Member
Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora
(Whole-time Director, 2 Mo il Mil Mil 1.053.484
designated as Chairman)
Mr, Satnam Arora 4 No 3 Nil 2 |5,749,158
{Joint Managing Directar) i
Mr. Gurnam Arora : :
{Joint Managing Director) 4 fes 1 Nil Nil 6,289,204
Mon - Executive and Independent
Mr. Sunil Sharma 4 Yes Mil Nil Mil Mil
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan Bl Yes Mil Mil Mil Mil
Wi ManChaade Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil
 Bhandari

“This Includes Directorship in public limiled companies (including subsidiaries of public imited companies) and excludes Dirsclorship in
associations, private, foreign and Section 8 companies.

“*Represents Chairmanship/Membership of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship
{Shareholdersiinvestors’ Grievance) Commiffee, this includes Chairmanship/Membership in public limited companies (including
subsidiaries of public imited companies) and exciludes Chairmanship/Membership in private, foreign and Section § companies,



INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SEBI(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS ), REGULATIONS,
2015, RELATINGTODIRECTORS AS ON DATE OF APPROVALOF DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Mr.JugalKishore Arora(DIN-00010704) Chairman of the Company.

He is associated with the Organization since its inception and has completed his Graduation from Punjab University, He has
been looking after and is in-charge of Procurement as well as the Production of the Company. His vast experiences of more
than three decades in the rice industry, together with a sharp eye for detail, have reaped rich dividends. In fact, he has been
largely responsible for the wide acceptance that the Company's Basmati Brands enjoyed all over the World today, Mr. Arora set
up the firstrice procassing plant at Amritsar followed by rice processing plants at Murthal (Haryana) and Food Processing Plant
at Bahalgarh, Sonipat. His major contribution is in the areas of quality standardization. He has pioneered the development of
different quality parameters for Indian basmati rice by carrying out extensiva interactions with the farmers, agro-scientists and
research personnel for the betterment of basmati rice, the quality and output at the domestic level. Today, he is engaged in
providing strategic direction to the Company's business: taking the overall charge of procuring raw-material (paddy) and
selecting the optimum growing region etc. and setting "QUALITY" standards for the Company's range of rice-offerings.

Heis a Director of Sachdeva Brothers Pvl, Lid. and some of the Pyl. Lid. Companies.
Heholds 1,053 484 (2.84%) Equity Sharesafthe Company inhizownname ason 31atMarch, 2024,

Mr. SatnamArora (DIN-00010667) Jt. Managing Directorofthe Company.

He has completed his education 35 a Masterin Economics from Punjab University and has been involved in the family business
of trading of Basmati Rice right from the beginning. He has vast experience in marketing the rice in overseas market. Mr.
Satnam Arora has been looking after Export Marketing as wall as he is responsible for Banking, Finance, Taxation, Legal and
Secretanal as well, The fact that the Company has taken a Commanding Share of the Basmati Export Market is largely
because of the sincere effords and initiative taken by Mr. Satnam Arora. He strongly believes that success in life can be
achieved only with self-confidence and bellef. In order to bring significant exposure to his organization, he has been a part of
several Indusiry association like FICC|, ASS0OCHAM, AIREAIAIl India Rice Exporters Association) and APEDAetc.

He Is a director of Satnam Haegens Ltd., Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd., Kohinoor Foods USA, Inc. and some of the Pyt Ltd.
Companies.

He holds 5,749,158 (15.51%) Equity Shares of the Company in his own name as on 31st March, 2024,

Mr. Gurnam Arora{DIN-00010731)Jt. Managing Director ofthe Company.

He is having vast experience and skills and has been instrumental in providing a new strategic focus lo the rice industry froma
commodity driven business to a branded category,. After completion of Graduation degree, he joined the family business of rice
trading. Over the years, Mr. Gurnam Arora learnt the intricacies of the business and demonsirated his strategic approach &
acumen by successfully marketing & promoting Company's products in national & international markets. Amongst other career
milestones, he has played a key role in intreducing convenient packaging options and many mare value additions for the
consumers. He has overthree decades of experiencein rice industry.

Wr. Gumam Arora has been looking after Domestic Marketing, Purchase, Administration, HR, Quality Control and day to day
Corporate Affairs of the Company. Mr. Gurnam Arora's broad vision helped the Company to increase its value. He was the
President of All India Rice Exporters Association and a member of the Basmati Development Fund, APEDA and Ministry of
Commerce and also associaled with varicus industry associations like FICCI, ASSOCHAM elc.

Heis aDirectorof Batnam Haegens Ltd., Sachdeva Brothers Pyt Lid. and some ofthe Pyt. Ltd. Companies.
He holds 6,289,204 (16.97%) Equity Shares of the Company in his ownnameas on 31stMarch, 2024,




Mr. Sunil Sharma (DIN-08699033) Independent Director ofthe Company.

He is a Commerce Graduate with over four decades experience in Hospitality Industry and had served various
senior position with organization such as Sudhir Power Limited, Antara Senior Living, Max Healthcare Limited,
Sudhir Gensets, Limited, Country Inn and Suits, Satnam Overseas and also having sufficient expertise in Strategic
Operational Business, Finance, Operations and People Management. Because of his vast aperational exposure,
he has been appointed as an Independent Director of the Company.

He started his carrier in the year 1976 to 1989 as department head at various position in Saudi Arabia, Egypt and
Washingten DC and thereafter also served various region in India with senior position as General Manager / Project
Specialist.

He is the member of Audit Committee, Namination and Remuneration Committee of the Kohinoor Foods Limited.

He does not hold any share ofthe Companyin his name ason 31stMarch, 2024,

Mr.Yash PalMahajan{DIN-08692040) Independent Director ofthe Company.

Heis a Marine Engineer and an entrepreneur with over four decades experience in Hospitzlity Industry and had served various
senior position in India and abroad such as The OBEROI and Shipping Corporation of India and 2lso having sufficient expertise
in Managemant, Engineering Maintenance, Project Management and Operations. Because of his vast exposure, he has been
appointed as an Independent Diractor ofthe Company.

He started his carrier in the year 1972 to 1976 as Engineer on Ship with the Shipping Corporation of India and had also served
as Chief Engineer / Director Engineer with The OBERAI from 1976 to 2008 in Saudi Arabia, Middle East and India and
ihereafter from 2008 to till date he is an Engineering Consultant and an Entrepreneur as a Partner with a Parinership Firm'
'Surya Electro Control* having works at Punjab and Himachal Pradesh,

He is the member of Audit Commitlee, Nomination and Remuneration Commillee of the Kohinoor Foods Limited.

He does not hold any share of the Company in his name as on 315t March, 2024,

Mrs. ManiChandraBhandari(DIN-00387585) Independent Director ofthe Company.

She is a Science Graduate and an entrepreneurwith rich experience of around four decadesin runining export organization and
experiance in Garments Industry and also having sufficient expertise in Management, Designing and Crder Procurement
Because of her vasl exposure, she has been appointed as an Independent Director of the Campany,

Sheis a Director of Chandramani Private Limited and Chandermani Exports Private Limited.

Sheisa Chairperson of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committes
and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Kohinoor Foods Limited.

She doesnot holdany share of the Company in his name as on 31st March, 2024,




BOARDCOMMITTEES

The Board of Directors has constituted the following Committees of Directors with adeguate delegation of powers Lo discharge
the Company's reguisite business:

Audit Committes

Stakeholder Relationship (Shareholders'/Investars' Grievance) Committae.

Nomination and Remuneration Committes

Corporate Social Responsibility Committes

The minutes of the meetings of all such commitiees were placed before the Board for discussion/nofing.

Detail of the composition, number of meetings held during the year, attendance of members and scope of the committzes are a3
below:

Audit Committes

The Company has an Audit Committee which deals in matters relating to financial reporting and internal cantrols. All the
members are financially literate. Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, who has the expertise in the accounting and financial
management is the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. Mr. Sunil Sharma, Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan and Mrs. Mani Chandra
Bhandari are responsible for Finance, Accounting, Banking, Taxation, Secretarial & Legal and other departmental head were
also prasent from time to time apart from the Internal Auditors and Stalutory Auditors, wha were the permanent invitees, The
Company Secretary acts as Secretary tothe Committee.

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee was present at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th
September, 2023 to answer member queries.

As on March 31, 2024, the Committee's composition meets with requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI|Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Members of the Audit Committee possess financial
faccounting expertise f exposure.

During the year under review, the Audit Committes met Four (4) times i.e. on 28th May, 2023, 14th August 2023, 14th November
2023 and 14th February, 2024 and the maximum time gap between any fwo consecutive meetings has exceed 120 Days as per
relaxation granted under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular Mo, 1172020 dated 24th March, 2020,

The minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee are noted by the Board. The details of the composition of the Committee,
meetings held, attendance atthe meetings along, are given below.

Name Position Meetings Attended
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandan Chairperson 4
Mr. Sunil Sharma Member 4
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan Member 4




Scope ofthe Audit Committes

The Audit Committee, inter alia, supports the Board to ensure an effective internal control enviranment. The Committee discharges
such duties and functions with powers generally indicated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 with the Stock Exchangas.

The scope ofthe Audit Committee is as follows:
Powers of Audit Committes

1,

Toinvestigate any activity withinits terms of reference,

2. Toseekinformation from any employes.

3, Tooblainoutside legalor other professional advice,

4, Tosecureattendance of outsiders with relevantexpertise, ifitconsiders necessary,

Terms of Reference

- Dverseeing the Company's financial reparting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
slatements are correct, adeguate and credibie;

- Recommending la {he Board, the appointment, re-appaintment and, if required, the replacement ar removal of the Slatutory
Auditors and the fixation of audit fee;

- Approving paymentto Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them,
Reviewing, with the management, the Annual Financial State ments and auditor's report thereon before submission lo the Board
forapproval, with particularreferenceto:

{a) Matters required fo be included in the Director's Respansibility Staterment to be included in the Board's report in terms of clause
(c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 ofthe Companies Act, 2013;

(b) Changes,ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

(e} Majoraccounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

(d) Significantadjustments made in the financial statements arising outof auditfindings;

te} Compliancewith listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

if} Disclosureofany related party transactions

(q) Qualificationsin the drafl audit repart, ifany.

Reviewing, with the management, the Quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the Board far approval;

Raviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue {public issue, rights issue,
preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer
documentiprospectusinotice and the report submitted by the agency manitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, ifany, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up stepsin thismatier,

Reviewing and monitering the auditor's mdependence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

Scrutiny ofinter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, whereveritis necessary;

Reviawing, with the management, the performance of Statutory and Intemal Auditors and adequacy of the intemal contral
system;

Reviewing the adequacy of intemal audil function, il any, including the slruclure of the interal audit deparlment, staffing and
seniarty of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;



- Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commencas, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concem;

- Reviewing reports of internal audit and discussing with Intemal Auditors on any significant findings of any internal investigations
by the Internal Auditors and the executive management’s response on matters and follow-up thereon;

- Reviewing reporis of CostAudd, if any, and discussion with CostAuditers on any significant findings by them;

- Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there |s suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of intemal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matterto the Board;

- Tareviewthe functioning of the Viglh (Whistle Blower) mechanism,

- Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other parson heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experiance and background, etc. of the candidate;

- Reecommending lo the Board, the appointment and fixation of remuneration of CastAuditors, if applicable:

- Evaluating Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems and reviewing the Company's financial and risk
management policies;

- Lookingintothe reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in paymentto the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

- Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operation;
- Reviewingthe statement of significant related-party ransactions;
- Reviewing the Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors.

To review the appointment, remaval and terms of remuneration of the ChiefInteral Auditar.

Toreview the Internal Audit report relating to internal control weaknesses.
iy StakeholderRelationship Committee

s  TheCompany Secretary, being the Compliance Officeris entrusted with the responsibility fo specifically look into the Redressal
ofshareholders and investors complaints and repart the same to Stakeholder Relationship Commitiee.

»  TheFunctioningand terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Commiltee includes:

s Tospeciically look into the Redressal of investors' grievances pertaining to transfer! transmission of shares, dividends, de-
materialization/ re-materialization, replacement of lost stolen/ mutilated share cerificates;

. To consider the matters relating to transfer, transmission and transposition of shares, sub-division and consolidation of shares,
replacement of lost! stolen and mutilated share certificates and review of requests for de-materialization/ re-materialization of
share.

s Otherrelatedissues and lostrengthen Investars' relations.

In accordance with Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the requirements of SEBI (LODR), 2015, the Board of
Directors of the Company, have approved the change in nomenciature of the Shareholders Grievances Commitiee to Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and enhanced thair role, The Board of Directars of the Company currently has a Stakeholders Relationship
Committee to specifically look into and resolve grievances of security-holders on various matters. Routine queries/complaints
received from shareholders are promptly attended to and replied by way of resolution by cireulation. Quenes/complaints received
during the period under review related to nen-receipt of annual repart, change of company name, non-receipt of transferrad shares
and change of address and/or bank particulars. There were no pending issues to be addressed or resolved

The Company received a total of Nil complaints from investors during the year 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024, all of which were resolved
within the stipulated time to the satisfaction of the complainants. Ne requests for share transfers are pending except those that are
disputed orsub-judice,



Constitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committeeis as under:

'Name : Position
Mrs. Manl Chandra Bhandari Chairperson
Mr. Gurnam Gupta Member
Mr. Salnam Arora Member
Other details
a) Nameofthe Non-Executive Director heading the Committee: Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari
b)  NameandDesignation ofthe Compliance Officer: Mr. Deepak Kaushal, Company Secretary & Manager (Legal)
¢)  Number of Shareholders Complaints: The Company has received Mil complaints during the year and no complaint was
pending atthe beginning of the year,
d}  Numbers not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders: All the complaints have been resalved fo the safisfaction of the
complainanis duringthe year.
e)  Numberofpending complaints as on 31stMarch, 2024 None

i)

Mominationand Remuneration Committee

In accardance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the requirements of SEBI (LODR} Regulation 2015, the
Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committes.

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met Two (2) times Le. en 14th August, 2023 and
14th November, 2024,

During the year under review, the Committee comprises of Three members, all of them being Nan-executive Independent
Directors. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary o the Committee,

Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 Name ' Position
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari Chairperson
Mr. Sunil Sharma Membar
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan Mermber
Termofreference

The Momination and Remuneration Commitiee is empowered fo review and recommend to the Board of Directors, Remuneration and
Sitting Fees of ihe Company's Independent Directors with the quidelines laid down under the statule, The scope of the Nomination and
Remuneration Commitiee is as follows:

it

i

Ee R o

formulating criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors and recommending to the
Bioard a policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employess;

formulating critena for evaluation of parformance of independent Directors and the Board;
devising a policy on diversity of the Board:

identifying and recommending individuals who are qualified to become Direclors, and who may be appointed as Senior
Managemenlinaccordance with the criteria laid down;

recommending appropriate training program for new Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and
penodically reviewing the same;

evaluating the performance of the Directors based on the evaluation criteria and furnishing the Board with the necessary report
forfurther evaluation;
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{i)

{ii)

o

¥

I

recommending lo the Board a Policy, refating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personngl and Senior
Managament, and while formulating such Policy ensuring that;

the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors, of the quality
reguired to run the Company successfully;

the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the appropriate performance benchmarks; and
remuneration 1o Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between the fixed and
incentive pay reflecting shortand long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Companyandits goals;

assisting the Board, as and when required, in relation to matters relating to remuneration and incentives payable to Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, Including increments to the compensalion structure;

prepanng a policy on diversity of the Board;

recommanding to the Board the re-appointment and removal of any individuals halding the office of a Director, Key Managerial
Personnel or Senior Management, subject lothe provision of the law and their service contract,

reviewing remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management based on performance criteria
and recommending any changes thereto to the Board;

determining whether the relevant Director has the requisite qualifications for practice of a profession in terms of section 197 of
the Companies Actin relation lo payment of remuneration for services rendered by such Direclor,

undertaking such ather functions as may be determined by the Board or required under the provisions of the Companies Act or
the SEBI{LODR) Regulation, 2015;and

underlaking such other actions as may be necessary ar appropriate for performance of the aforementioned functions.

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committes has framed a Remuneration Policy, providing {a)
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors and (b) 2 policy on remuneration for directors,
key managerial personnel and ofher employees. The detailed Remuneration Policy is placed on Company’s website
www kohinooroods. infinvestor.

Detail of Remuneration of Directors

The table below provides the detalls of the remunefation paid to the Directors during the financial year 2023-24.

Name of Directors Salary |Perquisites S;t:: g Total
Executive Director-Promoters
Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora ~ Ni ~ ~
(Whole time Director, designated as Chairman)
Mr. Satnam Arora - Nil - -
(Joint Managing Director)
Mr._Gumam Arora ~ Nil B ~
{Joint Managing Director)
Non-Executive and Non Independent
Mr. Sun il Sharma - - 125,000 [125,000
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan - - 125,000 |125 000
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandan - - 125,000 [125,000
TOTAL| N[ Nl [ 375,000 [375,000




Remunerationto Executive Directors for2023-2024

The Company has obtained the approval of the Central Government for payment of remuneration for the period of two years vide
approvaldated 3rd August, 2016 for the period 1/10/20151t0 30/09/2017.
Further the Re-Appointment and Remunerations of Mr. Jugal Kishors Arora (DIN 00010704), Mr, Satnam Arora (DIN 00010667) and
Mr. Gurnam Arora (DIN - 0001073 1) had been approved by the Shareholders in the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 30th December, 2020 and in the 34th Annual General Meeling of the Company held on 20th September, 2023 for the period of three
years subject to the approval of the Central Government, However, the Executive Direclors have forgone their remuneration for
remaining months fromApril 2023 to March 2024,
Mon-Executive Directors' Compensation
The Board of Direclors al its meeting held on 29th May, 2024, revised sitfing fee payabie to Non-Exzculive Independent Direclors
amounting to Rs. 50,000/~ per meeting for every meeting of the Board attended by them as member. The Company currently does not
have a stock option programme for any of its Directors,
Maximumtenure ofindependentDirectors
The maximum tenure of Indepandent Directors is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(2) of SEBI (LODR),
2015,
Formal letter of appointmentto Independent Directors
The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors in the manner as provided in the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 25 of SEBI (LODR), 2015. The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are placed on the
Company's website waww.kohinoorfoods. infinvestor.
Pecuniary transactions with Non-Executive Directors
During the year under review, there were no pecuniary transactions with any Non-Executive Director of the Company.
Criteriaof making paymentsto Non-Executive Directors
Mon-executive Directors of the Company play a crucial role in the independent functioning of the Board, They bring in an external
perspective o decision-making and provide leadership and strategic guidance while maintaining objective judgment. They also
oversee corporate governance framework of the Company, As stated earlier, the Remuneration Policy, inter alia, disclosing criteria of
making payments to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees is placed on the Company's website
www.kahinoarfoods.in/investor
iv) Corporate Social Responsibility Commitiee
As per provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, all Companies having Net Worth of Rs. 500 crores or more, or
Turnover of Rs. 1,000 crores or more or a Met Profit of Rs. 5 crores or more during any financial year are regulred o constitute a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of Board of Directors comprising three or more Directors, at least one of whom
should be an Independant Director and such Company shall spend 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the
Ihrae immediately preceding Financial Years.
Accordingly a detailad CSR Folicy was framad by the Company with the approvais of the CSR Committee and Board. The Policy, intar
alia, covers the following:

s Philosophy Scope

s ListofCSR activities

s Modaliies of execution of projects/programmes Implementation through CSR Cell

o Monitoring assessment of projects/programmes
The composition ofthe CSR Committee
A Commitiee of the directors, tilled 'Corporate Social Responsibility Committee’, was constiluted by the Board with the following
members:
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1. Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari

2. Mr.SatnamArora
3. Mr.GurnamArora
Asthe Average net Profit/(Loss) of the Company for lastthree financial years prior to 2023-24 comes to average net loss and therefore
the company is not statutorily required lo spentamount as preseribed for CSR expenditure.
Although the Company is net statutorily requira to expend 2% of the avarage nat profit (INR) of the last three financial years, being
average nelloss. The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company's websita atthe link: www kohinoordfeods. infinvastar
4, IndependentDirectors'Meeting
In compliance with Schedulz IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of SEBI (LODR), 2015, a separate meeting of the
independent Directors was held on 14th November, 2023, without the participation of the Non-Independent Directors and members of
the managemenl, inter alia, lo discuss the fallowing
[} raviewthe performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as awhole;
i} review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors; and
iii) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasanably perform their duties. All Independent Directors were present at the meeting,
deliberated on the above and expressed their satisfaction.
All the Independent Direclors were presentat the meeling,
Board Diversity Policy
In compliance with provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board through its Nomination and Remuneration Committee
has devised a Policy on Board Diversity. The objective of the Policy is to ensure that the Board Is comprised of adeguate number of
members with diverse experience and skills, such that it best serves the governance and sirategic needs of the Company. It may be
noted that, the Board composition as at present broadly meets with the abave ohjective.
Orderly successiontoBoardand SeniorManagement
The Board of the Company has satisfied itself that plans ara in place for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to
SeniorManagement.
Code of Conductfor Board Members & Senior Management Team:

The Company's Board of Directors laid down and adopted a Code of Conduct under Corparate Governance for all the Directors and
the Senior Management Personnel of your Company, The said Code of Conduct has alsa been posted on the Company's website, The
Board members and SeniorManagement Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct for 2023-24.

Adeclaration signed by the Company's Managing Director to this effect is enclosed at the end of this report.
Compliances regarding Insider Trading

The Company implemented a Code of Conduct for the Prevention of Insider Trading, in accordance with the guidelines specified
underthe Securties and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amendead till date,

The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading, inter alia, prohibits purchase/sale of Company’s shares, whilein possession of
Company's unpublished and price-sensitive information and accordingly necessary procedures have been laid down for the
Promoters, Directors, designated employees, Key Managerial Personnel, connected persons and others as prescribed under the
said code for trading in the Company's securities.

The code of practices and procedures for fair disclosures is available on the Company's website www kohinoorfoods. in
Compliance Reportas per SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
Compliance Report of Kohinoor Foods Limited as on March 31, 2024 with the applicable mandatory requirements is asunder:



Review oflegalcompliance reports

During the year, the Board periodically reviewed compliance reports with respect to the various laws applicable to the Company, as
prepared and placed before it by the Management,

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigilmechanism

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and Employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior,
actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or ethics policy or any other grievances, the details of which
are giveninthe Corporate Governance Report, during the yearunder review.

The directors in all cases and employess in appropriate or exceptional cases will have direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed onthe Company's website on the link www. kohinoorfoods, infinvestor

During the yearended 31st March, 2024, no matter has been received under Whistle Blowar Policy of the Company and no personnel
has been denled access to the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee of the Company.

Subsidiary,JointVentures and Associate Companies

The Company has One Whaolly Owned foreign Subsidianies, namely Mis Kohinoor Foods USA, Ing, (UBA), situated outside India and
one Indian Wholly Cwned Subsidiary inthe name of Sachdeva Brothers Pyt Ltd.

Information on subsidiary companies is forming part of the Board's Report. The company has material subsidiary in accordance with
the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The Audit Committe reviews the financial statements
and investments made by the unlisted subsidiary companies. The minutes of the proceedings of the Board meetings of the unlisted
subsidiary Companies are placed befora the Board of Directors. Palicy for determining ‘material subsidiaries was adopted by Board of
Directors and this policy is uploaded on the website of the Company at: http://kohinoorfoods. in/pdfiPolicy-for-deciding-material-
subsidiary. pdf

In accordance with section 129(3} of the Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared consolidated financial statements of the Company
and all its subsidiaries, which form part of the Annual Report. The statement provides the details of performance, financial positions of
each ofthe subsidiaries.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention an going concern basis and on aceruals basis unless
otherwisa stated,

The accounting policies are applied consistently toall the periods presentad in the financlal statements,

The financial statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited ["Holding Company or KFL") together with its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as "Group”) are consolidated to form Consclidated Financial Statements (CFS). Consolidated Financial
Statements conzolidate the financial statements of KFL and its Whally Owned Subsidiaries.

The parent Company has not received audited financial statement from its Joint venture Company, Rich Rice Raisers LLC. The
Management considers that the parent companyis netin position o exercise contral over this entily. Hence the resulls of Joint Venture
Company have not been considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Rich Rice Raisers LLC, in which, KFL holds 25%
shareholding, has closed ils oparation.

During the year the Board of Directors of the Company had reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries and a statement containing the
salient features of the financial statement of our subsidiaries in the prescribed format A0C-11s enclosed as Annexure ta the Financial
Statementand hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statement, including the consolidated finaricial
statements and related information of the Company and audited accounts of each of its subsidiaries, are available an our website
www, kohinoorfeods infinvestar. These documents will also be available for inspection during business hours at our Reglsterad Office.
Further the Policy for determining material subsidiaries as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company's website at the
link: www.kohinoorfoods.infinvastor

Related Party Transactions




All contracts [ arrangements | ransactions entered by the Company during the financial vear with related parties were In the ordinary
course of business and on an arm's length basis. The details are provided in the related party disclosures in the notes forming part of
the financial statement and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity. A Policy on materiality of RPTs and also on dealing with
RPTs has been formulated by the Board during the year under review and the same is placed on the Company's website
www.kohinoorfoods.in

Disclosureof Material Transactions

Under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Senior Management has made periodical
disclosures to the Board relating to all matenal financial and commercial iransactions where they had {or were deemed to have had)
personalinterast that mighthave beenin potential conflictwith the interest of the Company. Thesame was nil.

Disclosures

Suilable disclosures have been made in the financial statements, logelher with the Management's explanation in the event of any
treatment being diffarent from that prescribed in Accounting Standards.

Investors' Complaints Attended/tesolved during 2023-24

Pending at the beginning of the year Mil
Received during the year Mil
Disposed off during the year Mil
Remaining unrescived at the end of tha year il

Financialcalandar

Audited annual results for yearending 31st March by May
MailingotAnnual Reporis by August/September

Annual General Meeting by September
Un-audited first quarter Financial Results by August
Un-audited second quarier Financial Results by November
Un-audited third quarter Financial Results by February
Share Transfer Agent

The Company has appointed M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Lid. as its Share Transfer Agent and for processing of share
transfer/de-materialization/ re-materialization. All physical transfers, transmission, transposition, issue of duplicale share
certificate(s), izsue of demand drafts in fiew of dividend warrants efc. as well as requests for de-matenalization re-materialization are
being processed in periodical cycles at Skyline Financial Sarvices Pyl Lid.

The work related fo de-materialization/ re-materialization is handled by Skyline Financial Services Pyt. Ltd. through connzctivity with
NSDL and CDSL.

Share Transfer System

Share transfers received by the Share Transfer Agent/Company are registered within 15 days from the date of receipt, provided the
documents are complete in all respects. Total number of shares transterred from physical category to dematerialized form during
2023-24 was 12,295 sharas versus 6615 shares during 2022-23.

Means of communication

Information like quarterly (half yearly / annual financial results of the Company that have been made available from time to time, to the

(28]



press and are hosted on the Company's website at www.kohinnorfoods.in and have also been submitted to the stock exchanges o
enable them to put them on their websites and communicate to the shareholders, The quarterly / half-yearly / annual financial results
are generally published in English and Hindi language newspapers. Moreover, a report on Management Discussion and Analysis has
been given elsewhere in this repori. The Company elecironically files all reports / information including quarierly results, shareholding
pattern and corporate governance report and so on, at BSE website at www.listing bseindia.com and al NSE website al
www.connectanse.com,

§.General Body Meetings
Details of location of the [astthree Annual General Meetings ofthe Company are given below:

Year Ended

Date of GM

Time

Venue

‘Special
Resolutions
Passed

2021

2021

2022

30-12-2021

10-11-2021

30-09-2022

11:00 AM.

03:00 P.M.

11:30 AM.

through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio
Visual Means ("VC/OAVM") Facility
Deemed Venue; for the 32nd AGM shall be
the Registered Office of the Company

' thmugh Video (Il::mfl:ar:aru:lnggIr Other Audio |

Visual Means ("VC/OAVM™) Facility
Deemed Venue; for the 1st EGM shall be
the Registered Office of the Company

i thrﬂugh Video Cnnferencmg;’ Other Audio |

Visual Means ("VC/OAVM”) Facility
Deemed Venue: for the 33rd AGM shall be
the Registered Office of the Company

0

2023

25-09-2023

11:30 AM.

through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio
Visual Means ("VC/OAVM") Facility
Deemed Venue: for the 34th AGM shall be
the Registered Office of the Company

b) Details of Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballotduring Financial Year 2023-24:
During the year, Nil Special Resolution was passed through Postal ballot during Financial Year 2023-24.

6. Disclosures

a) MaterialsignificantRelated Party Transactions & potential conflictwiththe interest ofthe company atlarge

There were no related party transactions (RPTs) entered into by the Company during the financial year, which
attracted the provisions of section 188 of Companies Act, 2013, There being no 'material' related party fransactions
as defined under Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR}), 2015, there are no details to be disclosed in Form AOC-2 in that
regard. The Policy on RPTs as appraoved by Board is uploaded on the Company's website www.kohinoorfoods in, All
contracts/arrangements transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in
the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis. The details are provided in the related party
disclosuresin the notes forming part of the financial statement and hence notrepeated here forthe sake of brevity.

b) Commodity pricerisk orforeignexchange riskandhedging risk.
The details for the same have been provided in the notes to the financial statements.
t) Compliancesmade bythe Company
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9)

h)

g

k)

The Company was not subject to any non-compliance and no penalties or strictures have been imposed by Stock
Exchanges, SEBI orany other Statutory Authority, on any matters relating to Capital Market during the year.

The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
There are certain Non-mandatory requirements which have also been unilaterally adopted by the Company.

Compliance with mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b)
to{i) ofsub- regulation (2) of Regulation 46 ofthe Listing Regulations, as on March 31, 2024,

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

Aqualified practicing Company Secretary carried out auditon quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitted equity
share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed equity share capital. The reconciliation of share capital audit report
confirms the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the
total number of de-materialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

Official News Releases

The Company's website also displays official news releases.

Presentations made to Institutional Investors ortothe Analysts

Nao presentation was made te institutional investors or to the analysts by the Company.
Trading of Shares ofthe Company

The Company's shares are listed and actively Iraded on the below mentioned Stack Exchanges:
I. NATIONALSTOCKEXCHANGE OF INDIALIMITED (NSE)

"Exchange Plaza"C-1, Block G,

Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051

Wabsite; www.nseindia.com

Symbol: KOHINGOOR, Series: Eq.

Il. BSELIMITED (BSE)

Phiroze Jegjeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street,

Mumbai-400 001

Website: www.bseindia.com

Stock Code: 512559

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the relevant
financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or
proposal ofthelisted entityinvelvingmobilization of funds, whetherinIndiaorabroad

During the year under review, there is nc changein the rating and it stand to be D Rating.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impacton
equity



1)

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other convertible instruments, during the year
under review.

ForeignExchange Riskandhedging activities:
The details for the same have been provided in the notes to the financial statements.

m) Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as

k)

specified under regulation 31(7A)
Mot Applicable
Certification by Practicing Company Secretary

Mr. Manish Kumar - Practicing Company Secretary has issued a cerfificate under the Listing Regulations,
confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed with this section.

o) Acceptance of recommendations made by the Committees

Duringthefinancial year 2023-24, the Board has accepted all the recommeandations of its Committees,

p) TotalFeespaidto StatutoryAuditors

q)

9)

The details of total fees paid by the Company to the statutory auditors are as under:-

Particulars As at 31" March, 202 4 As at 31" March, 20 23

As Statutory Auditor 10,60,000 10.60,000

For Taxation matters 2,50,000 2.50,000

Reimbursement of Expenses - -

For Other Matters - 231,000 170,000
Total | 1541000 14.80.000

Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal)Act, 2013

number of complaints filed during the financial year 2023-24 0
number of complaints disposed of during the financial year 2023-24 0
number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year 0

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people
employed

For your company, our people are our strongest assel, The Company invests in building best-in-class teams, led
by exceptional professionals. Over the years, the Company has nurtured a meritocraltic, empowering and caring
culture that encourages excellence. Your Company encourages the development of talent by providing its people
with opportunities to sharpen their capabilities, encouraging innovation, lateral thinking, and developing multiple
skills. Through this approach, your company prepares its people for future leadership roles. During the year under
review total number of permanent employees are 95 as compared fo last year 83 as 12 employees joined the
organizations.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

Your Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the



Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, Your Company financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2024 are prepared under Ind AS. For all perieds up to and including the year ended March
31, 2017, the financial statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards netified under the
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Coampanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(hereinafter referred lo as 'Previous GAAP') used for its stalutory reporting requirement in India immediately
before adopting Ind AS,

h) Details ofsignificantchanges inkeyfinancial ratios, along with detailed explanations

RATIO
;Is 1:-| FARTI;: ULAR 2023-24 | 2022-23 DETAILED REASON

1 Debtors 704 6.45 # due to lower average Debtors because of
Turnover ) ' recoveries and settlement of old balances

3 |inventory 9.90 10.48 | W impact due to increase on turnover
Turnover . 4
Interest L . .

3 | Coverage 0.50 0.36 + Th:a_! ratio fff pcijit;]u% du::nw fo ;u?sttantiatl
Ratio operating profit contributing ards interest.

There is no change in current ratio, the
4 | Current Ratio 0.07 0.06 | current assets and current liabilities vary in
same proportion as that of previous year

The ratio is negative due to erosion of net

Debt Equity

5 ‘Ratio _ 334 =1 '3?_ worth because of losses |
Operating
6 Profit Margin 951% B8.39% | # due to increase in operative profit
(%)
Net Profit # due to increase in turnover and, there s
7 -4.97% -5.32% | marginal improvement in operating profit
Margin (%) )
margin
Return on Net

6. MeansofCommunication
The Company interacts with its shareholders through multiple forms of corporate and financial communication:
a) FinancialResults:

The Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results are submitted to the Stock Exchange(s) in accordance with SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further, the Quarterly, Half yearly and
Annual Resulls in the prescribed format were generally published in English Newspaper Financial Express and
regional language newspaper (Hindi) in Jansatta. The same were sent to Stock Exchanges and were also
displayed on the website of the Company, www.kohinoorfoods.in.

b) Website:

The Company’s website www.kohinoorfoods.in contains @ separate dedicated section 'Investor’ where



d)

q)

shareholders information is available. The Company's Annual Report and all other relevant information are also
available ina user-friendly and downloadable form.

AnnualReport

The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statement, Conselidated Financial Statements,
Directors' Report with relevant annexure, Auditors' Report and other important information is circulated to members
and others entitied thereto. The Annual Reportis displayed on the Company's website (www.kohinoorfoods.in).

NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS):

The NEAPS is a web-based application designed by NSE for corporales. All periodical compliance filings like
Shareholding Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, Results and other requirement of SEB| (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, media releases, among others are filed electronically on NEAPS,
by the Company,

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the 'Listing Centre')

BSE's Listing Centre is @ web-based application designed for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like
Shareholding Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, Results, media releases, among others are also filed
electronically on the Listing Centre by the Company.

SEBIComplaints Redress System (SCORES)

SEBI has designed a centralized web-based system, www.scores.gov.in wherein the investors can lodge their
complaints and can view the status of their complaints being replied to by the respective Company, In compliance
thereof, the Company is reqularly uploading the 'Action taken Report on the said website in respect of the investors'
references received, if any.

Designated Exclusive email-id

The Company has designated the email-id “Investors@kohinorfoods.in” exclusively for investor servicing.

. Shareholdersinformation Annual General Meeting

Date : 30th September, 2024

Time 2 11:30AM.

Mode : Through Video conferencing (*VC")/ Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM")
Financial Calendar 1 1stAprilto 31st March

Date of Book Closure g 24.09.20241030.09.2024 (both daysinclusive)

Dividend Payment Date : Mo dividend has been recommended for the financial year 2023-2

CIN 8 L52110HR 1989PLCOT0351



8. ListingonStock Exchanges
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with BSE Lid. (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Lid. [NSE).
9. PaymentofListingFees
The annual listing fee for the Financial Year 2024-2025 has been paid by the Company lo BSE & NSE.
10. PaymentofDepositoryFees
There is no outstanding invoice of Annual Custody / Issuer fees tobe paid by the Company to NSDLand CDSL.
11. Trading Symbol/Stock Code

1. Mational Stock Exchange of India Ltd. Mumbai (NSE) ¢ KOHINOOR

2. TheBSELtd., Mumbai (BSE) 512559

3. ISINMNumberfor NSDL& CDSL INEDBOBO1012

STOCK MARKET DATA
Monthly High and Low guotations of Shares traded at The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and BSE Ltd.
Month/ Year N.S.E B.S.E
High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)
April 2023 43.15 28.35 43.02 28.26
May 2023 47.55 36.15 47.42 3612

June 2023 41.40 36.00 40.75 36.16
July 2023 38.85 33.60 39.74 34.60
August 2023 37.95 34.65 37.75 34.20
September 2023 37.30 34.50 i7.36 34.55
October 2023 42.05 31.70 42.30 31.74
November 2023 44.90 35.25 45.39 35,50
December 2023 61.75 39.00 61.60 39.22
Jan uary 2024 51.00 43.50 50.80 43.70
February 2024 45.70 38.50 45.89 39.15
March 2024 50.70 35.10 50.60 35.25




S&P CNX Nifty/Sensex vis-a-vis Kohinoor Foods
Relative Price Movements April 2023 — March 2024 (Base price as on 1st April 2024)

Kohinoor Performance vis-a-vis BSE Sensex
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12. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Mis. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd,
D-153-A, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Araa,
Phase-l, Mew Delhi 110 020
Share Transfer System
All the Transfers received are processed and approved by the share transfer committee and sent to the sharehoiders within a
period of 15 days. The Company obtains from a practicing Company Secretary half yearly certificate of compliance as required
under Reguiation 40(9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and files the same with Stock Exchanges.
13. Distribution of Shareholding and Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2024.
Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024, as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,
Share Nominal Value (Rs.) Share Holders Total Shares
No. % age Total % of Total
1 5,000 49333 90.27 4865166 13.12
5001 10,000 2861 5.24 2307626 6.22
10001 20,000 1389 2.54 2089629 5.64
20001 30,000 408 0.75 1038375 2.80
30001 40,000 171 0.31 612436 1.65
40001 50,000 143 0.26 674230 1.82
50001 1,00,000 226 0.41 1669333 4.50
1,00,000 Above 118 0.22 23814735 64.24
Total 54649 100 370715300 100
Category of Shareholders as on 31st March 2024
Category No- “Sh":::: Rs- 10 Percentage (%) of Total
'i?rumuter. Directors and
Relatives 13965730 37.67
Mutual Funds / UTI o 0.00
| Alternative Investme  nt Funds 9 000
Foreign Portfolio Investors 0 0.00
Financial Institutions/Banks 1420 0.01
Insurance Companies o 0.00
Foreign Institutional Investors 0 0.00
Foreign Companies 048306 19.01
Domestic Companies/Badias
Corporate 1064738 2.B7
Mo. of Shares of Rs. 10 Percentage (%) of
rategery each Total
Mon-resident Individual 343176 093
Others 0 0.00
Individual Shareholders 14260965 3847
HUF 366858 0499
Clearing Member/Haouse 0 0.00
| Trusts 1550 0.00
Firms 18727 0.05
Total 37071530 100




Status of Dematerialization/Physical form of Shares

The detail of shares dematerialized and those held in physical form, as on 31st March 2024. (As per Shareholding basis)

_  Shares of Rs. 10 each Shareholders
Particulars of Shares
- MNumber % of Total Number | % of Total

De-materialised Form

National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) 2,58,02,231 69.60 14,765 27.02
Central Depository Services {India) Ltd, (CD5L) 10863477 29.30 34,914 63.89
Physical Form 405822 | 110 4970 2.09

Total 3,70,71,530 100 54,649 100

The paid up Share Capital of the Company is amounting to Rs. 370,715,300/- comprising of 37,071,530 equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each. Further the Company has nol issued any GDRs/ADRs or any converfibla instruments except as mentioned the Annual
Repart.

14.

15.

16.

17,

18.

CEOand CFOCertification

The Joint Managing Directors of the Company give quarterly certification on Financial Results while placing Financial
Resulls before the Board in lerms of SEBI {(LODR) Regulation, 2015, The Jaint Managing Director and CFO o the Company
have alsogiven certificate on CEC and CFO Certification for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and the same is attached with
the Annual Repart.

Compliance Certificate

The Joint Managing Director of the Company gives quarterly certificate on compliance with various laws and regulations and
other legal requirement of the central, state and ather government and local authorities conceming the business and affairs
ofthe Company.

Dematerialisation of Shares

The Shares of the Company are in Compulsory Demat segment and are available for trading in the depository systems of
both the National Securities Depository Lid. (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Lid. (CDSL). At the end of
Financial Year, 2023-2024, the total dematerialized equity shares of the Company is 3,66,65,708 Equity Shares forming
98.91% ofthe total listed share capital of the Company.

Promoters Shareholding

In eompliance of the SEBI circular Mo, CIR/ISD/3/2011 dated June 17, 2011, all the Shares of the Promolers are in
Cematernalization form.

Un-Paid Dividend of Shareholders

As per MCA Cireular no. G.5.R.352 (E) daled 20th May, 2012 the List of Un-paid dividend, transferred 1o Investor Education
and Protection Fund (ihe IEPF) established by the Central Government and is avaitable on MCA Portal as well as on the
Company's website www.kohinoorfoods.infinvestor.

Pursuant lo the provisions of Section 124 of the Act, Investor Education and Protection Fund Autharity (Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ("IEPF Rules”) read with the relevant circulars and amendments therato, the amount of
dividand remaining unpaid or unclaimed for & period of seven years from the due dale is required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund ("IEPF"), constituted by the Central Government, The Company had, already
accordingly, transferred the unpaid and unclaimed dividend amount pertaining to Final Dividend, to the [EPF.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205 A(5) and 205 C of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has transferred the
unpaid or unclaimed dividends (remaining unpaid! unclaimed for a period of 7 |Seven) years from the due date), to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (the |IEPF) established by the Central Government. Pursuant to the provisions of



19,

20,

21,

Investor Education and Protection Fund (uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounls lying wilth
Companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounis lying with the Company as
on September 29, 2014, on the websile of the Company (www.kehinoorfoods.in), and also on the website of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

Pursuant o the provisions of IEPF Rules. all shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven
consecutive years shall be transferred by the Company to the designated Demat Account of the IEPF Authority ("IEPF Account”)
within a period of thirty days of such shares becoming due to be transferred to the IEPF Account.

Green Initiatives

The Company had started a sustainability initiative with the aim of going green and minimizing our impact on the environment.
Members are requested to support this green initiative by registering/updating their e-mail address, inrespect of shares held in
dematerialized form with their respective Depository Participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with Skyline
Financlal Services Pvl. Lid.

Pursuant to Section 101 and 136 of the Act read with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in view of continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the
Company can send Motice of Annual General Meeting, financial statements and other communication in electranic forms. Your
Company is sending the Annual Report including the Notice of Annual General Meeting, audited financial statements (both
standalone and consolidaled), Direclors Report along with their annexures ele. for the Financial Year 2023-24 in the electronic
mode to the shareholders who have registered their email ids with the Company and/or their respective Depository Participants
{Dps).

The Annual Report containing audited financial statements (both standalone and consolidated), Directors Report along with
their annexures etc. and other imporant infermation for the Financial Year 2023-24 is available in downloadable form on
company's website at www.kohinoorfoods.in,

PlantLocations

50-51 Milestone, G.T Kamal Road, Murthal, Dist. Sonepat (Haryana}-131027

SurveyNo. 4711, Village: Bharapar, Gandhidham Kutch, Ta-Gandhidham—Kutch- 370230
42-43 Millestone, G. T Karnal Road, Village Sultanpur, Bahalgarh, Sonepat, Haryana- 131021

Khewat No. 40//40, 48//48, 42-43 KM Stone G. T. Karnal Road, Village Hasamabad, Sultanpur PO Bahalgarh District Senipath
Haryana 131 021"

{* The Company has entered into rent agreement at two location i.e., Kutch Gujarat and Sultanur Haryana, the operation has nat
started yetas developmentis under process.)

AddressforCorrespondence

Sharehaiders Correspandence may be addressed to;
Mis. Skylina Financial Services Pyt Lid.

D-153-A. Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,

Phase-I, New Delhi 110020

Or

The Company Secretary

Kohinoor Foods Limited

Finnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor,



Shooting Range Road, Surajkund,
Faridabad, Haryana- 121001

However, shareholders holding shares in de-mat mode should address their correspondence relating to their holdings to the
respective Depository participants.

Declaration-Compliance withthe Code of Conduct

In accordance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligalions and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, |, Satnam
Arora and Gumam Arcra, Jt. Managing Directors of the Company, hereby declare that the Board Members and the Senior

Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended 31st March
2024,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Sd/- Sd/-
Date: 13th August, 2024 SatnamArora GurnamArora
Place : Faridabad Jt. Managing Director Jt.Managing Director
DIN: 00010667 DIN: 00010731



AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNAMNCE

Tothe Member,
Kohinoor Faods Limited,
W have examined the compliznes of conditiens of Corperate Govarnance by the Kohinoor Foods Lid. {the Company) for the vear ended 315t March, 2024

as per regulations 17 o 27, clauss (b) 1o {i) of sub-regulations 2 of Regulations 48 and paragraph C, [ and E of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange
Board af India {Listing Obligaticns and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of condilions of corporale governance is the responsibifity of the managemenl, Our examination was fimited fo procedure and
implzmentation thereaf, adoptad by the Company for ensuring the complianes of the conditions of corporate governance. ILis nelther an audit nor an
expressicn ofopinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information, based on fhe records, documaents, books, and other information furnished and according fo the
explanations glven ta us, we certify that the company has complied with the conditlons of Corporate Governancs as perregulations 17 to 27, clause (b) to
(i} of sub-requlations 2 of Regulations 46 and paragraphs C. D and E of Scheduls V of Securities and Exchange Beard of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclesure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or effeciiveness with which the
management has canducted the affairs of the Company.

For N C Rajand Associates
CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 002249N

Sdl-

Sanjay Garg

Pariner

Membarship No. 08RE36

UDIM: 240886 36BKARLI1E1S
Piace: New Dethi

Date: 13/08/2024

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
{Pursuant to Requiation 34(3) and Schedule V' Para © clause (10) (i) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
' Requlations, 2015)

To,
Thea Members of
Fohinoos Foods Limited

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Kohinoor Foods Limited (CIN
L52110HR1983PLCOTO351) having registerad ofiice at Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor, Surajkund, Shooting Range Faridabad Haryana- 121001
(Indlia), (hereirafter referred to as the Company'), produced bafore us by the Company Tor the purpose of issuing this Cerificale, in accordance with
Regulation 34(3) read with Schadule V Para-C Sub clause 10(1) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosura
Fequirements) Regulations, 2015,

In cur apinion ard to the best of cur information and according to the verifications {including Directors identification Number (DIN) status at the portal
Www.mea .aov.in) a5 considerad nacessary and explanations furnished 1o us by the Company & 18 difectors ( officers, we hereby ceelify thal nane of the
Directors on the Board of the Company as staled below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or conlinuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs and any such other
statutory authaority,

Ensuring the eligibility for the appainiment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsitility of the management of the Company. Cur
responsiility ks to axpréss an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificale is neilher an assurance as to the fulure viability of the Company
nar ofthe efficiency or effectiveness withwhich the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MANK & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries
Place: Moda, Uttar Pradesh, India {UCN.52017DES54100)
Date: 02/08/2024 Sd/-

(€5 Manish Kumar)

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS No: 10248; CP No: 19684
PR: 1257/2021

ICSI-UDIN: FO10248F000877642



CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015 for the financial year ended 31st March 2024

The Board of Directors,
Kohinoor Foods Limited

Dear Members of the Board,

As stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, We,
Satnam Arora, Jt. Managing Director and Chashu Arora, Chief Financial Officer, of the Company, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

A

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement forthe year 2023-24 and
thatto the best of our knowledge and belief:

1)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year that are fraudulent, illegal or voilative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Campany
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and
the steps we have taken or propose fo take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

There have been no significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during this
year.

There have been no significant changes in the accounting policies this year and that the same
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
Company's internal control systems over financial reporting.

Sdf- Sdi-

Place : Faridabad Satnam Arora Chashu Arora
Date: 13/08/2024 Jt. Managing Director (CFO)



FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315T March, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No, 8 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Kohinoor Foods Limited
Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor
Shooting Range Road, Surajkund
Faridabad — 121001
Haryana

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of M/s Kohinoor Foods Limited to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2024.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence fo
geod corporate practices by Mis Kohinoor Foods Limited (hereinafter called "the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a8 manner thal provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and exprassing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Kohinoor Foods Limited's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 generally complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and alsoc that the Company has proper Board processes and
compliance-mechanismin place, to the extent, in the manner and subjectlo the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Mfs
Kohinoor Foods Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

{i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
{iiy The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act. 1956 ('SCRA"} and the rules made thereunder;
(i} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

{iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBIAct'): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;

(c) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1993 - Not Applicable as the Company has not granted any options to
its employees during the financial year under review.

{8) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 - Not
Applicable as the Company has not issued any debt security during the financial year under review.

tf1  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client - Not Applicable as the Company
is not registered as Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under



(wi)

(a)

(h)

review.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not
Applicable as the Company has not delisted its equity shares from any stock exchange during the
financial year under review.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998- Not Applicable
as the Company has not bought back any of its securities during the financial year under review.

Otherlaws as specifically applicable to the Company based on its sectorfindustry,

(@)
(b)
(c)

The Food Safety and Standards Act including packaging and Labelling Laws.
Pravention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954.
Legal Metrology Act, 2008 and rules and regulations made theraunder,

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(@)

(b)
(c)

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and
General Meetings,

The applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

The Listing Agreements entered inta by the Company with BSE Limited and Mational Stock Exchange of
India Limited in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Wornan Director. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors thal took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice of atleast seven days is normally given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings.
Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent normally three days in advance. However, in some cases
shorter notice/agenda of the Board Meating has been sent to Directors. Consent, if obtained from the
Directors were not available for ourinspection,

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part
of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequalte systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, requlations and

guidelines.
For MANK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
(UCN.S2017UP554100)
Place: MNoida, Uttar Pradesh, India Sdi-
Date: 08/08/2024 (CS Manish Kumar)

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS No: 10248; CP No: 19684
PR: 1257/2021

ICSI-UDIN: FO10248F000928336

This report is to be read alongwith our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.
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To,

Annexure A

The Members

Kohinoor Foods Limited

Pinnacle Businass Tower, 10th Floor
Shooting Range Range, Surajkund
Faridabad — 121001, Haryana

QOur report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Qurresponsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have oblained the Managementi representation aboul the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

For MANK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
(UCN.S2017UP554100)
Place: Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India Sd/-
Date: 08/08/2024 (CS Manish Kumar)

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS No: 10248; CP No: 19684
PR: 1257/2021

ICSI-UDIN: FO10248F000928396



ANNEXURE - 'B' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Information as per Section 134{3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
farming Part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024,

A,

b)

Conservation of Energy

Improvement of methods of Energy Conservation and optimal utilization of Energy in all operations, continued to receive close
atlention, Company is always conscious lo conserve energy through improved methods of operalions and design. In this
regard the Company has introduced energy saving features in the systems and monitors by which the user saves the power
consumption to a considerable extent. The company's efforts towards energy conservation resulted in optimum consumption
of power and fuel and the expenses forthe current yearstood to Rs. 241.46 Lakh.

Research & Development (R&D)
Specificareas inwhich R&D carried out by the Company and benefits derived as aresult of RED

Research & Development has always been a focus area at Kohinoor Foods Ltd. during the year the Company has put special
efforts in research and development. As the company had also started production in its new food factory at Sonepat, which has
state of art R & D facility The R&D team of the Company has worked on a number of areas, more specifically in the areas of
frozen foods, This has resulted in the Company to launch new range product variants in both Ready to Eat & Ready to Cook
segments. We expect to notch up good numbers in the next financial year through some exciting product launches and
expanding & streamlining the distribution network. The company is also perusing R & D activities in the RTE Segment. During
the year, there isincrease of 56.5% in R & D expenditure by the company, for the current year stood at Rs. 13.68 lakhs.

Future plan of action

Steps are continuously being taken to promote the branded sales in overseas market. The company is exciting product
launches and expanding & streamlining the distribution network in domestic aswellasin International Market. The Companyis
continuously making efforts to provide best of quality products loits customers.

Expenditure on R&D

Capial : Hil

Recurring : Rs. 13.68,497/-
Total ; Rs. 13.68,497/-

Total R&D expenditureis 0. 14% of Tumover,
Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation

Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation had always been the key strength of the Company. The Company plans to
be aleading player intechnology introduction through innovative products.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Total Foreign Exchange earned and used.

Foreign Exchange Eamings of the Company amounted £199.91 Lakh as against Foreign Exchange Outgo of Rs. 6634.88
Lacs during the year under review.

Aclivities related to exports, iniliative taken loincrease exports, developmentof new exportmarkels for products.

Due to liquidity problem and banking restrictions, the exports were badly affected, during the year. However, the Company has
strong Global Metwork and expectthe exports to revive soon.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sdi- Sdi-
Date : 13th August 2024 Satnam Arora Gurnam Arora
Place : Faridabad Jt. Managing Director Jt. Managing Director
DIN: 00010667 DIN: 00010731
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|. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

ANNEXURE C

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN _
As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

iy GIN L5Z110HR1989PLCOT0351
iy Reglstration Data 261h July, 1989
iii) Name of the Company Kaohinoor Foods Limited

iv} Categaory / Sub-Category of the Company

Public (Listed) Company

) Address of the Registered/Corporate office
and contact details:

Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor,
Shooting Range Road, Surajkund. Faridabad,
Haryana- 121001

Phone: +91-120-424-2222
Faw:+91-129-424-2233

Email; info@@kohinooroods.in

Website: www.kohinoorfoods.in

vi) Whather listed company Yes | No

YES

wil) Mame, Address and Contact details of
Ragistrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Mis Skyline Financial Services Pvl. Lid,,

Off: D-153A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-l, Mew Delhi-110020,

Ph. Mo. 011- 40450193 to 87

IIl. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities are under single segment and not contributing 10 % or more of the total tumover of the company:-

5l. No. | Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of the
products | services service company
1 Ricea and Food 1061 & 1075 BE.71% & 11.29%

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

5, ND | NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Applicable

COMPANY SUBSIDIARY | shares Section
ASSOCIATE held

Kohinoor Foods USA INC, A, SUBSIDIARY 100%:

40, Marihfield Avenue Edison, NJ

BBE3T

Sachdeva Brothers Pyl Lid. U15311DL198EPTC222606 SUBSIDIARY 100%

201, Vipps Centre, Masjid Math,

Graater Kaltazh-1|, New Dathi-110

(48

Rich Rice Raisers Factory LLG MA, ASSOCIATE 25T

Post Box No. 15542, Al Quoz

Industrial &res, 3rd nterchange. Sh

Zayad Road, Dubal, UWAE.




IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the Yo
the year year Cha
Category of % of % of "Bg""
Shareholders pemat | ""YFIC | Total | {PA1 | Demat PRYSIC | total | 1ot | pur
es 2 ng
Year
A. Promoter
(1) Indian
a) Individual! HUF 13861723 0] 13861723 | 37.3% | 13861620 0] 13861690 | 37.39 0
b) Central Govt 1] 0 i} 1] 1] 5] 0] 2] 0
c) State Govt(s) 1] 0 0 1] o 8] 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. 1] [#] (] [i] 0] 0 0 (4] 0
&) Banks { Fl 0 8] (1] 1] 0 ] 0 1] 0
f) Any Other.... 104100 0 1041040 0.28 1047100 1] 104100 0.28 0
Sub-total (A) (1):- 13965823 0| 13965823 | 37.67 | 139657930 0| 13965790 | 37.67 [1]
]2] Foreign
a) NRls - Individuals 1] 4] 1] 1] (0 0 4] 4] 0
b) Other — Individuals 1] 0 1] 1] 0 0 0 0 0
) Bodies Corp, 0 0 0 o] 1] 0 ] 0 0
d) Banks / Fl (1] [#] 0 0 0 0 0 4] 0
2) Any Other.... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-Total (A) (2) :-
of PramertAad | ‘13088623 0| 13965823 | 37.67 | 13965790 0| 13965790 | 37.67 0
(A)(1)y+(A) 2)
B. Public Share holding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 1] 1] 0 0 0 4] 0
by Banks/ Fl 1420 (8] 1420 0 1420 0 1420 a 0
c) Central Gowt 0 0 Q 1] 0 0 0 4] 0
d) State Govi(s) 0 0 0 o] 4] 0 0 0 0
&) Venture Capital
o P 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ol o
f}  Insurance
éomna i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ol o
g) Flls 2] Q 0 0 1) 2] o 0 0
h) Forelgn Venture
CLPH shlhids o 0 0 0 0 o 0 ol o
i} Others (FP| Catl) YA 0 YAk 0.15 0 (] 0 0] 0.15
Sub-total {B)(1):- 58537 0 58537 | 0.15 1420 0 1420 0| 0.15
2. Non Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i} Indian 3038461 34376 3072837 | 8.29 | 1030362 34376 1064738 2.87| 542
i) Overseas 0 Q Q 1] f] 0 0 0 0
b} Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 a a 4] 0
(1} Individual
shareholders halding -
nomiréal 51h?,: capital 10485870 | 383741 | 10869611 | 29.32 | 12960049 | 371246 | 13331295 | 35.96 6.64
upto Hs. 1 lakh




(il)individual

shareholders halding

nominal share capital | 1186041 o| 11seo0s1| 3zo| ezesTo o| o2e870| 251| nee
in excess of Rs 1

lakh

c) Other specify

N.R.I{Rept & Non- :
Rept) 338905 0 A38905 091 342076 200 343176 0.93 0.02
Public Trusts ] i 0 4] 1} i 4] 1] 0
gg’g“"am Bodies: 7048306 o| 7048308 | 19.01| 7048306 o| 7048308 | 19.01 0
Intermediary'Other

Depository Alc 0 i} 0 0 O Q 0 0 1]
Hindu Undivided ] -
Family 298176 0 299176 081 366858 0 366858 1.00 0.1a
Clearing

Mambars/House 120519 a 120519 0.33 0} i o 0| 0.33
Qualified Foraign

Investor- Individual o 9 9 ¢ o 0 B L
Qualified Foreign

Invastor- Corporate . a & . 2 . & . &
MBFC's Registered

with RE| 0 i 0 0 3 a 0 0 a
Trust 11500 i} 14500 0.03 1550 ] 16850 003 0.03
Firms 100275 0 100275 0.27 18727 0 187275 057 | 0.23
Cithers ] i 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(2):- 22629053 | 418117 | 23047170 | 62.17 | 22698498 | 405822 | 23104320 | 62.32| , .=
Total Public

Shareholding(B)=(B | 22687590 | 418117 | 23105707 | 62.33 | 22699918 | 405822 | 23105740 | 62.33 0
W1+ (B)2)

Shares held by

Custodian for GDRs i 1] 0 0 (1] i} ] 0 0
& ADRS

gfgfgf“' 36653413 | 418117 | 37071530 | 100 | 36665708 | 405822 | 37071530 100 | 100

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

51 No. | Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year

o | Plodgea! e | Pedged | ychangein
Mo, of Sharas Shares ancumbaere | No. of Shares Shares | encumbers

ofthe|  dto total ofthe |  dtototal | 8 9Uring the
campany shares company shares L)
1 Gumam Arora B2WRG20M 16.97 2 G2E8204 1697 3 a
2 Jupgal Kishore Arora 1063484 2.84 - 1053464 Z.84 - ]
3 aatnam Arora 274919 1581 - 749158 151 - |
4 Rani Arora T4ED0E 20 - 746008 Zm a
& Mitin Arara 21000 0.06 - 21000 008 - i
i Maghi Arora 1864 0 - 1868 0 - 0
¥ Meena Rani Arora 966 a - 966 o - g
8 Satnam Haegens Lid 104104 028 - 104100 028 - 0
Total 13965823 | AT8T - 13965790 arey - 0




(il Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) —No Change

51. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
% of total %% of total
Gurnam Arora ;‘:r:: shares of the :h{;}:; shares the
Company Company
Al the beginning of the year 6289204 16.97 6289204 16.97
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
1 | Promoters Shareholding during - - = =
the year
specifying the reasons for
increase |/ decrease (e.q. ) B } ;
allotment | transfer | bonus/
sweat equity etc):
At the End of the yvear 6289204 16.97 6289204 16.97
% of total % of total
Satnam Arora :::‘l‘ r:'s shares of the :h{;r:: shares the
company company
At the beginning of the year 5749191 15.51 5749191 15.51
Date wise Increase [ Decrease in
2 Fromoters Shareholding during 33 - 33 -
the year
specifying the reasons  for
increase [/ decrease (e.q.
allogment | transfer /| bonusl | OAe 2 Sale =
sweat equity ete):
At the End of the year 5749158 15.51 5749158 15.51
% of total ¢ of total
Jugal Kishore Arora ::1:_:: shares of the :h?r:: shares the
company company
At the beginning of the year 1053484 2.84 10563484 2.84
3 Date wise Increase [ Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during - - - -
the year specifying the
reasons for increase | decrease
(e.g. allatment / transfer / bonus/ - - -
sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year 1053484 2.84 1053484 2.84




{ii) Shareholding Paltern of lop ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promofers and Holders of GDRs and ADRs);

5 Mo | Name Sharenalding Cumulatve
3;5;';2‘3{ the Data E"?::i:é n | " Na:-af s of total
M. of Shares at the Company Sharahalding L m";"’ma shares of
Deginning (01-04-2023) comr a1 ga. |he
Doad) COMNpaEnTy
1 ﬂbmmfaﬂﬂ'“' FO4EI0E 18.01 - . TO4AI0E 18.01
2 COmL T mom 345432 0,93 08122023 | ¢a5000) Sale 300432
] Ruhy o o DA.0BZ023 | 50107 Purchase | 10XGES
Of .06, 2023 51400 Purchasne
10052023 | 24500 Purchasse
052003 | (26001 Gala
DA.09.2023 | (20000) Sale
22092023 | (s0000; Zaia
17.49.2023 2550 Purchasa
24 11,2025 1250 Purchase
08 1Z.2023 | 24000 Purchaso
16123023 11500 Purchzses
16022024 | (10000 Hale
Zz 032024 | (1000) Sale
o0a2naA | Zong Purchase
2 Orastor Marketing 47000 15.02.2023 | 108000 Purchase | 100510
Fihetie Lt DB 122023 | (26000) Eale
22122023 | (27490 Sale
5 Arnijay Imge o o 15122023 | 100000 Purchase | 100000
Private Limited Of 03024 | 00000 Purchasn
16.02.2024 | (100000} Sale
] Parul Garg ABEZT 21042023 | (z445) Sale gean
L U aldg T Purghasae
18.02.7024 | 46516 Purchass
T B Furchase
01.03.2024 340 Purchaso
7 Priyamnka frara o 1 agnes | as0n0 Purchase | BS000
A Fuireal Patel TEGEA = z z TEoEA
] Fonnchnn Gonl TOOO0 TR 0Zz024 | 46516 Purchase | 70000
10 Kantesh Ramesnlal | 3800 o7 042023 | 1000 Purchese: | 56404
Godihaja 14042023 | 15800 Purchans
12 05,2023 | (3000) Sals
02082023 | BO00 Purchase
22092022 | 411104) Sale
28092023 | 998 Furchase
06 10,2023 runlels] Purchase
13.10.2023 | 4000 Purchase
R Sale
702023 | 500 Purchass
03112023 250 Purchans
24112023 333 Purchass
o112 2023 Sk Purchase
OB 122023 | 16500 Purchass
09122093 | (27601) Sale
291232023 S500 Purchasa
05.01.2024 | 4500 PUrchase
12012024 | 8500 Purchase
19.01.2024 | 7000 Purchase
26012024 G500 Purchass
Oz.0zz0za | 1o00 Purchase
05,02 2024 303 Purchase
6.0 2024 000 Furchasa
Ta02o004 | 5371 Purchane
20032024 (LT Eapla

*The increase in percentage of Share is due to purchase of shares from open market,




liii} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

o Sharzholding Cumulative
Name
o.
Mo. of Increas
Shares at ef
the %of - Decrea - 9% of total
beginning total s8N K 6T & "
{0Li08- | shanes Shareh sr?; :es : a:f:
Directors 23} fend of the olding i
of the Company PRy
year (31 -
03 -2024)
. | 1ugat ishore aror 1053484 284 | 01.04.2023 - - 1053484 2.84
{Chatenzn) 1053484 284 |31.03.2024 . 1053484 2.84
5749191 15.51 01.04.2023 - - 5749191 15.51
2 | satnam Arora (It M.D)
5749158 15.51 31.03.2024 33 Sale 5749158 15.51
G289204 1697 01.04.2023 - 6289204 16.97
3 | Gurnam Arora (Jt, M.D)
B2ES204 1697 31.03.2024 - 6289204 16.57
Sunil Sharma (Non - - - 01.04.2023 - - - =
4 | Executive &
Independent Diractor) - E: 31.03.2024 - - - =
Yash Pal Mahajan - - 01.04.2023 - = - =
5 | (Non -Executive &
Indepandent Director) B i 31.03.2024 B i i )
Mani Chandra Bhandari - - 01.04.2023 - = - =
& | [Non-Executive S
Independent Director) : L 31.03.2024 _ ) X i
Key Managerial Personnel
Chashu  Arora (CFO) . . 01.04.2023 . < - .
{Appointed w.e.f, '
30/03/2022) - - 31.03.2024 - - . -
UEEpak Kaushal {C5 & I > 01042023 % - = =
Compliance Officer)
{Appointed w.e.f, R R 31.03.2024 ) i . i
14/08/2019)




V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the
financial year

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
indebtedness

i) Principal Amount

6,42,95,20,112

64,04,93,453

7,07,00,13,606

i) Interest due but
not paid

iii) Interest accrued
but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

6,42 ,95,20,112

64,04,93,493

7,07,00,13,606

Change in
Indebtedness during
the financial year

- Addition

4,35,789

4,35,789

 Reduction

- 6,83,21,249

- 6,83,21,249

Net Change

- 6,83,21,249

4,35,789

- b,78,85,460

Indebtedness at the
end of the financial

year

I} Principal Amount

6,36,11,98 864

64,09,29,282

7,00,21,28,146

i} Interest due but
not paid

iii) Interes t accrued
but not due*

Total (i+ii+iii)

6,36,11,98,864

64,09,29,282

7,00,21,28,146

* The company has not provided interest to the extent of Rs. 1,29,84,20,478/- for current year ( Rs.
115,67,66,576/- for previous year) and Rs. 586,30,86,838/- up to 371-03-2024 (previous year Hs.
456.46,57,360/-) on bank loans which were classified as non-performing assets during the year from the
date they were declared NPA. Moreover, the company has not provided interest during the current year to
the extenf of Rs. 9,25,64,830/- for the period upto 31-03-2024 on account of revoked corporate gurantee

KFL USA subsidiary.

** The company had issued a corporate guarantee in favor of PNB Hongkong(now PNB-Dubai) for loan
granted by PNE Hongkong (now PNB-Dubai) to its wholly own subsidiary Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. PNB
Hongkong (now PNB-Dubai) has invoked the corporate guarantee on default made by Kohinoor Foods
USA Inc. The company has recognised the loss of Rs. 39,87, 14,728/ (previous year Rs. 39,28,12,456/-

an account of this lfability...




V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

sl

No Particulars of Remuneration

Mame of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total
Amount

1 | Gross salary

{a} Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income- tax Act, 1961

{h) Value of perquisites u/fs 17(2) Income-
tan Act, 1961

{¢) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income tax Act, 1961

Mr. Jugal

Mir. Satnam

Kishore Arora Arora

Mr. Gurnam
Arora

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission as % of profit
athers, specify..

w E-T TR ]

Others, please specify

Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

- The Executive Directors have forgone their remuneration for the months from Agril 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024,

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Particulars of Remuneration

MName of Directors

Total
Amount

Mr. Sunil
Sharma

Mr. Yash Pail
Mahajan

Mrs. Mani
Chandra
Bhandari

1. Independent Directors

+ Fee for attending board / committee
meetings

125,000

125,000

125,000

375,000

+ Commission

« Others, please specify

Total (1)

125,000

375,000

2. 0ther Man  -Executive Directors

« Fee for attending board / committes
meetings

- Commission

« Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

125,000

125,000

125,000

375,000

Total Managerial Remuneration

125,000

125,000

125,000

375,000

DOverall Ceiling as per the Act

e




C. Remuneration to key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Key Managerial Personnel

5l

Ho. Particulars of Remuneration
Comy
CEO Yy CFO Total
Secretary
1 | Gross salary
() Salary as per provisions cantained in 13.11.186 24,03 721 37.14.907
saction 17{1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 i s Y
(b} Walue of perguisites ufs 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961
(@ Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income -tax Act, 1961
Stock Option - -
Sweat Equity - - - -
. Commission-as % of profit others,
specify...
5 Dthers, please specify - - - -
Total - 13,11,186 24,03,721 37,14,907

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There are no penalties/ punishment/ compounding of offence against Kohinoor Foods Limited and
its Director and officers for the year ended 31st March, 2024,




ANNEXURE-D

Disclosers as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 5{1) of the Companies

{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

Ratio of remuneration of each director of the median remuneration of employees of the Company and the

Percentage increase in remuneration of Directors & KMPs in the Financial Year:

remuneration and company Performance.

Ratio of
uneration of
s, nerr: diuﬂ::tn Percentage increase in
No MName of Director/KMP Designation B remuneration during FY
remuneration of A
Employees
1 bir, Jugal Kishore Arora Chairman = 0.00%
2 kAr. Satnam Arora Jt. Managing Director 0.00%
3 Mr. Gurnam Arara It. Managing Directar - 0.00%
4 mr. Chashu Arora Chlef Financial Officer .71 19.01%
5 ir, Deepak Kaushal Company Secretary 166 20.20 %
3) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employess in the e
financial year, ’
4 Mumber of permanant employes on the roll of Company as at March g5
31,202 4
Average remuneration
increassd by 18.69%, and
lanati the relationship b i i
) Explanation on the re o between average increase in e e M s B

15.21 %, thereis loss

Lo total revenue

during the year.
{Rs. in Million)
Total Turnover 950.97
Comparison of remuneration of Key
E:' manauerla[ Hemuneration ua]nﬂ Tﬂ'tal Remuneration to KMP 3.71
the performance of the compary
Total Bemuneration of KMP as % 0.395%

Varlation in market capitalization of the company as at March 31,

Parket capitalization
Increased from Rs. 118.14

come out with the last Public offer in the year

7 2004 million as an 31st March
2023 to Rs. 187 95 miliion
as on 31st March 2024
i Price eaming ratio of the Company MN/A
Percentage increase over/decrease in the market quotation of the
i shares of the company as compared to the rate at which the company A

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of the

employee other t  han the manageral personnel in the last financial year
3l and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in managerial remuneration

Average remuneration
increased by 18.69%, and
the turnover increased by
15.21 %, there is loss
during the year.




9) Comparison of each remuneration of Key Managerial Remuneration against the performance of the Company

s Remuneration in FY Remuneration as % of
H-q; Name of KMPs 2023-24 revenue median
i (Rs. in Million) remuneration of Employees
1 | Mr lugal Kishore Arora o 0.00%
2 Mr. Satnam Arora ] 0.00%
3 | Mr Gurnam Arora 0 0.00%
4 | Mr. Chashu Arora 2.40 0.25%
5 | Mr. Deepak Kaushal 131 0.14%
The Key parameter of any variable compaonent of
6 : : : Mot applicabl
remuneration availed by the Directors RPelietis
Ratio of remuneration of highest paid director to
that of the employee who are not director but
7 p o . ; Mot applicable
recefve remuneration in excess of the highest paid ap
director during the year.
It is hereby affirmed that the
ati di
Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the ki F_al i
& remuneration polic LR RemUnaRYon Pelinyeer
PENEY: Director, KMP and other
employees.




L] ent tors'
TOTHEMEMBERS OF KOHINOOR FOODS LIMITED

Qualified Opinion,

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited ("the Company”). which
comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2024, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and the standalone Statement of Changes in equity for the year
ended, and asummary efthe significantaceounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects/possible
effects of the matters described in paragraph under 'Basis for Qualified Opinion’, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Actin the manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepled in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at March 3151,
2024, andits siandalone profitloss including other comprehensiveincome, its standalone cash flows and the changes in equity for
theyearended on that date.

BasisforQualified opinion

1. Inreference to Note No. 38 in the statement discloses the management's assessment of the company’s ability to confinue as
going cancern. The management's assessment of going concern is based on the OTS by the lead bank PNB and the intarest
shown by prospectiveinvestorsin the company. However, in view of default in re-paymenl of borrowings, conlinuous losses,
negafive net worth and due to financial consiraints, material uncertainty exists about the company's ability to canfinue as
going concern and the decision of the management of the company to prepare the accounts of the company on going concem
basis. There may arise a need o adjust the realizable valug of assets and labilities in the event of failure of assumption as ta
going concem. Further, the company had made a provision of Interest for last quarter ended March-23 for Rs. 359 Lacson
0TS amountand Rs. 1756.89 Lacs for the yearended 315t March 2024 on OTS amount, which makes & total Provision of Rs.
2116 Lacs upto yearended 318t Mar 2024, The company isinadvanced stage of discussionwith the prospective investor, The
deal with the prospective investor Is likely to be finallzed very soon and the company is hopeful to meet its OTS obligation
withinihebank granted stipulatedtime.

2. Asstated in Note No.26 of Standalone Audited Financial Results, Loss of the company is understated by Rs.12,984 lacs
{approx.) duetonon-provisioning ofinterest on bank loans forthe period from 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024 and Rs. 58 630 acs
{approx. ) from the date on which the account of the company was classified as NPAto the period covered under audit, due to
non-provisioning of interest on bank loans after the accounts of the company were classified as NPA. Also, towards revoked
corporate guarantae of the wholly owned subsidiary in USA, the company has not providad interest o the extant of Rs 265
lacsfortheyearended 31.03,2024 and Rs. 925.64 lacs upto 31.03.2024 fram the date of revocation of corporate guarantee in
the books of account. Further no provision has been made towards penal interast, any other penalty eic. as may be charged
by lendars. In the absence of complete statement of account fram the bank, the above amount has been arrived as per
calculation made by the company. With the limited information the aggregate amount un-provided in books of account of the
companyisnot ascertainable withaccuracy.

Emphasis of Matters
We draw your attention to the following matters inthe Notes tothe financial statements:

(1) The company has not made Provision for the demand raised by various authorities (Such as Income Tax, Vat elc.) as the
matiers ere pending before various appeliate forums. We are unable to commentupon possible impact of non-provisionin the
standalone financial statementforthe yearended 31stMarch 2024,

(2) Wedrawattention o Note Ne. 15 of the statement of the company, The Secured Creditors of the Company have filed petition
underSection 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the Hon'ble court of NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, which are
nat yet admitted. The Next Date of Hearing has bean schaduled for 11th-July 2024. The company has filed an appeal before
Hon'ble High Court Punjab & Haryana for stay. The Hon'ble High Court has granted interim stay till the Next Date of Hearing
29th Oct2024.

{3} With reference to MNote no. 15 against amount payable to Bank, management has raised certain disputes fowards
overcharging ofInterest. Asondate company has paid INR 40.09crores to banks inthe no-lien account, the saidamount has



beennetted offin the tolal cutstanding of Loan repayable on Demand from Banks.

{4) Inreferenceto Note No.46, balances of some debtorsand creditors are subject to their confirmations.

(5) In reference to Note no. 35D, The Company's vendor has filed an execution pefition before Faridabad District & Session
Judge. The companyis conlesting the matter. The next daie of hearing is 17th July 2024, The Company filed a petition before
the Hon'ble High Court Delhi with regard to contesting of proceeding before Districtand Session Court, Faridabad. The Next
Date of Hearing is 10th July 2024, The Company also filed a petition before the Hon'ble High Court Punjab & Haryana with
regard to contesting of procaeding bafora District and Session Courl, Faridabad. The nextdate ofhearingis 17th Sep 2024,

{6) MNote no. 15(d) of the financial result stating that the company has received Ex-parte Interim Order dated 25-06-2020 from
Debl Recovery Tribunal-Ill, Delhi restraining the company from transferring/ alienating or otherwisa dealing with, or
disposing off or encumbering or creating any third-party interest with respect of the hypothecated assetsfimmovable
properties of Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter and has filed its reply before DRT-I, Delhi.
Thenextdateofhearing s 2B.Aug 2024,

Note no. 15 [f) of the financial result stating that the Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT-IIN, New Delhi under section
19(4) ofthe Act. The Company is contesting the matter. The nextdate of hearingis 31 May 2024,

{7} Inreference to Note no.41 read with Note no. 42 of the Balance Sheet which explains the management's assessment of
impairmant of assets due to COVID 18 pandamic situations. As per the assessment of the management, the recoverable
amount of assetz is higher than it carrying value and hence no impairment of assets needs o be recorded in the financial
statements.

(8} Inreference to Note no. 15{c) to the siandalone financial statement the Banks have classified the company's accounis as
non-Performing asset and served recall Notice under section 13(2) & 13({4) of The Securitization and Reconstruction of
Financial Aszels and Enforcement of Security Inlerest Ael, 2002, The Campany has given reply of said nolices within the
stipulated time.

{9} In reference lo Note no. 35 (viii)(b). The Municipal Corporation has issued notice to the Builder of Pinnacle Tower for
vacating of premises Pinnacle Tower, at Surajkund Faridabad. The Builder obtained interim stay on the order of Municipal
Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon'ble High Court Punjab and Haryana. The Company also filed a petition before the civil
judge, senidr divisicn, Faridabad with regard to stay of proceeding against order of Municipal Cerporation, Faridabad. The
Hon'ble Faridabad Court has stated that already interim stay have been granted by the Hon'ble High Court, hence no ground
togrant rellefprayedforismade outatthis stage, The next date ofhearing s 11th July 2024,

(10} In reference to Note no. 35(iv), Joint Director (Investigation} cum Deputy Commissioner State Tax, Bhatinda had served
notice for hearing regarding Company appeal under section 62 of the PVAT Act 2005 for the additional demand created under
the PIDB Act 2002 for the FY 2008-10, FY 2010-11 & FY 2011-12 amounting to Rs. 455,67 487/- The Company has filed
appeal inChandigarh Tribunal and the matteris yetio be listed.

(11) Inreferenceto Note no. 4810 the financial statement, Company's Rice manufacturing unitis not running up to its full capacity
duetonon-availability/shortage of funds.

(12} In reference to Nete no. 47 corresponding figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever
necessary to confirmto currentyear classification.

(13} In reference to Note no. 158, The Secured Creditors (IDBI Bank) of the Campany have filed petition under Section 7 of
Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016, before the Han'ble court of NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, which is yet to be admitted.
TheNextDateofHearingis 15 July 2024,

(14} In reference to Note no.35D, The Company filed a petition before the Hon'ble Apex Court with regard o contesting of
proceeding before District and Session Court, Faridabad. The Hon'ble Apex Court had allowed the company petition with
granting reliefto the Company and parties againstthe impugned order of Faridabad District Courtand asked the Company to
depositINR 50 Lakhs each in twotranches in a gap of two weeks before the Hon'ble High Court for seeking direction far further
relief,

Ouropinion s notmodified inrespectof lhesematiers.



Key Audit Matters.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in cur audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our auditof the financial statements as a whols,
andinforming our opinionthereon, andwe donot provide a separate opinion onthese matiers. In addition, the matters described in
the"basis forqualified opinion”and "emphasis of matter” paragraph are by their nature are key auditmatters.

Responsibility of Management's and Those Charged with Governance forthe Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")
with respect ta the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance

including other comprehansive Income, cash flows and changes In equity of the Company In accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accapted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate:
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
stalemenis thatgiveatrusandfairview and are free from material misstatement, whetherduetofraud orerrar.

In preparing the financial statement, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, a5 application, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess
managementeitherintends toliquidatethe companyorlocease operalions, orhasnorealistic alternative bulto do so,

Thus, boardofdirectors are also respensible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility

Cur objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as & whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due tofraud orerror, and toissue an auditer's report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance isa
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantea thal an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists: Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Reportonother Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central Government of India in tarms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 oftheAct, we give inthe Annexure A, a statemant on the matters specified in the paragraph 3and 4
of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143{3) ofthe Act; we report that:

al We have sought and oblained all the information and explanations which o the best of our knowledge and beliel were
necessaryforthe purposes of ouraudit; excepiasstatedin paraunderthe head "Basis for Qualified Cpinion®,

b) Exceptforthe effectsipossible effects of the matters described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph abave, in
our apinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company sa far as it appears from our
examination ofthose books;

¢) Thestandalone financial statementdealtwithin the report arein agreement with the books of account and return;

d) Excepl for the effectsipossible effects of the matters described in the "Basis for Qualified Oplnion" paragraph, in our
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act,
readwith Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules;

g) Thematters describedin the "Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect
onfhe functioning ofthe Company,



f) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the director's is disqualified as on March 31st, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
oitheAct:

g) Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating

eftectivenessof suchcontrals, refer togurseparate reportin “AnnexureA”; and

hy Thecompany hasmaintgined audittrailin the books of accounts maintained asper the provisolorule 3(1) of Companies

1

(Accounts) Rules , 2014 as applicable with effectfrom 1stApril 2023.

With respect to the other matters to be included inthe Auditor's Reportinaccordance with Rute 11ofthe Companies (Audit

andAuditors) Rules, 2014, inouropinionandtothe bestof surinformation and according to the explanations given o us;

I. The Company has disclosed the Impactof pending litigafions on its financial position in ifs financial statements. Refer
Note 35tathe financial statemants;

il, Exceptasmatterdescribed under “basis forqualified opinion” and “Emphasis of maller” paragraph, the company has

made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracls including derivative contracts- ReferNola 28, 33, 34 and 39tathefinancial statements:

lii. There has been nodelay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fundby the Company.

Place: Delhi ForM/s N C Raj & Associates
Date: 29-05-2024 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 24088636BKARILT00 FirmReg.No.002249N

(CA.Sanjay Garg)

Partner

M.Mo.DBBE3E



Annexure-A to the Auditor's report (Referred to in our report of even date)

The Annexure referred toin Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the company on the standalone financial statement
forthe yearended 31stMarch, 2024, we reportthat:

Vi

vii.

Inrespectoftha Company's Praperty, Plantand Equipment and Intangible Assels:

(a)

(B)
(b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including  quantitative details and situation of
Properly, Plantand Equipment and relevant delails of right-of-use assels.

The Company has maintained proper racords showing full particulars ofintangible assets.

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets at regular

intervals which, in our apinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets,
According tothe information and explanations given fous, no material discrepancies were noticed on suchverification.

(¢}  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the

company, thetitiedeeds ofimmovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(d} The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible

assetsduring theyear.

(e] Moproceedings have beeninitiated duringthe yearorare pending againstthe CompanyasatMarch 31, 2024 for holding

any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

. [a) The Company has a program of physical verification of inventory al regular intervals which, in aur opinion, is reasonable

having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its inventory, According to the information and explanations
givenious, no material discrepancies were noticed on suchverification,

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Scrore, In  aggregate, atany points oftime

during the year, from banks or financial inatitutlons on the basis of security of current aszets and hence reparting under
clause 3{ii){b) ofthe Orderis notapplicable.

During the year the company has not made investments In, provided any guarantee or security or granted any |oans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
partiesand hence, clause (i) ofthe Orderisnotapplicable,

The company has notgiven any loan, made any investment and provided any security lo the parties covered under section
185 and 1E6 of the companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of records, we understand that the
company has not received advance from customer for supply of goods which has been outstanding for mare than three
hundred and sixly-five days and fall under the definilion of depasil ufs 73 Lo 76 read with rule framed thereunder, However,
the company has not complied with requlation u/s 73 to 76 and rule framed thereunder.

According fo the information and explanations given to us, the costrecords specified by the central Government under sub
section (1) of section 148 of the companies Act have been made and maintained by the company. However, we have not
made the detailed examination of the costrecords with a view o delermine whether they are accurate orcomplate,

Inrespectofstatutory dues:

{a) Accordingtotheinformationandexplanations giventousand onthe basis of ourexaminationof therecords of



will.

the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including employees state
insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), State Insurance, PF. ESl, Customs Duty, Cess and other
statutory dues to the appropriate authority. However, statutory duesas onthelastday ofthe financial year are
due foraperiodofless thansixmonths from the date, they become payable.

(b} According tothe information and explanations given fo us, thers are dues of Income  Tax, Sales Tax, VAT, Customs,

Excise etc which has not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of disputes refer to Note no. 35 of
financial statement.

As per theexplanations and information given lo us there were no transactions relating to previousty unrecorded income that
have beensurrendered or disciosed as income during the yearin the tax assessments under the Incomea TaxAct, 1961 (43 of
1961).

a)

Onthe basis of Audit procedures and as per the information gathered and explanations received, we are of the opinion
that the company has defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowing to bank and financial institutions. As per the
below details:

Total default .

Sr. No. | Name of Bank amount*(Rs in Mﬂt{,;‘:g:‘ g;lay

Lakhs) y
1 Indian Bank (Allahabad Bank) 14,934 65 2189
2 Bank of India 7,216,66 2190
3 ICIC] Bank Limited 5,754.08 2008
4 IDBI Bank Limited 4,486.95 2170
5 Punjab Mational Bank 28,704.94 2194
B State Bank of India 2.965.58 2131
7 Funjab Mational Bank — Corporate Guarantee 3,987.15 1461

Grand Total 68,050.00

* Amount of interest not provided in books of accounts
* Also the amount of Rs. 4009.10 lakhs deposited in No lien account of PNB against the OTS
amount of Rs. 25000 lakhs is not adjusted with above respective balances.

b

c)

d

As perthe information and explanation given to us, Punjab National Bank (PNB) had declared the company as wilful
defaulter. However the company/ Directors had submitted the resclution plan for outstanding dues of the bank, which
theconsartiumled by PNBhad sanctioned.

Term loans are applied for the purpose for which the loans are obtained and hence reporting an clause 3(ix)(c) Is not
applicable.

The company has not raised fund on short term basis and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix){d) of the Order is not
applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of orto meet the ebligations ofits subsidiaries.

The Company has not raised any ioans during the year on the pledge of any sacunities held in its subsidianes, joint
venturesorassociate companies and hence reportingonclause 3(ix)(M ofthe Orderis not applicable ]
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(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the yearand hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) ofthe Orderis notapplicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferantial allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures(fullyorpartlyoroptionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Orderis notapplicable.

(a} Mofraudbythe Gompanyandno material fraudonthe Company has beennoticed or reported during the year,

(b) No reportundersub-section (12) ofsection 143 ofthe Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rute 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the yearand up to the date
ofthisrepaort.

(¢} Mowhistle-blowercomplaints were received by the auditor during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of
the Orderisnotapplicable.

The Company isnotaMidhiCompany and hencereporting under clause (xiijofthe Orderis notapplicable.

Inouropinion, the Company isin compliance with Section 177 and 188 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 with respectio applicable
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) Thecompanyhasaninternal audit systemecommensurate the sizeand nature ofits business.
{b) Thereportsofthe internal auditorforthe period under auditwere considered wherever necessary.

In our apinien during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Diractors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 182 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

(@) Inouropinion, the Companyis not required to be registered under section 45-|Aof the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Hence, reportingunder clause 3{xvij(a), (b)and |c) ofthe Orderis not applicable.

{b) Thecompanyisnotpartofanygroup. Hence, reportingunder clause 3{xvi) (d)ofthe  Orderisnotapplicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding
financial yearand hence clause (xvii) is notapplicable,

Thereisnoresignation ofthe stalutory auditor during the year, therefore this clause {xviii) ofthe Order isnot applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, cther information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Companyisnatcapable ofmeeting its liabilities existing atthe date ofbalancesheetas and when they fall due within a pericd
of ona year from lhe balance sheel date. We, however, state thal this Is nol an assurance as to Lhe fulure viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as andwhenthey falldue.

The company has incurred losses during the three immediately preceding financial years and hence, it is not required to
spandany monay under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the orderis not
applicable iothecompanyforthe year.

Instandalone financial statements reporting under clause (xxi) ofthe orderis not applicable.

Place: Delhi ForM/sNCRaj& Associates
Date: 29-05-2024 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 240886 36BKARILTO0 FirmReg.No.002249N

(CA.Sanjay Garg)

Partner

M.No. 088636



Annexure - B to the Auditors’' Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act")

Inconjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements ofthe Company as of and for the year ended 31st March, 2024,
we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reparting of Kehinoor Food Limited (hereinafler referred to as “the
Holding Company").

Management's ResponsibilityforInternal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintalning internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria esiablished by the holding Company considering the essential
eomponents of intarnal control statad in the Guidanca Note on Auditof Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Charlered Accountant of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilitizs include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls thatwere operating effectively forensuring the orderfy and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the company's policies, the safequarding ofits assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recards, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
asrequired underthe companiesAct, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reparting of the Company based on our
audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
{"the Guidance Note") issued by the ICAl and the Standards of Auditing, issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both [ssued by the
ICAl Those Standards and the Guidance Nate require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the auditio
obtain the reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintainedandif such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur auditinvelves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the adeguacy of the internal financial controls system
overfinancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit ofinternal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thal a material
weakness exists, andtestingand evaluatingthe designand operating effectiveness ofinternal control based on the assessedrisk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether duetofraud orerror,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company,

Meaningofinternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepled accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, inreasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arerecorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assetsthat could have a material effecton the financial siatements.

InherentLimitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper menagement override of contrels, material misstatements due to errer or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls aver financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
theinternalfinancial controloverfinancial reperiing may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliancewith the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Basis of Qualified Opinion

We draw our attention to paragraph of “Basis for qualified opinion” of our main report and the same to be read with our comments as
stated balow:

Accordingloinformalion and explanalions glven lous and based on our audil, the following material weakness has been identified
asatdistMarch, 2024.

1. TheCompany didnothave anappropriate internalcontrolsystem for
(a) Customeracceplance;
(b) Customercreditevaluation;
(c) Establishing customercreditlimitiorsales;
(d] Acceptanceofgoods by customersand transferofrisk & reward atthe fime of sales,

This could potentially result in the company recognising revenue without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate
collection.

2, TheComganydidnothaveanyinternal control system for follow-upirecovery/adjustment of old outstanding receivables and
payables including balance confirmation and reconciliation.

A'Malerial weakness'is adeficiency, or a combination of deficiency, ininternalfinancial control averfinancial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual financial statement will not be
preventedordetactiveontimelybasis,

Qualified Opinion

In our opinian, except for the effectsipassible effects of basis of qualified opinion, the halding Company has maintained, in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls system aver financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively asat 31st March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essantial components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Internal Financial Cantrols Cver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We hava considered the malerial weaknesses idenlified and reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit
tests appliedin curauditof the March 31, 2024 standalone financlal statements of the group and these material weaknesses does
nataffectouropinion onthe standalona financial statements of the company.

Place:Delhi ForMis N CRaj& Associates
Date: 20-05-2024 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 240886 36BKARILTO0 FirmReg.No.002249N

(CA. Sanjay Garg)

Partner

M.No.0BBG36



Standalone Balance Sheat as at 11st Mar 2024 iPs.in Lacs)
As at Asat
Particulars Note 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
A ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Preperty, Plant and Equipment 3 15812 41 15808 00
Capital Work in Progress 3 1147 B.27
Financial Assais
Other Non Current Assels 4 126312 73318
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 5 744 84 30347
Total 17.831.93 16,953.91
Current Assets
Inveniones fi 1,157 .60 T48.02
Financial Assels
Trade Receivables 7 143631 1,242 28
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 45.41 179.50
Other Financlal Assels 8 5.52 3.70
Qther Current Assets 10 2.113.36 2181.26
Total 47581 4 354 76
TOTAL ASSETS 27 590 14 21,308 68
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 1 3,707.15 370715
Other equity 12 (55,916 54) (55,448 20)
Total 152 209.39) (51,741.06)
Liabilities
Mon Current Liabilities
Financial Liabifibes
Barrowings 13 6.408.29 640493
Provisions 14 103.43 TA.60
Total 651272 6484 53
Current Liabilitles
Financial Liahifities
Barrowings 15 B3.611.99 54.2395.20
Trade Payables 16 1.628.74 Ti4.44
Cher Financial Liahilibes 17 2,78364 1810
Other Current Liabilities 18 23381 64524
Provisions 19 2764 21H
Total B8.286 81 G6,565.149
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 22 590,14 21,308 68

The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of

the Financial Statoments

s per our Report of even date attached

for N C Raj & Associatas
Chartered Accountants
FRN: D0Z242N

Sanjay Garg
Pariner
Membership No: 088638

Faridabad
E-May—zﬂz#

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Satnum Aroza Gurnam Aroed
I Me. Disector It My Disector
T Mo 00 T0465T [N N, 073
Chashu Arora Deepak Koushal
CFO Company Secretiry



Statemeant of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 315t Mar 2024 [Rs.nm Lacs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars Note 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 20 9.509.70 825421
Other Income 1 63.63 170,83
Total Income 357333 8,425,714
EXPEMSES
Cost of Material Consumed X2 3,250.42 227095
Purchases of Stock-In-Trade . A55.44 229.75
Changes in Inventories of Firished Goods WP and Stack in
Trada _ P (12140 (100 08)
Employes Benefits Expenses 23 606,84 566,81
Finance Costs P 1,791.81 1,799.04
Depreciation and Amorlisation Expenses 3 631,12 BT1.40
Other Expenses 27 385477 342528
Total Expensas 1045205 9.583.16
Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax (BB5.72) 11,158.02)
Add : Exceptional ltems-Income o TEQ.A0
Less : Prior Period Expenses 8,549 107.07
Profit Before Tax (894.31) (484.29)
Tax Expenses
Current Tax . -
Irvzame Tax for Prior Years - -
Defarred Tax (441.47) (72 56)
Profit!(Loss) for the year 1452.84) (411,73
Othar Comprahansive Income
Items that will not be reclassified Lo prafit or loss
Ramaagirements of defred banefl plang {1650} 579
Fair value of Irvastmants throwgh OC| ) . 2
Incame tax relating to Hems that will not be reclassified o profit or lpss
Bther Comprahansive Income for the year {15.50) 578
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (4R8 34) (406 24)
EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (Face valua of 10 sach)
Basic (In Rs.) 32 (1.26) {1.10)
Diluted (In Fs.) 32 (1.28) (1.10)

Thr Accaumyunping Woles fonm an infagral pand of the Foancal Stalonents

I tesrimes o war repost of even dute atiached

for N C Raj & Associatas
Chartered Accountants
FRN: D0Z242N

Sanjay Garg
Partner
Mambership Mo: DBSG36

Faridabad
20-May-2024

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Satmam Arar
It Mo, Dhreetor
DT M [+ Bt T

Chashu Arora
CEO

Gurnam Arara
It My Dhrectos
TR o, T

Deepak Kaushal
Company Secretary



Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 315t Mar 2024 iRs.in Lacs)
% For the Year Ended Far the Year Ended
Particul
an F1-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2013
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit hefore s (B30 (48420
Adiustmemts for
Deprecistion wnd Amortisation Expenses HIL1Z 7140
Timance cosi 178181 1. 794 14
Ingerost meome (ha1) (]
{Profii)Loss on SaleiDeletion of Fived Assets (3.84) {03
Income frim Key Man Insurance Policy (51,66 (51,36
Operating profit before working capital changes: 1ATLE6] 1.935.78
Adyustments for
Drecrunse| Increase | in livenierics {438 {3%.04)
Dreerease( Increase | Trade Recevables {14403 {1 16.04)
ThevrensedTncrease | in ofher Receivables {63, 56) (114,289
Ineremed Decrease) in Trade pavables R45.20 (48.24)
Inerense | Decrease) n other pavables 136786 T
Cash generated from operuthons TRI8.3 115030
Inconmae mx: pad - -
Net Cash from operating activities 281830 L1503
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Sale of property, plant and equipmend’s {33309 (75.49)
Sale of [vestments . 11.26
Interest Received 051 ]
Tnreoms from Key Man Inswranee Policy 5166 5136
Mot cash from Investment activities (4%1.73) {1241)
€. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Icrense Dhecrease]) in short term bocrowings (6R3.210 (268.98)
[ncrease’| Decrease) im Long temm borrowings 4.0 {33.3K)
Ingerest poidd (179181 (1,74 04
Net cash flow from financing activities (2 AT 60) (20004100
Nt IncreasedDecrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {1300 36,57
- Cish & Clash equivalent ot bemtnning of the year 1730 14293
- Cash & Cash equivalemt at end of the yenr 4541 | 750
{134.00 36.57
In terms of cur repest of even dute artached
for N C Raj & Associatas For and on behalf of the board of directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002248M
Sarnanm Ao Crurarm Aroea
Ju My Drirsetor It Mo [pector
BN B N1 (047 1M b, OERI10T1Y
Sanjay Garg
Parinar
Membership Mo 088636
Fardabad Chashi Arota Preepak Kaushal
20-May-2024 CED Company Secretary



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. Equity Share Capital
{Bs.in Lacs)
Particulars Mo. Shares Amount
Balance as at 15t April, 2022 L0715 33070148
Change in aquity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 318t March, 2023 5I0.715H 30715
Change in equity shase capitsl during the year - .
Balance as a1 31st March, 2024 37071530 30715
B. Other Equity
iBs.in Lacs)
Particulars Capital Reserve  Securities Premium  Retained eamnings Revaluation Total
Aceaunt Surplus
Balance 5 at 1st April, 2022 144972 13,757.23 (RE.1%4.39) L5 RRE19 55,226y
Frafit for the pear (11,78 (41173
(rher Comprehensive ncome for the Year T EXL)
Tolal Comprahengive Income for the year 5 - (4415 54 - 405 54
Dividends
Trarsfarred fo Genara! Reserve
Balance s at 3=t March, 2023 14971 [5.757.2% 4R 50011 15,885, 10 {55,448, 204
Profit for the year (452.84) (432 54}
Ciher Comprahenswve meame for the Year {15.30) (550}
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {44k, 34) . (468 34}
Dividends i
Trarsfarred lo Genaral Resenve -
Balance a5 at 115t March, 2024 1,45%.72 579703 {BUO3EAT) L5.BRE Iy {55,986.54)
Annexure 1o ow Report of Date For and on behalf of the board of directors

for N C Raj & Associates
Charfered Accountanis
FRM : 002248M

Sanjay Garg
Fartner
Membership No: (83634

Faridabad
29-May-2024

@

Salmam Arern Ciurnum Ararz
It Mg. Dhrceios Je. Mg, Derector
M B DEOEERT LM S, 0072
Chaska Arom Deepuk Kamishal
CFi Compay Sectetarny



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

1. Company Information

Kohinoor Feods Limited was incorporated in 1984, Itis a Public Limited company listed on the stock exchanges, BSE and NSE. The
Company is a leading Basmati Rice player and has a Rice mill situaled at Murthal, Sonepat, Il also owns a Food Faclory situated at
Bahalgarh, Sonepat. The products of the company are known for superior guality and are popular worldwide.

The company has lwo 100% wholly owned subsidiaries —Sachdeva Brothers Private Limited, In India and Kohinoor Foods USA Incin
LSA,

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Preparation

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafler referred (o as the
‘Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Siandards} Amendment Rules, 2016, The
financial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2018 wera prepared by the company undar Ind AS for the first time, with 01-04-2018
as date of transitian,

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention an geing concern basis and on accruals basis unless
olherwise stated. The accounting policies are applied consistently toall the periods presented in fhe financial statements.

{b) Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statemenis requires management to make certain assumptions and estimates that affect the reported
amount, the Financial Stalements and Noles thereto. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periodin
which they materialize.

(c}Property, Plantand Equipment

The Company has adopted revaluation model for land & building, All the assets belonging to these classes of assets are carried at
revalued amount being its fair value al the date of revaluation less subsequent depreciation. The Company shall camry oul the
revaluation of these assets periodically afterevery 3to Syears,

Property, Plant & Equipment under all other classes are stated al cost of acquisitioninstallation Inclusive of freight; duties, and taxes
and all incidental expenses and net of accumulated depreciation. In respect of majer prajects involving construction, related pre-
operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalized. Expenses capitalized also Include applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequent costs are included in the assel's carrying amounl or recognized as a Separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and eguipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as "Capital work-in-
prograss”and stated atthe amount spentup to the date of balance shest.

Intangible assets are stated at thair cost of acquisition.
{d) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Planl & Equipment is provided on writlen down value method, in terms of useful life of the Assels as
prescribed in Scheduls I to the Companies Act 2013, The depreciation rates which ara differant from the principal rates specified in
Schedule-ll are as follows: -

Tarpaulin 100% p.a.

Wooden & Plastic Crates 100% p.a.
|e) Financial Instruments
{1)Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assels are Initlally recognized al falr value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities, which ara not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial
recognition.

Subsequentmeasurement
i) Financial assets carried atamortized cost



Afinancial assetis measured at amortized costif it is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cagh fiows and the contractuzl lerms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates lo cash flows thal are solely
pavments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Afinancial assetis measured at FVTOCH ifitis hald within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assels and the contractual ferms of Lhe financial asset give rise on specified dates o cash flows that arg
solely payments of principal and intereston the principal ameunt outstanding.

iii) Financial assets atfairvalue through profitorloss (FVTPL)

Afinancial assetwhichis notciassifiedinany of the above categories are measured at FYTRL.

Investmentin Subsidiaries, Assoclales and Joint Venlures

The Company hasaccounted foritsinvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Wenture at cost, subject to impaiment loss ifany.
Other Equity Investments

All other equily investmenls are measured at fair value, Investments which are not held for trading purposes and whare the Company
has exercised the option to classify the investment as Fair Valua through other comprehensive incoma ('FVTOCI), all fair value
chariges on the investment are recognisedin OC|.

(2} Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of diractly attrbutable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
directly recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss as finance cost.

Subsequant measurement

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cosl using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one
yearfromthe Balance Sheetdate, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments,

(3) Derivative financialinstruments

Derivative financial instrumenis such as forward confracts, option cantracts and cross currency swaps, to hedge its foreign currency
risks are initially recognized al fair value on the date a derivative contract is enterad into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value with changes in fair value recognized inthe Statemant of Profit and Loss in the period when they arise.

(f) Fairvalue measurement

The Company classifies the fair value of its financial instruments, FYTPL and FVYTOCH, in the following hierarchy, based on the inputs
used imtheir valuation:

i} Leved 1= The fair value of financial instruments quoted in active markets is based on their quoted closing price at the balance sheet
date,

i) Level 2 - The fair value of financial Instruments thal are not traded in an acllve market is delermined by using valuation lechniques
using observable markat data. Such valuation techniques include discounted cash flows, standard valustion models based on market
paramelers for inlerest rales, yield curves or foreign exchange rales, dealer quotes for similar instruments and use of comparable
arm's tength transactions.

iii} Level 3 - The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity specific valuations using inputs that are not
based on observable markel data (unobservable inputs).

(g) Dividend to Equity Shareholders

Dividend to Equity Shareholders is recognized as a liability and deducted from shareholders' equity, inthe pericd in which the dividends
are approved by the equily shareholdersin fhe general meeting.

(h) Inventories
Raw malerials, raded and finished goods are stated althe lower of cost and net realizable value. Stores and spares are carrled at cost.

Cost is determined on FIFO (First in First out) basis for raw material, and an weighted average methed for all ather categories of
inventories. Cosl comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories lo its present localion
and condition, where applicable, include appropriate overheads based on nomal fevet of activily,



{I) Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are shori-lerm, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of chanrges invalue.

{i) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount, rebate, returns and value added taxes.
The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably maasurad; when it is probabla that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific eriteria have bean metfor each of the Company activities.

Revenug from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risk and rewards of ownership in the goods are transferred to the
buyer as per the terms of the cantract, thera is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can ba
measured reliably, On recognilion of revenue the Company retains no effective control of the goods transferred lo a degree usually
associated with ownership and no significant uncerfainty exists regarding the amount ofthe consideration that will ba derived from the

sate of goods.

Interest income is recognized using the effactive interast method. Revenuein respact of Insurance / others claims, Commission, etc. is
regognized only when itis reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

Ravenueinrespact of sale of licanses, duty drawback and otherincentives is recognized on realization basls,
(k) Research and Development

Research expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as imcurred. Davelopment expenditure is capitalized only if the
costs can be reliably measured, future economic benefits are probable, the product is technically feasible and the Company has the
intent and the resources to completethe project. Development assels are amorlized based on the estimated usefullife, as apprapriate.

{l) Employee Benefits

Contributions to defined provident fund are charged 1o the statement of profit and loss an accrual basiz. Present llability for fulure
payment of gratuity is determined on the basis of actuanial valuation at the balance sheet date and the expenses is charged fo the
statement of profitand loss.

{m) Forelgn Currency Transactions

Transactions in forelgn currencies are recognized atthe prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates. Realized gains and losses
on settlement of foreign currency fransactions are recognized in the Statemant of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-snd exchange rates and the resultant
exchange differences are racognized in the Statemant of Prefit and Loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilitizs denominated in 2 foreign currency and measured al histoncal cost are ranslated at the exchange
rate prevalant atthe date oftransaction,

(n) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of inferest, ancillary and other cosis that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
Interestrelating to other financial liabiliies. Borrowing costs alsoinclede exchange differences lo the extent regarded as an adjusiment
lothe borrowing cosls,

Interest and other borrowing costs atiributable to gualifying assets are capitalized as a part of such assets till such time the assets are
ready foruse. Gtherinterastand borrowing costs are charged lo Statement of Profiland Loss.

(p}Income tax

Current Income Tax:

Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with iIncome Tax Act, 1861,
Deferred Tax:

Deferred lax s provided using the balance sheel approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assels and liabilities and
their carmying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. The 1ax rates and tax laws used o compute the tax are
these that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reparling date.

Defarred tax assets are recognized fo the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, andthe carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.



Current and Deferrad tax Is recagnized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, excapt o the extent that it relates to items rem-gn#zed in
other camprehensive income of directly in equity, In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income ar diraclly in
equity.

Minimum Alternate Tax;

According to section 115JAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Minimum Altermative Tax ('MAT') pald over and above the normal income fax
in a subject year is eligible for carry forward for fifteen succesding assessment vears for sel-off against normal income tax liability, The
MAT credit asset is assessed against the Company's normal income tax during the specified peried,

(a) Leases

Atthe date of commancemsant of the lease, lhe Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) assetand a correspanding lease liability for
all laaze arrangemants in which it is a lessee, excepl for leases with a term of 12 months or less {short lerm leases) and fow value
leases. For these shori-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis overthe termof thelease.

The ROU assets are initally recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the Iease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequenily
measured at costless accumulated depreciation and impairmeant losses, ROU assels are depreciated from the commencement date
ona straightling basis overthe shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured al amortized cost at the present value of the fulure lease paymenlis. The lease paymenis are
discounted using the interest rate implicitin the lease,

{r) Provisions, Contingent Liakility and Contingent Assets

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an oufflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amounl of obligation. A disclosure of contingenl liabilily is made when thereis a
possible abligation or a present abligation thal will probably not require outflow of resources or where & rellable estimale of the
obligation cannot be made. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

(s} Impairmentof Financial Assets

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequant to initial recogniiion other than financials assets in FYTPL
category,

(t)Impairment of Mon-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
Indication exists; the Company estimates the recoverable amount of assets, If such recoverable amount of the assets or the
recovargbla amount of the cash generating unit o which the assets belang is less than Its carrying amount, the carrying amount s
reduced toits recoverabla amount. The reductionis treated as animpaimment loss and is recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss. if
atthe Balance Sheetdate there izan indication that if & previously assessed impairment loss no lenger exists. the recoverable amount
isreassassed andthe assets |s reflected at recoverable amount.

{u) Exceptional ltems

Exceptional tems are disclosed separately in the financial statemants wheraitis necassary to do soto provide further understanding of
the financial performance of the company. These are material itlems ofincome or expense thal have to be shown separately due o their
nalure orincidence,

(¥) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic eamings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
autstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to erdinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares,

(w) Events after the reporting period

Adjusting-events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporling period. The financial
statements are adjusted for such events before authorization for lssue.

Man-adjusling events are events thal are indicalive of condilions thal arase after the end of the reporling period. Non-adjusling events
after the reporting dale are notaccounted, bul disclosed.
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[Rs.in Lacsi

Asat J1-Mar-2024 J1-Mar-2023
Othier Now-Lurrent Assety
{Unseoured. cousidered goods)
Secuity Deposil 7.5 B8
{Hthers I,175.41 R4 A%
1263.132 TikIR
Dreferred Tax Asset (M)
[isalkowanes under Incoms tax act, 1961 R 1147
Petlased b fixed gssess 15024 18377
T4 Mi4eT
Invenisriis
A fmken, vatoed and cerfified v the Munsgement)
Rw Material 11247 (HEIRTN
Wk in Progress PRHEE] LR
Frmvished Civds 104,15 112,58
Packing kakerisk Al L1003
| L5780 T4k
2] Imwentories are vaiued a the Jower of vost sod mét relimsble value.
I} Finished poods inchides the Stock in ransil,
Trade Receivabdes
{Unsecumed, Uonsidered Coad
Untstandin for 8 pened exceeding six months 415 Th AT
(ihers (TS Endhl
143631 |,242.2%
Annexure of Trade Receivables as ot 319 March, 2024:-
{1l Undispisted Trade Beceivabies- Considersd Good 10046, 53 144,99 10615
I1ii:| Upnlsspubed Trade Boevables- Conssdered Doohiful - - - - .
Jiiiiy Drisused Tracle Receivables- Comsidened Good - - - - -
Jivh Pispaited Trade Receivables- Considered Dobilul - - - AT e
Ammevire of Trade Receivalibes as at 11 March, 2023:-
Particalary Maaths Year I-2¥earn | 23 Yeans Years -
i Undisputed Trade Receivahles- {ansidered Cood B Al 2503 - - &00.04
ilii!lUbdi!wled Trads Receivabdes- Considered Dasibeful B T45 4942 ThAT
E[iii] Dnsputed Trade Recervables- Considered Good - - - - .
[1iv} Despated Trads Recervables- Considered Douabelul - T = = W
¥ Lashand Cash kgulsakeanns
Balances with Banks m Crre Accosnts T4 544
Cash in Band N R1.52
Fined deposits as Margn Maney with Hanks Tan 2
454l 1745
@ (her Finuncial Assets (Corrent)
Seadl Advance I L]
[mswest mvraed un hank depossis 130 201k
Adhange 1o Helaled Pany (Rl 1154
532 AT
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{Rs.in Laes)

sl 3-Mar-2024 A1Muar-2H13
OHber Current Assels
{Unsevaned, Considered good)
T qunid is agoinst perding Appeal 11455 141499
TUS Hecovable 2025-24 297 -
Aclvaree spaimt Pirchases 17163 17841
MAT Credet Entitlement 5T 4457
Pre-paad Expenzes 16404 xR
Chbers 153 109.27
21133 218126
Eqalty Share Capital
Aunibrgsed Share Cagizal
75 0L | Previcus year 750060, 0600} 73000 7,500,000
Eyuity shares of B, [0 each
. - il
ATOTLEM (Previous year 3TAT]5M) ) LT0v0s Lats
Eyuity Shares of Rs. 104~ each fully poid-ip
3.707.15¢ 370715
The reconciliution of the number of shares outstasding is set our bebws:
Mumbss of Equsty Shanes ot the bepmming of the vear 3T A M L0758
Murnbse of Bquary Sheases isswed Suring the year* - .
Murnber of Equity Shazes ol the end af the veor AT,71.530 170,71 530
Bhares hedd by Shareholders halding mane than § peroent shares s tse Company
Ag At 30-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
N, af Sharcs Shurcholding | o, of Shares Sharcholting
Tugal Kiskare Aroe 1053484 2 44% 10,53.454 284%
Hatnam Arord STALIGE |5.50% 574U 15.51%
| Arore HLRG 204 16,5714 S RU 204 16,175
AL Caltra Internasional Investnwents LLC Tl 48 e 190 T A4, M 1901 %%

TermsRights attached to equiey shores

The Company has enly one closs of equaly shazes having o par valie of Bs, 18- per shore. Exch bodder of syuily shares s entitbed to ane vote per share and hns equal
dividersd i, The Company deehanes aned pays dividend i Indn Bupees. The Dividend 1§ praposeil Ty e Board of Dinectors is subject b sharcholdens opproval in

ihe emaming Anmunl General Meeting:

I the: gvent of ligudamon of the Company, the ety sharcholders will be emmbed 1o tecemve the rmmning assets-of the Conspany mpropostion 10/the masber of

cauity shures felid by dhe shanebalders,

Delatls of pramoters holding in the Company

Asal 31-Mar-2024 — 31-Mar-2023
No. of Shares Shurcholfing | %o, of Sharey Sharcholding

luga] Kishare Arora 1053 404 T 10,53 404 2040
Samam Aron STAU15E 1551 STAuw [5.31%
Ciurnam Aoz LK 204 16.87% 154204 16.57%
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Beemritis Premimm Aggount 1575723 15, 75723
Rovalwabinn Surjdus 15 HRE 1Y L% AT
Triaimed Karmimgs
As peot lnst Bealance Shees IHESSR I B3, L )
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Smtmre nnd Purpese of Beserves

i Capitsl Hewesy
Capiial Reserve had been crestled comsegueenl o farfeiere of Application Money an Shae Wanmants.

il Securitics I*remsiem Acoom

Securities [*remim Accound had been romted  eonseguens 10 ssue of shanes at premam. These resorees. can be ubilised i aocordance with Seation 32 of Canpanies
A, IEE

i Revaluntion Surplay
Rovnhantan surpiliss was eromed oo rovalestion of Lond & Bslding st on 01042401 6.

Barrewings { Moo -LUurrear)
Tinsercurad Lonns
L froms Linsoiors* 6,205 14 LN R e ]
Laian fbons Uiher Paitied™® U ) 20173
fdid 20 &, 414,93
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The commpany o reocihved Ex-pams lmorim Gsder daned 25-106- 20020 fom D:tf Boeovery Trimmakill, Deliv in the mattor of 10T Bami Ve Kohinoor Foods L mitod esmising the compamy: from
Irartalerrnng alismiting o ofhessise deafing wak, o digosing ol ar encunising i awiting any think s sl with oapsct o the Inpothetal et immsali propmis of Cnmpsi solil
firber orders. The company is comeesting che moarior sl mak ing nepssany a0Tion

Th i Tl iptal & o v v ol FRE Honghonginonw TNB-Dubai} e i granial by TNB Heotygbomy o ME-Dobias] e 35w hally aoen sigsidery: Kohinor Fiake 8A
B P Hinggkanigg {mow P"\.I.E-I'.htw,l lits. ikl ihe cosporiie pustuisee oo delaul made by Sobinees Foads USA lue The comgany s recogniised e Lims of Bs. 398715 Locs ipreviots yoir Ra.
BO0A, 12 Lais e sccouns of this Rabubiy,

Ut Load Bank hes Hled pottisn before DRT Cobi mmlor seotion 195856 o tha Aon The U nmipeivy s conbesting tha marter.
Ader the Balemcode Dand

Fhe Cromgey bas peceheed o ey o QU0 Hask Lid pegarding sselpnnien of Debd af Congany o Praden) AR Led vade thel msiprement sgreamen dasd 1005 2004 wiese the Haik has siaeed
thiat i s sigined all s mpte o relation so the owstandisg sxposne of e Company,
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Far thi year ended 3-Mar-2024 J1-Mar-2013
Trade Pavahle )
Daue to Mecw, Small aud Medinm Enterprises 1Te.a0 -
Taie to Oibers 1.152k4 TEadd
1,625.74 784,44
——

Annesure of Trade Payables as ot 3si March, 2014:-

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

i an | taven | wven |WET)
(1] MSME 200 56 = 7755 A76.90
ity Others 73594 E 2 45040 1.236.34
[iii} Dasputed dues- MSME - 1649 = 16,49
{0} Mhspuled dues- Others - = 5 = =

Anneyure of Trade Pavables as af 3151 March, 2023:.*

COutstanding for fallowing perinds from due date of payment

PRiaph bosmanl | paves | 2aves | MOEHORS g
[i] MSME - - - - -
[ii) Chbers 230,17 A3 b 15041 Th.44
liiiy Dispuned dues- MSME = - - 2
{3v] Disputed dues- Dthers - - - - -
* Conyprary has mot classificd the trade payables, doe w msme, sinee the vendors ave ot submized any docament refaed 10 mame certification.
Other Fimaneial LiablHides (Current)
Current maturitics ol long-term debi AT 2,651
Employees Benefits Payable 4534 4003
(ihes Payahics ShdR2 3RO
Interest Prayuble 21166 3357
2, 7H3 o BI9, 1
Oiher Current Lahilktes
Addvanee toceivad o customiers 153432 STHRE2
Stansuey Lishilities T4T 1401
Chies Linbifities HLSl k4|
13141 4534
Frovisiom (Current )
Provvision for gratusty 274 2121
2764 21.21
Hevenues From Operations
Sales of Prducts EEERE THIT M
Uhher Opemating: Revenaes 1.6 £16,57
230970 £.254.31
Salbes af Products
Rice 12t | BR5.51
Fands RT3 315151
9432 44 TA37.14
(ther Opernting Revenmes
Sl o Sermp 3830 340
Tneome fran Riee Processing - ATA54
Dhuty Dvwhineh, Sake of Livenses 1. MLIT
1726 hibKy
Crther Income
Trcame froam Key Man Insirance Palicy 5166 5126
Enterest Income 051 196
Cemission Inzome 7453 By
Miscellaeous ncons B W7
Prisfit om Sale of Assets 184 (103
163 [Tk
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{Rain Lacsi

Fur the year ended F-Mar-1023
ol o Wlatgrial Conswised
Uhpening Srock UL
A Purhases 203,08
Les Claning Stick 1330
22T0LS
Purchase of | ruded Calds
MonsHasmati Rice E RA0.57
Fapde 85 My 1257
Uiher Foaals Producis Ih33 -
IO Revgnsal an Txempt B [NE -} 19.62
355,44 529,78
Cleamges in Dnvenrarics of Finished Gosds, Wark ln Progress and Stock in Trade
Cipreping lveniorjes 19341 4343
Clusiag liveeniorics 1043 192 ]
1 21.4¥ ITERER
Empliver Benefn Eypeases
timdf Snlaries LG e
Ciratuity 1972 17 58
[LET 1524 101.H%
Sadf Wielfan: YR ] AnHA
Ernphkryee's Contribution ta P F.& ESI 1252 2060
18 4 AHAHT
Fimamew Cost
Inlonesl Expeenss® 1T AT | ;TRL.
Flank Churges 12,34 16,38
[IECTET 1.7t L

Thi gy T il provided fitenedn duaring cament yeur 0 e exivel of Ba, |38 Lo (peviors venr Bee THSGT6T Loceh g bk dogns slich vwene
whemsifiod mn weparfommng masedts daring ilss yiae fiem LITTER by witre diclored MPAL Misneoveer, thae conmmgrnny has ol provvidind - omerest durimg the vunent b o
Al enend of Bs, 925.65 Lacs, firr ihe. period uptio 31 -E8-20040 an sccoum of reviked corpuente puraniee KFL USA subhsidiry,

ihther Enpenses
WanmPactinring Fipumies

Eeusadimg ankad Unleading Charpes

Packmp Materials Comimmel

Puukimy Murterial Desuming Espenses

Wages

Provieccing Clorge:
Fepamr o Mnchinery
Power & Fuel

Admbnirative Eapenses
Prytment 1o Awditors *
Sttty Awlit Feo
=T Andit Fee
~{nher Matlers

Pustuge, Teleoram and Telephone

Cicncral Exponses” )

Legal and Frofessional Charpes
Elecinicisy Expenses

Foaley aml Tones

Wateh & Wanl

Fahicly Manenanee

Printing fnd Stitlogery
Fumigation Eapeises
Tnsanmnee Chaiges
Comveynnee

Memhership & Subscripaion
Truveling E:I_.II:HEI iHreions)
Tmveling Fxponses (Otlwrs)
Réssarch & Elevelopiweot
UL T Expenies

SlF Recrutment Expsomes
Bok Dhebns’ Roasses Wirsien o
Repazra so Huilding

Reeprazim b (ks

Fareign Exchange Boss

Helling & Diziribotian Exprozes
Adverimevmeni and Pahlicity
Bhusinuees [Proamodion.

Roalsate & Driscount
[t Frelylu
Eapeissts Agaiest Eaport

Brakeyage & Cmnmssian on 5ol

Clesimay sl Forwarding

12:69
| A5t 29

TR MR
3l
3034

257.51

2,218 55

[IRHEY]

[ Wi}
1.0
B3.53
9717

#,Th
k.73
3434
24 81l

3,83

T
R

oy

492
2441
Al

T4

Zal

nons

A65.24
BLT]
2.0
ZEm.HY
Ta0.29

.39
AlAan
a0
3207
2808
[0 8T
A
$30.dd4

3425328



Disclosuras under IND AS-19 "Emplayees Banafits”

a)  Dedined Cowtrihatlen Plans:
St of Bs 2232 Locs (previous vear Ra. 2160 Lacsd perminang to serployers’ eoniribatson o Providest Pand ond Eotployeee Srade Iosurmnee is mecognized s
expoase und incheled " Erplevees cost " i Mo Mo 26
B Defined Bemefit PMlan:
Ceeprrel desermdion of Defined Bewelil Flam (Ciraioalyi;
The Commquny opembes gramity plon whenmin every comboosea i= entitled po the benefit oguivalend 1o 15 doye bdsic saiey e droen for coch comploied year of sendos.
The sare is pavalile on tsnmination of servis, of refirement, af deuth whichever i carlivs. The benedirs vest ather five veams of continnoss service, The Company las ség
i lim oof B 30 lavs: | peevious yoar B, 20l | pec coaploves.
€ The dischosnres Tar pratuity oost is given holow:
I Hecoocifiatsan of apeniny and closing balances of defined benefil ablipation
_ = [Rs.m Bies |
Partienlurs Far the year vmided Far the vear onded
31 March 2124 3 March Hi23
1 [Prosens valoe of abligarss g the bepwming of s vear 10081 2109
2 |Interesl coat Tal Wt
i {urreniy ervios cam [ R L'
4 |Benefin pund = 3249
& pActuanial (pamploss on ohligition 1550 1367
et valme of obligotion ar the =nil of the vear 16 14 10081
Far the vear swiled Far the vear eniled
31 March 2124 31 March 2033
16T 1.a7
. 11k 7HY
IS 13
= 2iL b
. 17K
- [20.05%)
L 167
Far rthe vear cwilcd Far the vear ceiled
31 Msrch Mi24 31 Swrch HI2%
] Fapecied Inierest Income ulr ikii2
T [wnincinl minive i Pl At [N 13
3 pActumrinl g Losyl for the venr om Asseis (L1 k11
Iv Baloice Sheet anad eelabed nnlysiz:-
Partixulars Var the vear emled Far the vesr emded
& 2 3N
1 | Presens ealue oF the abfigatan 2t the end 13616 FiHER]
1.H [
L1346y 199,13)
¥ The amosms recapneed inihe Income Siapemenis _ =
Partleulars Far the vear vodsd Far the vear ended
30 March HI24 31 Mlwich 12X
] Twtal Zervee Cost L2 44 422
1 Mt Inieres Cost T H.id
3 I Ewpiives novossinad i il locomas stiféenenl L9.7E 17.50
Wl (ther Comprehensive Dneome (OCT)
Particulars Var the vear cmied Far the year eled
A Maich 2024 31 Marcti 223 |
1 |Mes commlative utrecopmeed actaaral pam{ s} apening ® -
T Pt g Losn) for the siear on PRO (L5500 6T
3 Acctmal gumYLisss | for the vear on Assct RETEIN] w1l
L4 I\inpecoymiged seinrinl gai/tioss) o ihe year . fu s
vil  Irincipal neimrad sssumgions ar die holance shee date are os Gillowsc
Ao Ecooomic Asswnmpdions
The pruwipal resumgitions e e discout e amd sfaey growih g, The discoint feie & penerally besed upon the market vield pvifable on the Governmes bonds a8
the necowsting dube with o term that mosches thue of the liohilites sl the salory growib e mkes sccount of nflation, scosority, proamotion os] wher elesat foctors on
T e bmasin
|Fsm Locs)
Fartiewlors Var the vear emded Far the vesr emded
3 March 2024 AN March 2023 |
1 Dhscoum Gt T2 135
2 Expecied rade of reburn oo plan ssseat R H.iHE
i1 Gplary i ae 200 00
B, Demopropbde Assumptien
I Reiiremeni H 55 Years
Mol iz iy il : Tvadion Assared life matuniy i 2003-14)




20 Discloveres mnder IND AS-10H om "Segmient Reparting™

A et e threshodl lirsiis prescrsed asder Indian Accaomiing Sandard (Ind A5-300) a0 “Sepment Repoeting” preserbod msaler section |30 ol e Compeanics Adt 2005 et it izfevan uls
Iheveumer wiiil the viber mocnanting princedss penerally seoepkid m ndie. e Compemy's neporubde adnity Gills wilhin g single husiness segmem und hence the disclusane: requinsmmis ane nis

applicable.

M Dischbasires moder INDAS-24 on " Related Party Disclosiires" :

List of refabed partios

Il Whedly Urwiid Sutesidirries of the Company
= Bachidena Hiafhens Bt Tal Tigdia
= Eaiinoor Fooda U5A Tng,

Wb Mokt Weniunen
- Bich Ricr Baigrs Fagory LLE, - Dubai

iy Key hanegenisl Perconne] and s refmives

Mr. Jugnl Kxshire Aror

s, Semmam Asco

Wibe, Liurmam Ares

M, Nem Arom

Me. Amit Ammm

Wl Bumii Arorz

Wir, Ankadi Arom

M, Wishast Axvia

Uhairsam

My Diorctn

My e

Sonof Mr dugal Kishore Arco

“San ol M. Saimam Aror

fm ol Mr, Sammm Amma

- Sonol M Curmom Aroen

Sonal My Carmam A

1ol TFimeepres aves which Ry man agesial persmine exerces sijsa e milunee
- Saitmain Cvervean (Fagorish - Parmishig Firm of Promoles Mo

- Aakcaiis B | Bl Clinie LLP
< b Pkl M, Lok

- Satnam Lasgsme Ll
- Aathuren Huildoos LLP
<N Foods P_m‘u: Lmssed
The tnllawing tresacinas were enrrsed out with relaied parites in the orlinnre cowrse of Rasiness doring the year®
iRa.in L-:..i
Ky M Esterprizes ovitr which
i Boely Manapemment
Sisbreafimry Componics Forsonnel -ﬂ their i . e
e significant imfume
Urnnsacdinns durkes the jer
Sabe ol proshuces ™y = A1, TE
- - [RELEAT
Advanee Keoorecd AEAL
- - EEERET]
Eaum froms Dt - MR m
- (235680 -
Repavment of Direetn’s Losa - BT -
- [ERTHITH -
Erperses inemmed uubduli‘nl':kmla.hﬂpﬂt:.l 1355 = .
124 - -
rluh'nu_:l smisianding at the vear cud:-
Lean Froms Diirvcines . b5 10 .
- 40, 143211 -
Aot From Logkimer: - - LA
- - {5524
L Aidvanze ran B -
154y ] H

"Fipuzsin | Bure eeluied i oesious year

31 Diseboswres moder VD AS-1T om " Lesses 1

I Tl e dio- operating lease agmeemn s i Biee dmd on fetari: ks ronl gonmsiimsnls w-on 31 Wach O il 31 March 2023, M less rosaly wane bl R operatiog heise duriiy gaen

e

M There wore mo Tinmes I\nlr:urﬁ_mnt:- firos oned me fitew Yo ren cemmriments s on 11 Banch 2004 and 37 Manch 2023 Mo Tease remals were pnd iowmnds i ¢ ko shuring oarTem

yesr.



11 Earning Per Share (EPS)
{Hs.n Lacs)
| For the year coded | 31-Mar-2024 | 31-Mar-2023 |
i3 [Tl Comprehensive Bicome For the year atbutable o Eguity Sharcholders l.u.s_}q;! i)
i Weighted Avernge number of Fquity Shares used as desominator foe ealoulsting
Basic EPS 3,70, 7153 370,715
i) |Wenhted Average Potential Equaty Shares - -
i otk Weighted Averags mumber of Equity Shares used a8 denomyinotor far
lcutaing Diluted EMS 370,T1.530 3.70,71.530
vy JBasic Foming Per Shore ll.lﬁﬂ {1,000
il | Mluted Farming Per Share (126 (1000
il YFace Valoe per Equity Share b m
Calculation Weighted Average anmber of Equity Shares
For the year cnded 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2021
Mok, of Drays 365 3Rd
Moz, of Shases 37071530 37071530
Mos. of Days -
M. of Shass -
1] nes. af doys 363 63
Weighted Average number of shores 3,70,71.540 3.70,71.530
33 Disclosures under IND AS 37, "Provisions, Contingenr Liahilitdes and Contingent Assets” , in respect of Provisions
Opening ) Withdrawnly Clasing balance ax al
Provision relafing o (I —— ﬁ':'::" T“ 31- Mareh-2ii24
1 April 2023 1
Cieatuity 10481 3522 487 131.00
1RLR1 1522 447 131,06
M Oher disclasures as per Schedube 10 of the Compamies Act, 2003 (R Lags)
Far the year ended 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
CIF Value of lmpores
- Capital Geoods 4.0 .
= Bivw Muterial Parclisie T2.0% 16856
- Puckaping Masensl LIRS 75 1,053.60
|, 245,61 1,524.53
Expendifure in Farvign Carreney {On seeresl hasis)
= Traveling 1504 149,590
- Busivess Promnotis 1447 1364
- Legul & Professional charges g 127
- Menshershap & Subscription - 042
- Conveyance 204 Rk S
- Packing Material Desigiing Expenses Ia,04 .
- Commizian vn Export 3ales 1344 998
- Expenses anainsi Export 1.32 -
= Damage Clam |26
Th1E 4594
Eurning im Fureign Exchange
- FOB Value of Export of Gomds gl 6,534 58
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Contlagent LinbHithes nat provided Ter

(i Lacst
Particulars F-Mar-2014 A1-Nlar-20Z8
Claims aguinst the company . mot ackneniedged os doebe
Inconree Tax 1022202 MEIZXOZ
Sades Tux - Dulhh 13300 12306
W aT-Harvaa T40OT THLOT
Excised Taauion Elepanmere, Punjab 45381 45582
Einise Duty 419] 424
Rorviee Tax 2 £l
Val-Delhi . et
Lirpeal Cstooits dsnimmat e Liriiigmaity’ AR A i
Bank {immmuniees 14975 175
Sarcty Bomls wssed to Govl, Agemiwes under EPCOR Ay Lcunse scbome REIE R 2,234

Natare of comtimgent Uahilithes anal sther partbeulars are as glves bebow:-

Folliasng appenls are hang pending for hessing Before the CIT(A), New Dehi' Income Tax Appefiste Trkomal, Mew Delln /- How'hle Dhellsi High Conrt agamst the tax demand
ramad inampugaed bicome Tax Asseasnest Dnders as per details peven helow -

| Bam Lacs)
A Tax Inborest Tostad

2002-03 to 2008-09 258,03 10600 104,03

00610 . .
201011 ZA91.25 EEFEREL
A011-12 B35TT 115487
701213 127498 PR
A1E-14 404083 #71.21
-8 1,251 60|
ZHTEAT 27578 Ty
olal 10,322.02 |

A per the adviee recenved from Regal expermaand on the basssof menoof the cose, dere (s a high protabilicy thar the aforesaid empugned onders will be ser aside and the demand
will - dedened. Accordingly. management is of the view that o proviston in respeet ol the gbave demands =5 raguired to be madd in the beoks of ascounis,

Turther lo above, for assesmment yese 200121372004 1 5 2016-17, We had conlested the rater T finee AT Appeal). hased o o sohmizsion, oor appeal wis coniidensd. the
achlizion un certain nmivers were petially alkiwsd m ke case of Transfer Pricing [ssue, Om Corpomie Issue compleie addiiion was allowed o be reversed md thes the addizinn
was nullified, The oppeal effict agains the arder af C1Ti Appeal) & awaied far all chroe assessment years. For pending fssues we are i appeal hefore the Hanombie ITAT

For mssesmers vear 2013 14 we hind recerved o Mil Osder rom CTTEAppeall, The depamment have gone into appenl befiee ITAT we sre m process af filling cooss objection n
Tespaise bo the same

A appeal bas been fhed with CITOA) on 1148-2021 agamsr an onder passed sowands addioan of R, 2860 %4 Lacs agame wamiler pricmg adusement in mespect of ALY 2007-
208 aMhoizgh iliere s e labalit an (he company Sisce ra denian lis Been razed by the depariment. bul. fhis hiis iispacted in Ue reduction of esses by dlie above aitounl
With rejrnd the Naliee recemved we bad fled appeal before Honsamable TTAT.

An oppenl b been fAled with CTTgA) on 07-12-2021 hgains on arder possad towsnds addition of Re 791,57 Locs agnins wensier pricmg sdjustment imrespect ol ALY 2018
2009 athowagh here e nis liability on the compony sioee g demmmd has been cisad by che depariment, ol dhis has impacted in the redoction of loases by the above pisoam.
Wil nepard the Mo recdvod we b Blod sppeal bifore HBonsaralde ITAT.

A appenl before e Sales Tax Commissioner - Appeak, New Delhi is bying pemEing m respect of Sales Tox demunnd of B 12200 Losy on sale of REP Licenses made in enrlier
years

Followang appeals are alsa heag pendmg bebare the Appeliare AsthongiesTribunal. Hargne s mentioned me coloumnod against the impugned. VAT A
Uirdera Revision Chder passed Ty the ossessing authorities o8 menticoed in colamn. 3 of the eahle given below ;-

EFErﬁt!lﬂEm Demand raiged (Fs,) Aszassing Authority Appallats Autharily
(ol 1) (Ll 25 [Col.3) {(Cal.4)

Sales Tas Murlhai - AY HI0E09 732 35 | Revision-Fardabad Tribwnal-Chandigarh

Sales Tax - Murthal - AY 2009-70 7.7 | Revisnan-Fardabad Triquna-Chandigarh

| Tesal TA0.07

Mite : The Appeliate Auahority his temonded bk the above caess o Bevision Awthony, Boltak | Assessing Awihosity, Sonipa

0



vi

vii

villi

St Digector {Tnvesdigation) cum Dheputy Comnissiamer Stote Tax, Bhatindn hod served nstice for hearmg regarding Company appeal under section 67 of the PYAT
et 2003 for the additional demand eremted under the PIDH Act 2002 for the FY 2008-10, FY 2000-11 & FY 201-12 amounting o Rs, 45567 Lags: The Campany
tuus Filed uppeal in € handiarh Tribonad un the matier s pet 1o be listed.

“An oppeal hefore the Customs, Excise & Service Tox: Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi is lying pending against the ander of Commissioner af Ceniral Excls:

{Appeals), Delbd -1 in respeet of addiional exeise duty af Bs, 4291 Lacs demanded by the Excise depariment in conmection of dispute ever clussification ol poods -
[ood procuct producsd ot Bahalgash Factoey- as per the Central Tarifl Act, Ax the matier i stll periding before (b Trebumal, ne prosizon in the books of scceunts
hiowe been masde,

During tie fmancial venr 2U16-17, the compary has reeeived an orler from Hea,ble Central Exciee and Service Tox Appeliste Tribunal, New Peih (CETSTAT)
agnimst the eeder passed by Commisssoner of Senace Tax { Adjudication), Mew Delhi demoning o service s of Be239.25 Lacs, The Hon'le CETSTAT vide s
arder datesd BA2/200 7 his pramted imajor refed of Re 250, 1% Lacs apaing the aforesuid demand,

N AT-Delbi e rised the demurd of TE693 Lok opaimst perdmg T fooms morespeet of wears 20052006 & 2006-HH 7, Pending T forms were related s quarter
aut o the above, for five quarier ol F forms wene submitied and on order daced 16082022 has been revemved, nullifving the demands of these gusner For gquarer
ane fior the vear 2006-2007 ¥ forms ane pending there o demnsd of Bs. 2263 Lics hos been reised by VAT-Delld. Appenl against the said order has been filed with
WAT-Delbi. The Depariment has passed an order mudlifymg the demursd, ths there s no nbility 1 the dischasge with regand o "9 Fam,

Legal Cases ugaingt the Cmgiiy

The Baard of Trusiee o the part of Mumbai has fled 2 money it for recovery of Rs. 953 84 Lacs lowards alleped outstanding demurrape charpes against which the
company has Fled e counter chaim of Bs. [0 Cr. lowards. the fnarciol losses, interest on (e investiment, sefund of 1he ficerse fees, refund of the: denmrrage
charges, compenaanen and demapes etc, The mamer i Sl pendmg.

The Municipal Corporation has tisued ratice 0 the Bulder of Firmacke Tower for vacatng of permises Pinnacle Tower, ot Suraikund Faridabad, The Bailder
obiained inferm stay on the arder of Moneipal Commissioner, Farsdabad from Hon'hie High Court Purijab and Harvana, The Company also fked a petitian befare the
civil judge, senior divisen, Faridabad with segand (o siay of proceeding against oeder of Municipal Corporation, Fatidabad, The How'ble Fardabad Coust has stared
that afresdy inierim sty havie been granezd by the Hon™be High Count, hence no ground to grant relief peayed for |s made our at thisstage, The nest dare of hearing 1s
{lah Juby 2024,

W, Rl Kitchen Foods Linvited filed o arbitration perition rowands alleged outstanding, against which company i m process of filing its counter claim tiwands
the financial losses. The Company bas booked income towands the fmapeial losses of B 387 Lakhs, which i t be recoverable from Mis. Regal Kirchen Faods
Limited. Case 5 filed m Dastrict amd Session courl Faridabod. The Company filed o petition befire the Bun'ble Apex Court with regard fo contesting of procesding
bifore Districr and Seasion Court, Farsdabad, The Hon'Ble Apex Couen bad allpwed e compary petiton wirh gransing selief wo the Company and panies agains the
impyed prder of Faridabad Distriet Court and asked the Campany fo deposit INR 50 Lakhs each in ro tranches i a gap of tao weeks before e Hon'Be High
ot for seeking direction for further reliet.

Conmmstmeats

There are no commitment for contracts remnining i be executed on capitol secount oz st the end of current year or previous year,
Details of loans given, investrent made and guarantee given eovered als 186 (4) al the Campankes Act-20013,
Deebails of Loans given and nivestntent made ane mven ander the respective heads,

As per the ssessment of Management the compuiny continizes to be going concem. This assgssment &s bosed cn Resolutien plan suhrmitied fo the Banks by company
anil il inferesi shown by prospective mvesiors i ilse company.
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Fimancial Risk Management

The eompuimy bas exposire ol follewing risks arising from Finaneial Instranenos:
= Credit Kish
= Ligquidiny Risk
- Market Risk
CHEDIT HI%K
Creds nsd is (he ruk thot counterpasty will ool imeet 1s oblegsions wsder o fnsoeal instrusem or custouzer coutract, leshuez to o fmencnl loss. The Company s -expesed by

credit risk foen i aporating activities {primanily tade receivables) snd Fam it fiuincing activities, inchiding cash and cosh cquivalents 2nd deposits with banks ard financial
Anstingmions,

CREMT RISK MANAGEMENT

Twuddy vivebvnble related eredit rick
Al brade reveivabile ane reviewsd uid sssessed fur defilt i vt ing basis, o historsal experfenve o dallecting rocelvilides bs of snificu cradit rish.

Onber Ouancial asscls

The vosmpaity maisdaing liw exposiare in cash and coch eguivalents. The Compamy's maxemiim exposire o credit msk s the carryng valise of gacl chigs of Tuinncial assers

LIQUIBITY RISK:

Ligidiey risk is the risk thal (e Compamy will lice in meeting ity ohlizations associated with iis fmincial Bahifilies. The Uangpany’s appranch i managing liquidity 15 1o ¢nsure
hat it will have sufficien fumds w meet its lishilities when dos without incurmeg unacespinbic losses.

Muturitles of fimamclad Hakiifles

Fha eahle below analyvees the Compony’s fimnniinl fishilies ingo relesane marnniy pronpings hesod on their conrcs] mamgics for all non-derivaine finoncinl Tinhilives.

Maturity of Financial liabilities
(Ra.im L)
31-Mar-2024 Carrylng amount Less than 1 year 1-1 viars 1-5 years
Barrorwangs E381713 G3,611.00 - B,205.14
Trade Payabss 162074 1,055,530 16.449 LLTE
Crher Financial Listililias 2,785 64 260015 &.09 169 55
74,230,51 BT ETEAT 138 B,932.66
31-Miir-2023 Carrying amouni Less than L year 1-2 vears 1.5 yenrs
Barrowings 70,436 41 70,438 41 . =
Trada Payables THA44 TR 44 - -
Cribes Financial Ligtiliias 51610 316,10 - -
7204195 73,041.55 & =

Market Risk

Mlarket risk 5 th sk thor the fir vabee of fuwin: cosh fows of o feacis! snanenrwill Muenace becaase of chages o morker pewes, The Coimpany & eaposed 1o the

fallowing marked risks thal anse from iis ose of fmancial matrunsenids:

<= Currency sk

- Prive Rok

= Inperess Base Risk

Currency Hiskh

Tl Coanpny apeerstis

il il

ypamry i expowed fu forvign exchunge ek tirough s sales iroversias market, The Conpany evaluabes exchangy

rate exposnne arising from fonign corency hmnﬂlmu arel the Campuaery Eollws policies which inchudes the e of derrvatives like foeeign exchange formant contmets o hedge
expsire o forsign vureny sk
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E &5 & &

Foreigm curremey expuiare oot ledged by a derivative instrument o ofborwise
[ T023- 2024 THzz-23
Particulars Currency Fuorvigm Relin Lagy Foreign Rein Lacs
[infinw
Export Recenabke usn EX11,4R2 1,071 LIRGIR lamm
Sabvonces reecived fram cusbomers for export (1) 51,10 4308 1, 4% (R
[HE
Loans and advances UsH
Hmiflow
Aubwanse Paid 1o Sopllier Bt Teport EUR bl A el AU, ER.AE

Thore e no cutstandimg foraird vaniruces o om 31 March 2024

Chistanaling Trward exchange contraces wlgrd by e gwmpumy For the purpese el hedging ils foreign correscy exposares.
Thire wiere oo autstamdivg foewnnd evchangs contre emened by the company s on 31183024 anl 31032003

Price Risk

The price risk is the msk arising from investments beld by the Company and claesificd m the balsmee sheet emher at i saloe thrmgh Oiher Comprehemsive lsccme or ac fair
waue gl prafin o loss,

The Company s couity invesimenss are mamly strategic m nsore ond s genemaly beld on o losg-tonm Basis:
Inderest Risk

Initeret rbe nisi i the risk that tee Gar valee of fulire cih Mows of o Misncial msirement will Misciaace becauss o charges b maker st rees: As ol March 31, 2024 the
Cosnpany has shon wom bosmuwings ol Re 630132 bes which is exposed in feancal sk,

Camamaidity Hisk

The Company is exposod b the Aucluntions in conmeodily prices. Mismach. in demand and sipply, odverse wenther conditions, morkat copecations ¢ man kad o price
Mt The Company muasiges these prace fluetmiions by aciively mansging ibe souncnp of the row matersl and other producie

Ay pet Lhe assrssoe of the marmgemiend the recinorable amourt of e 25sem i higher San il camying valac and heece na imspaimment ol asels weods o be reccedad in e fnancel sotemnl

The sittheeak af Covil 1% has sdverily fopactid busiees glohally inchalisg Tads. The comgm kil s short ferm anpact an openitun ind rocovenabiliey of emisid dus foom Estoes dui o Covid B9 and the
bechdhinin o] by thie puvermmeznl

The cotnpesty i gidk tcurid e apvmd miny drin i sl compoiside secial vesposdhily (OS5I Toe cotsen s ond fw poevans viae e i siction F35 of Cumpanis Al
Tz conrpsiny bass il #miale ary core Bt o ary poliiiel pam dustng parren year anl previogs year

Theeg e voar v emeamt of Dividnd bas been ezmitiod o feecien carmzoy s Now Resdent ot nde Tndia

Sormi sl iy Seiices of Thebitors ] Sl ar s bt Lo confirmatken

LUpmespunliny Byguezs R the provious vear b baen regroupadramuaged, whesews socessary i gonlinm o carrol wr dessilicaion

Comeany's Kice manufacunng it is sot reneire ap w0 i fll cewcty dee o sos-availabidinesdiocare of fmds

The shave aohes foom part of the financial s

Im verma of cear separmre repor of even dese annohed
Far mnd on lighiadf of the Bapril of direciors

for M G Raj & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FREN : DO2240N

’ “Satz A Caumain Asom

xmm T Mg Director fu Mg Denecior
Mumbesship No: 088636 IO K, T DN e 030147 |
Faridabisd Cheisinn Adora Deepak Kmzhal
29-May- 2024 CFi Compmy Sevretary



KOHINOOR FOODS LIMITED

Office :- Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor, Surajkund,
Faridabad, Harvana 121001.

CIN No. L52110HR1983PLCOT0351

ANNEXURE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024
Form AOC -1

{ Pursuant to first provigion to sub section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {Account) Rules. 2014)
Staterment containing sitent features of the inancial stalement of subsidianes/associate companiesoint venlures

Part "A" : Subsidiaries

{Rs. in Lacs)
11 Name of subsidiares Company Sachdevi Brothers Kohinoor Foods
Pvi Lid. USA. Ine,
02 Reporting peried for the subsidiary concemed 31-03-2024 31-03-2024
03 Raporting currancy and Exchange rate as on
the last date of the relevant Financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries
i) Raporting Curency INR ust
i} Exchange Rate 1A 23,3468
04 Share Capital 1584 7.084 46
0% Reserves & Sumplus {17.30) (6,985.43)
08 Total Assels - 264
07 Tatal lizbililies - 254
08 Invesiment - -
0% Turnover . -
10 Profit / Loss Before Tax -0.36 -1.92
11 Provision for Tax z =
12 Profit / Loss after Tax 10.38) {1.92)
13 Propased Dividend including Diwdend declared * =
during the year,
14 % of sharshalding 100% 100%
i tesrris o 0 separate foport of even date attached
farNC Ha::l & Associates For and on behalfl of the board of directars
Charlered Accountants
FEN : G02249N
Satnam Arora Ciurnarm Ao
I, Mg, Directon I Mg, Directir
Sanjay Garg [3IN N, M 6T 3 o, 0T )
Partnar
Membership Mo: 058636
Faridabad Chnshu Aror Deepak Kaushal
29-May-2024 CFO Company Secretary



Independent Auditors’ Report
TOTHE MEMBERS OF KOHINOOR FOODS LIMITED

Qualified Opinion,

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited (“the Holding Company”), and
its subsidiaries ('the holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the group”) which comprisa the Consolidated
Balance Shest as at March 31st, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us, except for the effects/possible
effects of the matters described in paragraph under 'Basis for Qualified Opinion’, the aforesaid consclidated financial
slalements give the informalion required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at March 31si,
2024, and its consalidated profit/loss including other comprehensive income, its consolidated cash flows and the changes in
equity for the yearended on that date,

This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Holding Company's Management and appraved by the Holding Company's
Board of Direclors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian
Accounting Standard 110 *Consolidated Financial Statements” {"Ind AS 110%), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Acl, 2013, and other accounting principles generally accepled in India. Cur responsibility is o express a conclusion on the
Statementbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on The Auditor's Report on Financial Statements (SA)
700 “The Auditor's Report on Financial Statements Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. An audit of financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persans responsible for
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other audit procedures. An audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to oblain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in an audit.

1. The Statementincludes the results of the following entities:

Name of subsidiaries Country
(i} Kohinoor Food USAInc, (LIBA)
{ii) SachdevaBrothers Private Limited (India)

We did not receive the Audited Financial statements of above subsidiaries for the period ended 315t March, 2024, Although there [5
no significant impact of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies on the Consolidated Balance Sheet asat 31st Mar,
2024,

Basis for Qualified opinion

1. Inreference fo Note No. 36 in the statement discloses the management's assessment of the company's ability o continue as
going concem, The management's assessment of geing concern is based on the 0TS by the lead bank PNB and the interest
shown by prospective investors in the company, However, In view of defaull in re-payment of borrowings, conlinuous losses,
negative net worth and due to financial constraints, material uncertainty exisis about the company’s ability to continue as
going concern and the decision of the management of the company to prepare the accounts of the company on going concern
basis. There may arise a need to adjust the realizable value of assets and liabilities in the event of failure of assumption as to
going concern. Further, the company had made a provision of Interest for last guarter ended March-23 for Rs. 359 Lacs on
OTSamountand Rs, 175689 Lacs for the year ended 315t March 2024 on OTS amount, which makes atotal Provision of Rs.
2116 Lacs upto year ended 31st Mar 2024, The company is in advanced stage of discussion with the prospective investor.
Tha deal with the prospective investaris likely to be finalized very soon and the company is hopeful to meet its 0TS obligation
within the bank granted stipulated time.

2. Asstaled in Note No.26 of Consolidated Audited Financial Results, Loss of the company is understated by Rs.12 984 lacs
{approx.) due to non-provisioning ofinterest on bank loans for the period from 01/04/2023t0 31/03/2024 and Rs.58,630 lacs
{approx. ) from the date on which the account of the company was classified as NPAfo the period covered under audit, due to
nen-provisioning of interest on bank loans after the accounts of the company were classified as NPA, Also, towards revoked
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corporale guarantee of the wholly owned subsidiary in USA, the company has not provided interes! to the extenl of Rs 265
lacs for the yearended 31.03.2024 and Rs. 925 .64 lacs up to 31.03.2024 from the date of revocation of corporate guarantee
in the books of account, Further no provision has been made towards penal interest, any other penalty aic. as may be charged
by lenders. In the absence of complete statement of account from the bank, the above amount has been arrived as per
calculation made by the company. With the limited information the aggregate amount un-provided in books of account of the
campanyis not ascartainable with accuracy.,

Emphasis of Matters
We draw your attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

(1

(2)

(3)

{4)
(3)

(6)

(7)

(9)

The company has not made Provision for the demand raised by various authorities (Such as Income Tax, Vat etc.) as the
matters are pending before various appeliate forums. We are unable o comment upon possible impact of non-provision in
the consolidated financial siatementfar the year ended 31st March 2024,

We draw attention to Note No. 15 of the Consolidated Financial slatement of the company, The Secured Craditors (Banks) of
the Company have filed petition under Section 7 of Insalvency and Bankrupley Code, 2018, before the Hon'ble court of MCLT,
Chandigarh Banch, which are not yet admitted. The Next Date of Hearing is 11 July 2024, The company has filed a appeal
before Hon'ble High Court Punjab & Haryana for stay, The Hon'ble High Court has granted intarim stay till the Next Date of
Hearing 29th Oct 2024

With reference to Note no. 15 against ameunt payable to Bank, management has raised certain disputes towards
overcharging of Interest. As on date company has paid INR 40.09 crores lo banks in the no-flen account, the said amounthas
been netted off in the total outstanding of Loan repayable on Demand from Banks,

Inreference to Note No.43, balances of some debtors and creditors are subject fo their confirmations.

In referance to Note no.340, the company's vendor has filed an execufion petition before Faridabad District & Session
Judge. The company is contesting the matter. The next date of hearing is 17th July 2024. Thia Company filed a pefition before
the Hon'ble High Court Delhi with regard to contesting of proceeding before District and Session Court, Faridabad. The Next
Date of Hearing is 10th July 2024. The Company also filed a petition before the Hon'ble High Court Punjab & Harvana with
regard to contesting of proceeding before District and Session Court, Faridabad. The next date of hearingis 17th Sep 2024

Note no. 15(d) of the financial result stating that the company has received Ex-parte Interim Order dated 25-06-2020 from
Debt Recovary Tribunai-Ill, Delhi restraining the company from transfernng/ alienating or otherwise dealing with, or
disposing off or encumbering or creating any third-parly interest with respect of the hypothecaled assels/immovable
properties of Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter and has filed its reply betore DRT-I, Delhi.
Thenextdate of hearingis 28 Aug 2024,

Note no 15(f) of the financial result stating that the Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT-1II, New Delhi under section 19{4)
of the Act. The Company is contesting the matter. The nextdate of hearing is 31 May 2024,

In referance to Note no. 38 read with Mate nao. 39 of the Balance Sheet which explains the management's assessment of
impairment of assets due to COVID 18 pandemic situations. As per the assessment of the management, the recoverable
amount of assets is higher than it carrying value and hence no impairment of assels needs to be recorded in the financial
statements.

In reference 1o Note no. 15(c) to the Consolidated financial statement the Banks have classified the company's accounts as
non-Performing asset and served recall Notice under section 13{2) & 13(4) of The Securitization and Reconstruction of
Financial Aszets and Enforcement of Security Interest Acl, 2002 The Company has given reply of said notices within the
stipulated ime,

In reference to Note no, 34{vili){b), The Municipal Corporation hasissued notice to the Builder of Pinnacle Tower for vacating
of premises Pinnacle Tower, at Surajkund Faridabad, The Builder obtained interim stay on the order of Municipal
Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon'ble High Court Punjab and Haryana, The Company also filed a petition before the civil
judqe, senior division, Faridabad with reqard to stay of proceeding against order of Municipal Corporation, Faridabad. The
Hon'ble Faridabad Court has stated that already interim stay have been granted by the Hon'ble High Court, hence no ground
to grant relief prayedfor is made out atthis stage. The nextdate of hearing is 26th July 2024



(10) In reference to Note no. 34{iv), Joint Director (Investigation) cum Deputy Commissioner State Tax, Bhatinda had served
notice for hearing regarding Company appeal under section 62 of the PVAT Act 2005 for the additional demand created under
the PIDB Act 2002 for the FY 2008-10, FY 2010-11 & FY 2011-12 amounting to Rs. 4.55,67 487/- The Company has filed
appealin Chandigarh Tribunal and the matter is yetio be listed,

{11} Inreference to Note no. 45to the financial statement, Company's Rice manufactunng unitis not running up to its full cepacity
duefonon-availability/shortage of funds.

{12 In reference to Note no. 44 corresponding figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever
necessary o confirm to current year classification.

Cur opinion is notmedified in respect of these matters,

KeyAudit Matters.

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, ware of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of ouraudit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition, the matters described
inthe “basis for qualified opinion” and “emphasis of matter” paragraph are by their nature are key audit matters.

Responsibility of Management's and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matiers stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act”)
with respect to the preparalion of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amendad, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility atso includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and otherirregularities; selection and application
ofappropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant lo the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements thatgive atrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror,

In preparing the financial statement, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability lo continue as a going
cancern, disclosing, as application, matters related to geing concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends ta liquidate the company or to cease operations, orhas no realistic alternative butto do so.

Thus, board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibllity

Our ohjectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and lo issue an auditor's report thal inciudes aur opinion, Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thal an audii conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Repartancther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Reporl) Order, 2020 issued by the Cenlral Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give inthe Annesure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4
ofthe Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143({3) of the Act, we report tha:

a) We have sought and abtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit; except as stated in paraunder the head "Basis for Qualified Opinion®.

b) Except for the effects/possible effects of Ihe malters describad in Ihe "Basis for Qualifisd Opinion” paragraph above, in our



¢)
d)

gl

R

opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination
of those books;

The consolidated financial statement dealt within the report are in agresment with the books of accountand return;

Except for ihe effecis/possible effecis of the matiers described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph, in eur opinion,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 ofthe Companies {Accounts) Rules;

The matters described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on
the functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors is disqualified as on March 31st, 2024, from being appointed as a directorin terms of Section 164(2) ofthe Act;

With respect lo the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such conlrols, refer lo our separate report in “Annexure A7

The company has maintained audit trall in the books of accounts maintained as per  the proviso to rule 3(1) of Companies
IAccounts) Rules, 2014 asapplicable with effect from 1stApril 2023.

With respect lo the ather matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, inouropinion and to the best of aurinformation and accarding to the explanations givento us:

i, The Company has disclosad the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements. Refer
Note 35 to the financial statements;

il. Exceptasmatter described under “basis for qualified opinion® and "Emphasis of matter’ paragraph, the company has
made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts- ReferNote 32 33 and 37 lothe financial statemants:

iii. There has been no delay in transfeming amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

Place: Delhi ForM/s N CRaj& Associates
Date: 29-05-2024 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 24088636BKARIM2 497 Firm Reg.Mo. 002243N

(CA. Sanjay Garg)

Partner

M.No. 08BE36



Annexure-A to the Auditor's report (Referred to in our report of even date)

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the company an the consolidated financial statement
forthe yearended 31st March, 2024, we report that:

.

Wi,

Inrespectofthe Company's Property, Plantand Equipment and Intangible Assels:

la) (A) The Company has maintained proper recerds showing full particulars, including - quantitative details and situation
of Property, Plantand Equipment and relevant datails of right-of-use assels.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full pariculars ofintangible assets.

(b} The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets at regular
intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets,
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Ic) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
company, the title deads ofimmavable propertias ara hald in the nama of the company.

id) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible
assets duning the year.

() Noproceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for halding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016} and rules made
thereunder.

(a) The Company has a program of physical verification of inventory at regular intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its inventory. According to the informaticn and explanations
given lous, nomatenial discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

{fi The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crore, in aggregate, at any points of fime
during the yaar, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of curent assets and hence reporting under
clausze 3(ii)(b) of the Orderis notapplicable,

During the year the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee ar security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Parinerships or any other
parties and hance, clausa (i) of the Orderis not applicable.

The company has not given any loan, made any investment and provided any security to the parties covered under section
185 and 186 of the companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to information and explanation given fo us and on the basis of examination of records, we understand that the
company has not received advance from customer for supply of goods which has been outstanding for more than three
hundrad and sixty-five days and fall under the definition of deposit w's 72 to 76 read with rule framed thereunder. However, the
company has notcomplied with regulation w's 73t 76 and rule framed thereunder.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the cost records specified by the central Government under sub
section (1) of section 148 of the companies Act have been made and maintained by the company. However, we have not
made the detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

Inrespect of statutory dues:

{a) According tothe information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination ofthe records of
the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including employee's state
insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), State Insurance, PF. ESI, Customs Duty, Cess and other
statutory dues to the appropriate authority. Howaver, the arrears of the outstanding statutory dues as on the last
day of the financial year are due for a period of less than six months from the date, they become payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are dues of Income  Tax, Sales Tax, VAT, Customs,
Excise which has not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of disputes refer io Note no. 34 of
financial statement.

@



viii. As per the explanations and information given lo us there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

a) On the basis of Audit procedures and as per the information gathered and explanations received, we-are of the opinion that
the company has defaulted inthe repaymentof loans or borrowing to bank and financial institutions. As per the below details:

: Total default amount Maximum delay
8r. No. | Name of Bank “(Rs in Lakhs) {in days)
1 Indizn Bank (Allahabad Bank) 14 834 65 21889
2 Bank of India 721666 2190
3 ICICI Bank Limited 5,754.08 2098
a4 IDBI Bank Limited 4, 486.95 2170
5 Punjab Nalonal Bank 28, 70494 2184
] State Bank of India 2,8965.58 2181
i Punjab Mational Bank = Corporate Guarantes 3.987.15 1461
Grand Total 68, 050.00
= Amount of interest not provided in books of accounts
* Blso the amount of Rs. 4009.10 lakhs deposited in No lien account of PNB against the OTS amount of Rs, 25000 lakhs
is not adjusted with above respective balances.

b} As per the information and explanation given to us, Punjab Mational Bank {PNB) had declarad the company as wilful
defaulter, However, the company/ Directors had submitted the resolution plan for gutstanding dues of the bank, which the
consortium led by PNB had sanctioned.

©) Term loans are applied far the purpose for which the loans are obtained and hence reporting on clause 3{ix)(c) is not
applicable.

d} The company has not raised fund on short term basis and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix){d) of the Order is nat
applicable.

e} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on accountof or to meetthe obligations of its subsidiaries.

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of any securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures orassociate companies and hence reporting onclause 3(ix)(f) of the Orderis not applicable.

la}] The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrumants)
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x){a) of the Orderis not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debanturas {fully or partly or aptionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x){b) ofthe Ordaris not applicable.

fa) Mofraud by the Companyand no material fraud on the Company has been noticed orreporied during the year.

() Mo report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Cantral Government, during the year and up to the date of
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this report.

ic) Mo whistle-blower complaints were received by the auditor during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(xij(c) of
the Order is notapplicable.

The Companyis not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Orderis not applicable.

In ouropinion, the Companyisincompliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 withrespectto applicable
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the consolidated
financial siatemenis as required by the applicable accounting standards,

ia} Thecompany hasaninternal audit system commensurate the size and nature ofits business.
{b) The reports ofthe internal auditor for the period under audit were considered wherever necessary.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not enterad info any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons

connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the

Company.

la} Inouropinton, the Company is not required fo be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1534,
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Orderis notapplicable.

(b} Thecompany is not partofany group. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (d) ofthe Orderisnotapplicable.

i. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding

financial year and hence clause (xvii) is not applicable.
Therais noresignation of the statutory auditar during the year, therefore this clause (xviil) of the Order is notapplicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expecied dates of realization of financial asseis and payment of financial
ligkilities, other Information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is nolcapable of meeting ils liabilities existing al the date of balance sheet as and when they (all due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is basad on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The company has incurred losses during the three immediately preceding financial years and hence, it is not required to
spend any maoney under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the order is not
applicable tothe company for the year.

We did not receive the Audit Reporls for the subsidiaries companies, Although the impact of financials of subsidiaries are not
significantin the consolidated financial statements. Thus reporting under clause (xxij cannot be done due to non-availability
of Audit Reports.

Place: Delhi ForMis N CRaj & Associates
Date: 29-05-2024 Chartered Accountants
UDIN; 240886 36BKARIM2497 Firm Reg. No. 002249N

(CA. Sanjay Garg)

Partner

M.Mo. 088636



Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act")

In canjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31st March,
2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kohinoor Food Limited (hereinaftar referred o as
“the Helding Company”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company are responsitile for establishing and maintaining intemal financial contrals
based on the Internal contral aver financial reporting criteria established by the holding Company considering the essential
components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Auditof Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Insiitule of Charlered Accountant of India (*ICAI"), These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate intemnal financial contrels that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the fimely preparafion of reliable financial information,
as reguired under the companies Act, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibility
Our respansibility 1s to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
{"the Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI and the Standards of Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribad under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both Issued by the
ICAl Those Standards and the Guidance Note require thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain the reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained andif such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cwr audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporiing and their operaling effecliveness, Qur audil of internal financial conirols aver financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reparting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assassment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whather due to fraud orerrar,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controis system over financial reporting of the Holding Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the raliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepled accounting principles, A company's internal financial control over financial reparting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recarded as necessary o
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and direclars of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acguisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material efflect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherant limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due o error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the infemal financial controls over financial reporting o future periods are subject to the risk that
theinternal financial contrel over financial reporting may bacome inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may detericrate.
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Basis of Qualified Opinion

We draw our attention to paragraph of “Basis for qualified opinion” of our main report and the same to be read with our comments
as stated below:

According toinformation and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness has been identified
asat31stMarch, 2024.

1. TheCompany did not have an appropriate intemal control system for

{a) Customeracceplance;

{b) Customercraditevaluation;

{c) Establishing customer creditlimitfor sales;

{d) Accepiance of goods by customers and transfer of risk & reward at the time of sales,

This could potentially resultin the company recognising revenue without establishing reesonable certainty of ultimate collection.

1, TheCompany did not have any intemal control system for follow-up/recovery/adjustment of old culstanding receivables and
payables including balance confirmation and reconciliation.

A'Material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiency, ininternat financial control over financial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual financial statement will not be
prevented or detective onfimely basis.

Qualified Opinion

In our apinion, except for the effects/passible effects of basis of qualified apinion, the holding Company has maintained, in ll
material respects, adequate internal financial controls system aver financial reporting and such internal financial controls aver
financial reporting were operating effectively asat 31st March, 2024, based on the Internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mot on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, iming and extent of audit
tesis applied in our audit of the March 31, 2024 consolidated financial statements of the group and these materlal weaknesses
does not affect our opinion onthe consolidated financial siatements of the company.

Place: Delhi ForMis N CRaj& Associates
Date: 29-05-2024 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 240886 36BKARIM2497 Firm Reg. No. 002249N

(CA. Sanjay Garg)

Partner

M.No. 088636



Consolidated Balance Sheet as af 31st Mar 2024

(5.0 Lacs)

As gt As gt
Particulars Note 31-Mar-2024 H-Mar-2023
A ASSETS
Non-Currant Asgets
Property, Plant and Eguipman 3 15,812.41 15,508.00
Capital Wor in Progress K| 1147 827
Financia! Assels
{her Non Current Assels 4 1,263.12 [EERT]
Deferred Tax Asset (Ne) 5 T44.54 34T
Total 1783193 16.853.91
Currant Assets
Inventories i 1157 &0 4302
Firancia! Assets
Trade Recaivaties 7 1433 1,242.28
Cash and Cash Equivaients d 4541 17965
(khar Financal Assels ] L) am
Qthar Currant Assets 10 211606 218485
Tatal 4 TEDE0 4,385
TOTAL ASSETS 2256283 21,1282
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Exquity share capial 1 3,707.45 3,707.15
Othar aguity 12 [55,923.92) 195453.27)
Total [52,216.77) 151,746.12)
Liabifities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabililies
Bomawings 13 fi,40% 33 B.404 97
Provisions 1 10343 749,60
Tatal 651275 £.4d4.57
Currant Lizbilities
Firancial Liabilities
Boerowings 15 §3,611 99 £4,235.20
Trade Payables 16 162574 704 44
Other Firancial Labilties 177 2,TB5.07 E204T
{ther Current Liabifties 18 241.58 f52.12
Provisions 14 2847 2203
Total f8,206.85 B6,573.97
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 22 502 83 2131242
The Agcompanying Notes form an inbageal parl of
the Financial Statements
s per our Report of aven date attached Far and on bahalf of the board of directors
far N C Raj & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRM : D02249N
Surmam Arira Crumen Arira
It Mg, Pmector H. Mg, Dinctar
[ B 1] 06T N B 0010730
Sanjey Garg
Fartner
Membership No: 058636
Fardatad Chasbar Arora Peepak Kaushal
Fi-May-2024 CED Canmpany Secretary



Consolidated Statemant of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 3151 Mar 2024 [Rs.in Lacs)
For the Year Ended FFar the Year Ended
Particulars 3-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
INCOME )
Rivarua from Oparations i 950070 8,254
Other Income:. Pl 6363 17023
Total Incoma 957333 842514
EXPENSES
Casl of Malarial Consamad n 325042 227095
Purchasas of Stock-in-Trada A 15544 92875
Changes in kwentories of Finished Goods WIP and Stock In
Trade E {12140} 100,08}
Employee Benefits Expensss 23 B56.84 56581
Finencs Cesls bl 1,761.54 176829
Dapreciation and Amartisation Expensas 3 B31.12 BT 140
Oiner Expenses a 385889 342682
Total Expensas 1046133 956509
Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax {BBa.00} 11,158.89)
Add - Excoptional tems-Income ] TEDAD
Less ¢ Prioe Pariod Expenses B9 10707
Profit Before Tax [856.59) 1486.16)
Tax Expenses
Curranl Tax - -
Ineame Tag lor Priar Years - -
Defarred Tax (44147} (T 56)
Prafitl{Loss) for the year {455 12) 1413.60)
Oikar Comprabarsive Income
Heeg that will not be reclazallied (o prolil or ks
Remeazurmments of delned benslt plans (15501 &n
Fair vaue of Invesments through OC1 ’ n
Ineaninis ba rebaling bo Rairia il will i b reclessified b profit of loss
Oiimar Camprehenslve Income tar the year (15.50) 5T
TOTAL COMPRERENSIVE INCONE FOR THE YEAR (47062} |40 B3]
EARNMNG PER EQUITY BHARE Face valun of ' 10 sach)
Basic {in s} n (124 {t10)
Diuted fin Als,| M (124 {1.40)
The: Accompasmpng hake:s for an mirgral pard of fie Financial Samments
I tertvs of mar sepers of even dofe attoched
Fiir and on behall of the board of direetors
for N C Ra| & Associates
Chariered Accounianis
FRN : 002249M
Satnzm Anna Gurnam Anzn
JE M. Drechor It Mz, Directur
DK Ha 019647 T N, (9L O71
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership Mo; (58536
Fardabad Chusha Arora Drecpak Kaushal
HMay-2024 CEO Coerpany Secretary
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st Mar 2024

{Bsin Lack)

Far the ¥ear Ended Far the ¥ear Ended
it 31 Mar-2024 31-Mar-2623
A Cash Flow From Operatinog Activitles

Yot Prafit before tan |HIEEY) |=tB16)
Adjsstmeras for -
Drpeecinban and Amorisation Expenses &11.12 A1
Fimunes: st [Pl Bl 1,792
Tiiterust incicm: {051 {1384
{Brralit i Limes on ke Deleisom of Fixed Asels (384 (L)
[Profiti/Loss an Sake of Shasen - -
Income from key Man Insuronce Policy 13040 131.34)
Impainment bocs on Invesmment in Sobsidiory - -
Tmwwecatkin of ¢ peporate Guranies - -
Bad Debes Provision tor Dad Dedis - -
Upersting profit belare warking cupital changes LATRAY 193215
Adljis irers Toe
Dheicreased Increase. | in Invenlorss (4058 13504
Duvieased Encrenise } o Trnde Becervables [ 19403) (11EH)
Deereased merease } in othey Receivobles (402941 (1557
Ingrease/(Decease | in Trade payahles B350 (45 24
Tnurease| Decrense) in utter pavabiles 150912 S50
Um meabtred Forsign Fachange Com'Los (103 (2
Cash pemerated fruen operation JHRIRSL 25041
ety pa . -
Nt Cash from eperating sctivitles 1HIEE 215041
B Cash Flew From Investing Activities
Turehnse of property, plim 2o cquipment's -
Sale of praperty, plant arsed equipment's {533.84) 17554
Irvesiments in Subsidiaries Associates Comparies . .
Rale of Imvedinenes . 1126
Ieerest Reosived oSl 1296
lexionme froam Bey Man Insaauce Polaey 3166 313
Mei cash from Investment acthvities [4H1.73) (12.41)
€. Cayh Flow from Finaneing Acfivities
Reeeipts wymunst s of Share Capitald Shane Warrsmts . :
IHL.'rHﬁE\H Deciense] m sl lerin Iml'hlu.-i@ RRA21 {!Fﬂ.ﬂﬂ]
Inerease| Decrease) m Long teom borowings 450 13356
Interest paid {1704 (1.799.20)
Met eash flow from financing setivities (14T0.82) (L0165
Mot Increase/{Decressel in Cash and Cash Equivalents (134.24) 3656
- ih de Casth eguivident st beginnivg of the yeir 17943 1432
- Caosh & Cash equivalens 5 end of the sear A3.41 1763
(134.24) 3636
In termm of e meport of even dare attuched
for N C Ra| & Associales Fur undd i behalf of the Board of direciors
Chartared Accountants
FRN @ 002248M
Eamam Arom Gurnomy Aroea
It M. Dinector It Mg Director
IREATETIE Sy (IR AT
Sanlay Garg.
Partnar
Membership Mo: 088536
Farwfabad Chastwi Arars Devpak kasshal
24-May-2024 CFD Covpany Seiretary



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHAMGES N EQUITY

A Equity Share Capital
_ Rs.inilacs)
Particulars Ko, Shares Ampant
Balance as at 15t April, 2022 e T AT T4
Changa in equity share capital during the wear -
Batance 25 al 115t Manch, 2023 LI T1E Lmis
Change in squity share cagitsl during the year . .
Balance &s at 315t March, 2024 LT s 1713
B. Other Equity
Particulars Capital Reserve  Securities Premium  Retained earmings Revalustion Fareign Currency Telal
BAccount Surphos Translation Resarve
Balarice 3% at 181 Agril, 2022 (K1l 535023 130.799:38 13,585.10 {1 A5 3% PA504E.25)
Pt for e year 141580 1A11A0%
Diivar Comprahensiva incoma far e Year 5T M
Tatal Comprehonsive Income Far the year - R ] - - LT HE
Excharyyi dilpresssn on Féreign Cisrany
Transation of Foreign Cperations ) w2
Balance 25 at 315t March, 2023 141731 [FREEEE] {7,570 [RECENT] i |AUS S (AL AST2T
Profit for fha year 552 HSL12
Ciner Comprahenabie income lor e Year (1550 (13,50
Tatal Comprehensive Income for the year ATIATY - - {4l
Evwchanga diffarerreran Foreign Cumancy :
Transfation of Foreign Operalians (003 (003
Batance & at 31 March, 2028 151731 1575723 LR ] [RE A (1A A3 (KRR ]
Annakure iz our Report of Date Foor and o hohalf of the beard of directors
for M C Faj & Associales
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 0DZ249M Satmam Ariry Gumam A
It Mg Dacctor M Mg, Divosor
DR P AT TR B, (K47
Banjay Garg
Partmer
Mumbershp Mo: (EEE35
Fariclnbag Chashy Amm [rezpak Baushal
20-8ay-2024 CEO Cinparty Secrelary




NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

1.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statement

These Financial Stalements have been prepaned in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter refiermed to as the
‘Ind A5’} as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were prepared by the company under Ind AS for the first ime, with 01-04-
2016 as date of transition.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on going concern basis and on accruals basts unless
ctherwise stated, The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented inthe financial statements.

The financial statemanis of Kehinoor Foods Limited (“hereinafier referred fo as company/ hoiding company/ parent company”)
together with its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Group”) are consolidated to form Consclidated Financial
Statements (CFS). Consolidated Financial Statements consolidate the financial statements of KFL and its Wholly Owned
Subsidianies listed below

Wholly Owned Subsidiary(WOS) Country of Incorporation
Sachdeva Brothers Pyt Lid India
Kohinoor Foods USAlnc. USA

The parenl company has nol received audited financial statement from its Joint venlure company, Rich Rice Raisers LLC. Rich Rice
Raisers LLC has closed its operations, KFL has 25% shareholding in this Joint Venture, The Management considers that the parent
company is not in position to exercise contral over this entity, Hence the results of Joint venture company Rich Rice Raisers LLC are
not considered in the Consclidated Financial Statements.

Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Principles of Consolidation:

The financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-hy-line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of assets. liabilites, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and
intra-group ransactions in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)21 “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

The results and financial position of all the Group Companies are translated into the reporting currency as follows:

{iy  Current Assets and Liabilities for each balance sheel presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  Income and expenses for eachincome statement are franslated at average exchange rates.
(iiiy  Allresulting exchange differances are accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve until tha disposal of netinvestment.
(b) UseofEstimates and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements requires management 1o make certain assumptions and estimales thal affect the
reported amount, the Financial Statements and Notes thereto. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized
in the: pesiod inwhich they materialize.

{c) Property, Plantand Equipment

The Group has adopled revaluation model for land & building, All the assets belonging to these classes of assels are carried at
revalued amount being its fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent depreciation. The Group shall carry out the
revaluation of these assets periodically after every 3to 5 years.

Property, Plant & Equipment under all other classes are slaled at cost of acquisition/inslallation inclusive of freight, duties, and
taxes and all incidental expenses and net of accumulated depreciation. In respect of major projects involving construction,
related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalized. Expenses capitalized also include applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent costs are included in the assef's carrying amount or recognized as 8 separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the enfity and the cost can
be measured reliably.
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(d)

fe)
(1)

(2)

(3)

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as "Capital
work-in-progress” and stated at the amount spentup to the date of balance sheet,

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition,

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on writlen down value method, in terms of useful life of the Assets as
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013, The depreciation rates which are different from the principal rates specified
in Schedule-|| are as follows: -

Tarpaulin 100%p.a.
Wooden & Plastic Crates 100%p.a.
Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial
recegnition,

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets camied at amortised cost

Afinancial asset is measured atamortised cost ifitis held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
sclely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYTOCH)

A financial asset is measured at FVTCQCH if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
confractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss (FVTPL)
Afinancial assetwhichis not classified in any of the above categories are measured al FVTPL.
Other Equity Investments

Equity investments are measured at fair value. Investments which are not held for trading purposes and where the Company has
exercised the option to classify the investment as Fair Value through other comprehensive income ((FVTOCI), all fair value
changes on the investment are recognisad in OCI

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of leans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature
are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing
within ona year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the shod maturity of these
instruments.

Derivative financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option contracts and cross currency swaps, to hedge its foreign
curmency risks are initially recogrised at far value on the date a denvative confract is entered into and are subseguently
remeasured at their fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss in the period when they
arise.
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i)

(9)

(h)

i)

(k)

U

Fairvalue measurement

The Group classifies the fair value of its financial instruments, FVTPL and FVTOCI, in the following hierarchy, based on the
inputs used intheir valuation;

Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments quoted in active markets is based on their quoted closing price at the balance
sheetdate.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market |s delermined by using valuation
technigues using observable market data. Such valuation technigues include discounted cash fiows, standard valuation models
based on market parameters forinterest rates, yield curves or foreign exchange rates, dealer quotes for similar instruments and
use of comparable arm's length transactions.

Level 3 - The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity specific valuations using inputs that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

Dividend to Equity Sharehoiders

Dividend to Equity Shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders’ equity. in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the equity shareholders in the general meeting.

Inventories

Raw materials, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Stores and spares are caried
alcosl.

Coslis determined on FIFO (Firstin First out) basis for raw material, and on weighted average method for all other categonies of
inventories. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories to its present
location and condition, where applicable, include appropriate overheads based on narmal level of activity.

Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cashand cash equivalents are short-tarm, highly liquid investmants that are readily convartible inlo cash and which are subject
to an insignificantrisk of changes in value.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount, rebate, returns and value added
taxes. The revenue is recognized when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
ecenamic benefits will flow to the enfity, and when specific criteria have been met for each of the aclivities.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when afl the significant risk and rewards of ownership in the goods are fransferred to
the buyer as per the terms of the contracl, there is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. On recognition of revenue the Company ratains no effective control of the goods transferred
to a degree usually associated with ownership and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration
thatwill be derived from the sale of goods.

Interestincome is recognized using the effective interest method. Revenue in respect of Insurance / others claims, Commission,
elc. is recognized only when it is reasonably certain that the ulimate collection will be made.

Revenuein respectof sale of licenses, duty drawback and other incentives is recognized on realization basis.
Research and Development

Research expenditure [s recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurmed. Development expenditure is capitalised only
if the costs can be refiably measured, future econamic benefits are probable, the product is technically feasible and the
Company has the intent and the resources lo complete the project, Developmenlt assels are amortised based on the estimaled
usefullife, as appropriate.

Employee Benefits

Conlributions to defined coniribution plans are charged lo the statement of profit and loss on accrual basis. Present liability for
future payment of gratuity is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date and the expenses is
charged to the statement of profitand loss.

{m) Foreign Currency Transactions
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Transactions in foreign currencles are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates. Realised gains and
losses on setflement of foreign currency transactions are recagnised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Monetary ﬁmign cumency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchangs rates.and the resultant
exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at hislorical cost are translated at the

‘exchange rate prevalent at the date of ransaction.

Government Grant

Grants from the govemment are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Company will comply with all attached conditions. Grant received from government fowards property, plant & equipment’s
acquirediconstructed by the Company is deducted out of gross value of the assef acquired constructed and depreciation is
charged accordingly.

Borrowing Costs

Barrowing costs consist of interest, ancillary and other costs that the group incurs in connection with the barrowing of funds and
interest relating to other financial liabilities. Bomowing costs also include exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Intarest and other bormowing cosls atiributable lo qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of such assets Ul such time the
assets are ready for use. Otherinterestand borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.]

Income tax
Current Income Tax;

Current Income Tax is measured af the amount expectad lo be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with applicable income
Tax law.

Deferred Tax:

Defarred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on lemporary differances between the tax bases of assets and
lizbilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the tax are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductibie temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be ulilised.

Current and Deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except fo the extentthat it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity,
Leases

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (shorl term leases)
and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subseguently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured al amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lzase payments
are discounted using the Interest rate implicit in the lease,

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A provision is created when there is a present obligation as a resull of past event that probably reguires an outflow of resources
and a reliable esfimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require cutflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the

@
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ohligation cannot be made. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Expected credit [osses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to inifial recognition other than financials assets in
FVTPL category.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

An assessment is made at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, If any such
Indication exists; the Company eslimales the recoverable amount of assets. If such recoverable amount of the assels or the
racoverable amount of the cash generating unit fo which the assets belong is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of Profit
& Loss. If af the Balance Sheet dale there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected atrecoverable amount.

Exceptional ltems

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements whese it is necessary to do so to provide further
understanding of the financial performance of the company. These are material items of income or expense that have to be
shown separately due to their nature orincidence.

Earnings per share

The Cansolidated statement of Profit and Loss presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for the ordinary shares of
parent company. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable 1o ordinary sharsholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting peried. The
financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorisation for issue.

Non-adjusting events are events thal are indicative of conditions that arase after the end of the reporting peried. Non-adjusting
events afier tne reporfing date are notaccounted, but disclosed.
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rhers 1,175 41 Al hE
i T
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i) Disputes] Trale Receivables- Considered Goad - - - -]
(v ) Dispated Trode Recevables- Cansidered Doubtful - T . E e
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Murfxer of Equity Shares issued during the year® - -
Mumiber i Fqult}'ﬁhﬂmi.ﬂtlhund il Ehe weinr 3,TEI,'|‘|.53{I 370,71 .51
Shares held by Shareholiders holding wore than 3 pescent shares i the Company @
Asal 31-Mar-2014 A1-Mar-2023
M, iof Shares Shareholfing | Mo, of Shares Sharcholding
Jupenl Kishore Aron 11,53,484 Taaly 10,55 484 14,
Sammiam Al ST 158 15.51% FTA W 15.31%
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Mesting.
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Jugal Kishome Arors 1153 444 284% 10,53 454 2R
Sammam Arora LY LNLE] 15:51% A140.191 15:51%
Ui Amen A2 R 16,57 12,50, TRETY
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KOHINOOR

FooDS LIMITED

Regd. Office: Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor,
Shooting Range Road, Surajkund, Faridabad, Haryana - 121001
CIN NO. L52110HR1989PLC070351 Phone: +91-129-424-2222, Fax: +91-129-424-2233,
E-mail: info@kohinoorfoods.in, Website: www.kohinoorfoods.in

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Fifth Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Kohinoor
Foods Limited will be held on Monday, 30t September
2024 at 11:30 a.m., Indian Standard time (“IST”), through
Video Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means
(“VC/OAVM”), to transact the following businesses:-

Ordinary Business:

Item No. 1.

Adoption of Financial Statements
To receive, consider and adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of
the Company for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon; and

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2024 and the Report of the Auditors
thereon.

Item No. 2.
Appointment of Director

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora
(holding DIN: 00010704), who retires by rotation at this
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:
Item No. 3.

To rectify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for
the year ending 315t March, 2025

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force), consent of the shareholders be and is
hereby accorded to approve the remuneration payable
to M/s. Cheena & Associates, Cost Accountant Firm,
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, to
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company, for
the financial year 2024-25, on such remuneration plus
out-of-pocket expenses etc., as may be mutually agreed

between the Board of Directors of the Company and the
Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of
the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Item No. 4.

Reappointment of Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari as an
independent director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 149, 152 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Articles
of Association

of the Company, approval and recommendation of the
nomination and remuneration committee, and that of the
Board, Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari (DIN: 00387525),
who holds office as an independent director up to
February 13, 2025 be and is hereby reappointed as an
independent director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a
second term of five years with effect from February 13,
2025 up to February 13, 2030.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers to
any committee of directors with power to further delegate
to any other officer(s) / authorized representative(s) of
the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.”

ltem No. 5.

Reappointment of Mr. Sunil Sharma as an

independent director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 149, 152 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Articles
of Association

of the Company, approval and recommendation of the
nomination and remuneration committee, and that of the
Board, Mr. Sunil Sharma (DIN: 08699033), who holds
office as an independent director up to February 13,
2025 be and is hereby reappointed as an independent



director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a second term
of five years with effect from February 13, 2025 up to
February 13, 2030.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers to
any committee of directors with power to further delegate
to any other officer(s) / authorized representative(s) of
the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.”

Item No. 6.

Reappointment of Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan as an
independent director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 149, 152 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Articles
of Association

of the Company, approval and recommendation of the
nomination and remuneration committee, and that of the
Board, Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan (DIN: 08699040), who
holds office as an independent director up to February
13, 2025 be and is hereby reappointed as an
independent director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a
second term of five years with effect from February 13,
2025 up to February 13, 2030.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers to
any committee of directors with power to further delegate
to any other officer(s) / authorized representative(s) of
the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Faridabad, Haryana Sd/-
Date: 13.08.2024 Deepak Kaushal
Company Secretary & Manager (Legal)

NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) setting out
material facts concerning the business under Item Nos.
3 of the accompanying Notice, is annexed hereto. The
Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on
13t August 2024 considered that the special business
under Item Nos. 3 to 6, being considered unavoidable,
be transacted at the 35th AGM of the Company.

2. General instructions for accessing and participating in
the 35th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and voting
through electronic means including remote e-Voting

a. The Government of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has allowed conducting Annual General
Meeting through Video Conferencing (VC) or
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) and
dispended the personal presence of the
members at the meeting. Accordingly, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its
General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8,
2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020
dated May 5, 2020, 02/2021 dated January 13,
2021, 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021,
02/2022 dated May 5, 2022, 10/2022 dated
December 28, 2022 and the latest being
09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 (“MCA
Circulars”) and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2022/0063 dated May
13, 2022, SEBI/HO/CRD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4
dated January 5, 2023 and SEBI/HO/ CFD/
CFDPoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 7,
2023 (“SEBI Circulars”) issued by the Securities
Exchange Board of India prescribing the
procedures and manner of conducting the
Annual General Meeting through VC/OVAM. In
terms of the said circulars, the 35th Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members will be
held through VC/OAVM. Hence, Members can
attend and participate in the AGM through VC/
OAVM only, without the physical presence of
Members at a common venue. Which does not
require physical presence of members at a
common venue. The deemed venue for the 35th
AGM shall be the Registered Office of the
Company.

b. Interms of the MCA Circulars since the physical
attendance of Members has been dispensed
with, there is no requirement of appointment of
proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment
of proxies by Members under Section 105 of the
Act will not be available for the 35th AGM.
However, in pursuance of Section 112 and
Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the
Members may be appointed for the purpose of
voting through remote e-Voting, for participation
in the 35th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and
e-Voting during the 35th AGM.

c. Inline with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular,
the Notice of the 35th AGM will be available on
the  website of the Company at
www.kohinoorfoods.in, on the website of BSE
Limited at www.bseindia.com, on the website of
National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.nseindia.com and also on the website of
NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.




Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM
Facility, the Route Map is not annexed in this
Notice.

National  Securities Depositories Limited
(“NSDL”) will be providing facility for voting
through remote e-Voting, for participation in the
35th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and e-
Voting during the 35th AGM.

Members may join the 35th AGM through
VC/OAVM Facility by following the procedure as
mentioned below which shall be kept open for
the Members from 11:00 a.m. IST ie. 30
minutes before the time scheduled to start the
35th AGM and the Company may close the
window for joining the VC/OAVM facility 30
minutes after the scheduled time to start the
35th AGM.

Members may note that the VC/OAVM Facility,
provided by NSDL, allows participation of atleast
1,000 Members on a on a first-come-first-served
basis. The large shareholders (i.e. shareholders
holding 2% or more shareholding), promoters,
institutional investors, directors, key managerial
personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, auditors, etc. can attend the 35th
AGM without any restriction on account of first-
come first-served principle.

Attendance of the Members participating in the
35th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility shall be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the
Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
(as amended), Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) and
Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations read with
MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Company
is providing remote e-Voting facility to its
Members in respect of the business to be
transacted at the 35th AGM and facility for those
Members participating in the 35th AGM to cast
vote through e-Voting system during the 35th
AGM. For this purpose, the Company has
entered into an agreement with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for
facilitating voting through electronic means, as
the authorized agency. The facility of casting
votes by a member using remote e-Voting
system as well as venue voting on the date of
the 35th AGM will be provided by NSDL.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the 35th AGM has been
uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.kohinoorfoods.in. The Notice can also be
accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com respectively and the
35th AGM Notice is also available on the
website of NSDL (agency for providing the
Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

35th AGM has been convened through
VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
MCA General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April
8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020
dated May 5, 2020, 02/2021 dated January 13,
2021, 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021,
02/2022 dated May 5, 2022, 10/2022 dated
December 28, 2022 and the latest being
09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 (“MCA
Circulars”) and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2022/0063 dated May
13, 2022, SEBI/HO/CRD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4
dated January 5, 2023 and SEBI/HO/ CFD/
CFDPoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 7,
2023 (“SEBI Circulars”) issued by the Securities
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”).

Any person holding shares in physical form and
non-individual shareholders, who acquires
shares of the Company and becomes member
of the Company after the notice is send through
e-mail and holding shares as of the cut-off date
i.e. 30" August 2024, may obtain the login ID
and password by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if
you are already registered with NSDL for remote
e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID
and password for casting your vote. If you forgot
your password, you can reset your password by
using “Forgot User Details/Password” or
“Physical User Reset Password” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on
022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000. In case
of Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode who acquires shares of the
Company and becomes a Member of the
Company after sending of the Notice and
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 30"
August 2024 may follow steps mentioned in the
Notice of the AGM under “Access to NSDL e-
Voting system”.

3. Instructions for Members for Remote e-Voting are as



a. The remote e-Voting period will commence on
Friday, 27th September 2024 (9:00 am IST) and
end on Sunday 29 September 2024 (5:00 pm
IST). During this period, Members of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form
or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date
of Friday 20th September 2024, may cast their
vote by remote e-Voting. The remote e-Voting
module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast
by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed
to change it subsequently. The voting right of
shareholders shall be in proportion to their share
in the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date, being Friday,
20th September 2024.

b. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off
date should treat this Notice of 35th AGM for
information purpose only.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting
system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system
consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual
meeting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-
Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in _demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with  Depositories _and  Depository  Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number
and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access

e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of [Login Method
shareho
Iders

Individua | 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-
| Services website of NSDL Viz.

Sharehol https://eservices.nsdl.com either on
ders a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
holding On the e-Services home page click
securitie on the “Beneficial Owner” icon
S in under “Login” which is available
demat under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will
mode prompt you to enter your existing
with User ID and Password. After
NSDL. successful authentication, you will

be able to see e-Voting services

under Value added services. Click
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able
to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
re-directed to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-
Services, option to register s
available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS
Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureW
eb/ldeasDirectReq.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL.
Open web browser by typing the
following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either
on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on
the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section. A new screen will open. You
will have to enter your User ID (i.e.
your sixteen digit demat account
number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will
be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL
and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also
download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL
Speede” facility by scanning the QR
code mentioned below for seamless
voting experience.

MSDL Mobile App is available on

‘ App Store # Google Play




Individua
|
Sharehol
ders
holding
securitie
S in
demat
mode
with
CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for

CDSL Easi / Easiest, they can login
through their user id and password.
Option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The users to login Easi
/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL
website www.cdslindia.com and click
on login icon & New System Myeasi
Tab and then user your existing my
easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi /

Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies
where the evoting is in progress as per
the information provided by company.
On clicking the evoting option, the
user will be able to see e-Voting page
of the e-Voting service provider for
casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& voting during the meeting.
Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers, so that the
user can visit the e-Voting service
providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for

Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login
& New System Myeasi Tab and then
click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly

access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No.
from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page. The
system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see
the e-Voting option where the evoting
is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers.

Individua
|
Sharehol
ders
(holding
securitie
sin
demat
mode)
login
through
their
deposito

You can also login using the login
credentials of your demat account through
your Depository Participant registered
with  NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-
Voting option. Click on e-Voting option,
you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL
Depository  site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and
you will be redirected to e-Voting website
of NSDL for casting your vote during the

ry

nts

participa | meeting & voting during the meeting.

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve

User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID

and

Forget Password option available at

abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding

securities in demat mode for any technical issues

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and

CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual
Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue
holding in login can contact NSDL helpdesk

securites in | by sending a request  at
demat mode | evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 -
with NSDL 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Individual Members facing any technical issue
Shareholders | in login can contact CDSL helpdesk
holding by sending a request at

securities in | helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
demat mode | contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33
with CDSL

B)

meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode
and shareholders holding securities in physical
mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual

1.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web
browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/  either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL
eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-
Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast
your vote electronically.

Your User ID details are given below :




Manner of holding
shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or
Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members
who hold shares in
demat account with
NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed
by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is
IN300*** and Client ID is

12****** then your user ID is
IN300***12******.

b) For Members | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
who hold shares in | For example if your
demat account with | Beneficiary ID is

CDSL. 12rwanasaas then  your
user ID is 12**************
c) For Members | EVEN Number followed by

Folio Number
with the company
For example if folio number

holding shares in
Physical Form.

registered

is 001*™* and EVEN is
101456 then user ID is
101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then
you can user your existing password to login
and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the
first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you.
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the
system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat
account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on
your email ID. Trace the email sent to you
from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the
email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf
file. Open the .pdf file. The password to
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for
CDSL account or folio number for shares
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains
your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please
follow steps mentioned below in process
for those shareholders whose email ids
are not registered.

a)

b)

d)

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received
the *©
password:

Initial password” or have forgotten your

Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If
you are holding shares in your demat account
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are
holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by
aforesaid two options, you can send a request
at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat
account number/folio number, your PAN, your
name and your registered address etc.
Members can also use the OTP (One Time
Password) based login for casting the votes on
the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to
“Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check
box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page
of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join

General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General

1.

| Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able
to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and
General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to
cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period
and casting your vote during the General
Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to
click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join
General Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting
page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options
i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote
and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast
successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast
by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.




7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with
attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
mankandassociates@gmail.com with a copy
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF,
NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution
| Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by
clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority
Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their
login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login
to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct
password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or

“Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the
password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-Voting user manual for
Shareholders available at the download section
of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.:
1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or contact
National Securities Depository Limited, Trade
World, ‘A’ Wing, 4th Floor, Kamala Mills
Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai — 400 013, at the designated email id —
evoting@nsdl.co.in, who will also address the
grievances connected with voting by electronic
means. Members may also write to the
Company Secretary at the Company’'s email
address info@kohinoorfoods.in.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are
not registered with the depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of e mail ids
for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please
provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN
(self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email
to info@kohinoorfoods.in.

THE

2.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please
provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of
Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
info@kohinoorfoods.in. If you are an Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you
are requested to refer to the login method explained
at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and
joining virtual meeting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a
request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id
and password for e-voting by providing above
mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in_demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are required to update
their mobile number and email ID correctly in their
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-

VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS

1.

UNDER:-

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM
is same as the instructions mentioned above for
remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be
present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote
through e-Voting system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting
will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for
any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same
person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING

THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting
system. Members may access by following the steps
mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting
system. After successful login, you can see link of
“YVC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General
meeting” menu against company name. You are
requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under



Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM
will be available in Shareholder/Member login where
the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note
that the members who do not have the User ID and
Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID
and Password may retrieve the same by following the
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice
to avoid last minute rush.

Shareholders who would like to express their
views/have questions may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
info@kohinoorfoods.in. The same will be replied by
the company suitably. Members may also write to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s email address
info@kohinoorfoods.in. You can also update your
mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details
of the folio which may be used for sending future
communication(s).

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through
Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera
and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

a. Please note that Members connecting from
mobile devices or tablets or through laptops etc
connecting via mobile hotspot, may experience
Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended
to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

b. Members can submit questions in advance with
regard to the financial statements or any other
matter to be placed at the 35th AGM, from their
registered email address, mentioning their
name, DP ID and Client ID number /folio number
and mobile number, to reach the Company’s
email address info@kohinoorfoods.in atleast 7
days in advance before the start of the meeting
to the Company Secretary at the Registered
Office of the Company to keep the information
ready at the meeting.

c. Members, who would like to ask questions
during the 35th AGM with regard to the financial
statements or any other matter to be placed at
the 35th AGM, need to register themselves as a
speaker by sending their request from their
registered email address mentioning their name,
DP ID and Client ID number/folio number and
mobile number, to reach the Company’s email
address info@kohinoorfoods.in atleast 7 days in
advance before the start of the 35th AGM.

Those Members who have registered
themselves as a speaker shall be allowed to ask
questions during the 35th AGM, depending
upon the availability of time.

Institutional Investors who are Members of the
Company, are encouraged to attend and vote in
the 35th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility.

Other Guidelines for Members

a.

It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login
to the e-Voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct
password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the
password.

Any person, who acquires shares of the
Company and becomes Member of the
Company after the Company sends the Notice
of the 35th AGM by email and holds shares as
on the cut-off date i.e. Friday 20th September
2024, may obtain the User ID and password by
sending a request to the Company’s email
address info@kohinoorfoods.in. However, if you
are already registered with NSDL for remote e-
Voting then you can use your existing user ID
and password for casting your vote. If you forgot
your password, you can reset your password by
using “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

A person, whose name is recorded in the
Register of Members or in the Register of
Beneficial Owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be
entitled to avail the facility of remote e-Voting or
casting vote through e-Voting system during the
meeting.

Mr. Manish Kumar, Company Secretary in
Practice (Membership No. FCS 10248),
Proprietor of M/s. Mank & Associates, has been
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the
remote e-Voting process and casting vote
through the e-Voting system during the meeting
in a fair and transparent manner.

During the 35th AGM, the Chairman shall, after
response to the questions raised by the
Members in advance or as a speaker at the 35th
AGM, formally propose to the Members
participating through VC/OAVM Facility to vote
on the resolutions as set out in the Notice of the



35th AGM and announce the start of the casting
of vote through the e-Voting system. After the
Members participating through VC/OAVM
Facility, eligible and interested to cast votes,
have cast the votes, the e-Voting will be closed
with the formal announcement of closure of the
35th AGM.

f. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of e-
Voting at the 35th AGM, first download the votes
cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the
votes cast through remote e-Voting and shall
make a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the
total votes cast in favour or against, invalid
votes, if any, and whether the resolution has
been carried or not, and such Report shall then
be sent to the Chairman or a person authorized
by him, within 48 (forty eight) hours from the
conclusion of the 35th AGM, who shall then
countersign and declare the result of the voting
forthwith.

g. The Results declared along with the report of the
Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the
Company at www.kohinoorfoods.in and on the
website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com
immediately after the declaration of Results by
the Chairman or a person authorized by him.
The results shall also be immediately forwarded
to the BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai.

4. Pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, in
view of the prevailing situation, owing to the difficulties
involved in dispatching of physical copies of the Notice
of the 35th AGM and the Annual Report for the year 2024
including therein the Audited Financial Statements for
year 2024, are being sent only by email to the Members.
Therefore, those Members, whose email address is not
registered with the Company or with their respective
Depository Participant/s, and who wish to receive the
Notice of the 35th AGM and the Annual Report for the
year 2024 and all other communication sent by the
Company, from time to time, can get their email address
registered by following the steps as given below:-

For the Members holding shares in demat form, please
update your email address through your respective
Depository Participant/s. Members can also update their
mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of
the folio which may be used for sending future
communication(s).

5. The Notice of the 35th AGM and the Annual Report
for the year 2024 including therein the Audited Financial
Statements for the year 2024, will be available on the
website of the Company at www.kohinoorfoods.in and
the website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.nseindia.com. The Notice of 35th AGM will also be

available on the website of NSDL at

www.evoting.nsdl.com.

6. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer
books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday
24th September 2024 to Monday 30th September 2024,
both days inclusive, in connection with the Annual
General Meeting.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act,
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
(“IEPF Rules”) read with the relevant circulars and
amendments thereto, the amount of dividend remaining
unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the
due date is required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”), constituted by
the Central Government. The Company had, already
accordingly, transferred the unpaid and unclaimed
dividend amount pertaining to Final Dividend, to the
IEPF.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205 A(5) and 205
C of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has
transferred the wunpaid or unclaimed dividends
(remaining unpaid/ unclaimed for a period of 7 (Seven)
years from the due date), to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central
Government. Pursuant to the provisions of Investor
Education and Protection Fund (uploading of information
regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with
Companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded
the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with
the Company as on September 29, 2014, on the website
of the Company (www.kohinoorfoods.in), and also on the
website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of IEPF Rules, all shares in
respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed
for seven consecutive years shall be transferred by the
Company to the designated Demat Account of the IEPF
Authority (“IEPF Account”) within a period of thirty days
of such shares becoming due to be transferred to the
IEPF Account.

9. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are
advised to exercise due diligence and notify the
Company of any change in address or demise of any
Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised
to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for long.
Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from
the concerned Depository Participant and holdings
should be verified from time to time.

10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market.
Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining



their demat accounts. Members holding shares in
physical form can submit their PAN details to the
Company.

11. In terms of the Listing Regulations, securities of listed
companies can only be transferred in dematerialized
form with effect from 1st April, 2019. In view of the above,
Members are advised to dematerialize shares held by
them in physical form.

12. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are
requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank

details, nominations, power of attorney, change of
address, change of name and e-mail address,
permanent account number (PAN) etc. to their

Depository Participant only and not to the company's
registrar and share transfer agent, Skyline Financial
Services Pvt. Ltd. (RTA). The changes intimated to the
Depository Participants will then be automatically
reflected in the Company's records which will help the
Company and Registrar and Share Transfer Agent to
provide efficient and better services. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to intimate such
changes to Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd., having
office at D-153A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-l, New Delhi-110020.

13. As per SEBI circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated April 20,
2018, the shareholders holding securities in Physical
form and has not updated PAN No., Bank Details, Email
Id and Mobile No / Telephone No. shall furnish self-
attested copy of PAN Card and original cancelled “Name
printed Cheque” falling which copy of Bank Passbook /
Statement attested by the Bank along with all the desired
details to the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer
Agent (RTA), M/s SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED at D-153A, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial
Area, Phase-I, New Delhi — 110 020, without any further
delay.

14. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to consider converting their holding to
dematerialized form to eliminate all risks associated with
physical shares and for ease in portfolio management.
Members can contact the Company or Skyline Financial
Services Pvt. Ltd., for assistance in this regard.

15. Members who hold shares in physical form in
multiple form in multiple folios in identical names or joint
holding in the same order of names are requested to
send the share certificates to RTA, for consolidation into
single folio.

16. Members who wish to obtain any information on the
Company or view the accounts for the Financial Year
ended 31st March, 2023, may visit the Company's
corporate website www.kohinoorfoods.in.

17. Members who have not registered their e-mail
addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail
address with depository for receiving all communication
including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. of the
Company electronically.

18. Electronic copy of all the documents referred to in
the accompanying Notice of the 35th AGM and the
Explanatory Statement shall be available for inspection
in the Investor Section of the website of the Company at
www.kohinoorfoods.in.

19. During the 35th AGM, Members may access the
scanned copy of Register of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Act and the
Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which
Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of
the Act, upon Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

20. Details as required in sub-regulation (3) of
Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial
Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) of ICSI, in respect
of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at
the 35th AGM, forms integral part of the Notice of the
35th AGM. Requisite declarations have been received
from the Directors for seeking appointment/ re-
appointment.

21. In compliance with the said Circulars, the Company
has also published a public notice by way of an
advertisement along with their electronic editions, inter
alia, advising the members whose e-mail ids are not
registered with the Company, its Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent (RTA) or Depository Participant(s) (DPs),
as the case may be, to register their e-mail ids with them.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE
SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

Iltem No. 3

The Board has approved the remuneration of M/s
Cheena & Associates, Cost Accountant Firm to conduct
the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
financial year ending on March 31, 2025, on such
remuneration plus out-of-pocket expenses etc., as may
be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of
the Company and the Auditors.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditor has to be ratified by the Shareholder of
the Company.

Accordingly consent of member is sought for passing an
Ordinary Resolution as set out in item No. 3 of the notice



for the ratification of the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditor for the financial year ending March 31,
2025.

None of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel and
their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested,
financial or otherwise, in this resolution. The Board
commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 3
for approval of the Members.

ltem No.4,5 &6

Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, Mr. Sunil Sharma and Mr.
Yash Pal Mahajan were appointed as an independent
director of the Company pursuant to Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, by the members at the AGM held on December
30, 2020, to hold office up to February 13, 2025. They
are due for retirement from the first term as an
independent director on February 13, 2025. The
nomination and remuneration committee, at its meeting
held on August 13, 2024, after taking into account the
performance evaluation of Mrs. Mai Chandra Bhandari,
Mr. Sunil Sharma and Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan during their
first term of five years and considering their knowledge,
acumen, expertise, experience and substantial
contribution and time commitment, have recommended
to the Board their reappointment for a second term of five
years. The nomination and remuneration committee has
considered their diverse skills, leadership capabilities,
expertise in governance and finance and vast global
business experience, among others, as being key
requirements for this role. In view of the above, the
nomination and remuneration committee and the Board
are of the view that Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, Mr.
Sunil Sharma and Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan possesses the
requisite skills and capabilities, which would be of
immense benefit to the Company, and hence, it is
desirable to reappoint them as an independent director.

Based on the recommendation of the nomination and
remuneration committee, the Board, at its meeting held
on August 13, 2024, has recommended the
reappointment of Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, Mr. Sunil
Sharma and Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan as an independent
director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a second term
of five years effective February 13, 2025 to February 13,
2030.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013, an independent director may hold
office for two terms up to five consecutive years each.

Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, Mr. Sunil Sharma and Mr.
Yash Pal Mahajan fulfills the requirements of an
independent director as laid down under Section 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 16 of the
LODR Regulations.

The Company has received all statutory disclosures /
declarations from Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, Mr.
Sunil Sharma and Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan, including (i)
consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2,
pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (“the Appointment
Rules”), (i) intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the
Appointment Rules to the effect that he is not disqualified
under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act, and (iii)
a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section
149 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has also
received a notice under Section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013 from a member, intending to nominate Mrs.
Mani Chandra Bhandari, Mr. Sunil Sharma and Mr. Yash
Pal Mahajan to the office of independent director.

In the opinion of the Board and based on its evaluation,
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, Mr. Sunil Sharma and Mr.
Yash Pal Mahajan fulfils the conditions specified in the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and
LODR Regulations for their reappointment as an
independent director of the Company and they are
independent of the Management of the Company. A
copy of the draft letter for the reappointment of Mrs. Mani
Chandra Bhandari, Mr. Sunil Sharma and Mr. Yash Pal
Mahajan setting out the terms and conditions is available
for electronic inspection without any fee by the members.

The resolution seeks the approval of members for the
reappointment of Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, Mr. Sunil
Sharma and Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan as an independent
director of the Company effective February 13, 2025 up
to February 13, 2030, pursuant to Sections 149, 152 and
other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment(s) thereof) and their office shall not be
liable to retire by rotation.

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives
except Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, Mr. Sunil Sharma
and Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan, to whom the resolution
relates, is interested in or concerned, financially or
otherwise, in passing the proposed resolution set out in
item no. 4, 5 & 6.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in item
no. 4, 5 & 6 for the approval of members.

Profile of Directors retiring by rotation / seeking
Appointment / Re-appointment in the Annual General
Meeting to be held on September 30 2024 pursuant to
Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
Secretarial Standards -2 (SS-2) and other applicable
requirements:



Mrs. Mani

. Mr. Jugal Mr. Sunil Mr. Yash Pal
Name of Director Kishore Arora Chandra_ Sharma Mahajan
Bhandari
DIN No. 00010704 00387525 08699033 08699040
. 11th October, 18th September, 30t April, 1956 / 04th May, 1949 /
Date of Birth / Age 1943 / 81 years 1945/ 79 years 68 years 75 years
. . 13th February, 13th February, 13th February,
th
Date of First Appointment 26t July, 1989 2020 2020 2020

Expertise in  specific
General Functional area

Businessman

Businessman

Businessman

Businessman

Qualification Graduation Graduation Graduation Marine Engineer
Shareholding in the
Company as on 315t March, 10,53,484 - - -
2024
No. of Board meetings 5 4 4 4
attended during FY23-24

1. Sachdeva
List of outside Brothers
Directorships held (Public Private Limited
Limited and Subsidiary |2. Kohinoor i i )
Companies) Foods  USA

Inc.

Chairman / Member of the
Committee of the Board of Nil 4 2 2
Directors of the Company
Chairman / Member of the
Committee of Directors of
other Public Limited
Companies in which he /
she is a Director

Nil Nil Nil Nil
a) Audit Committee

b) Stakeholders

Committee Nil Nil Nil Nil
He is brother of
Mr. Satnam Arora,
Jt. Managing
Director and Mr.

Relationship between the

Directors inter-se Gurnam Arora, Jt. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Managing
Director, of the
Company.
As per the As per the As per the
resolution at Item | resolution at Item | resolution at Item
Terms and Conditions of NA no. 4 of this no. 5 of this no. 5 of this

Notice, read with
the explanatory
statement thereto.

Notice, read with
the explanatory
statement thereto.

Notice, read with
the explanatory
statement thereto.

Appointment

Note: Pursuant to Regulation 26 of SEBI (LODR), 2015, only two Committees viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders
Committee have been considered.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Deepak Kaushal

Company Secretary & Manager (Legal)

Place: Faridabad, Haryana
Date: 13.08.2024



